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Financial Highlights

At

2021 2020
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAET BEBT
Revenue PN 2,141 310
Gross profit EF] 118 55
Earnings/(loss) before interest expense and KRt M BREE RRIBEAIRF, (518
tax (‘EBIT")/(“LBIT”) (TEBITY) / (TLBITJ) 13 (76)
Earnings/(loss) before interest expense, tax, depreciation & 5t7F S5z ~ FR I8 « 37 5 R ¥ 84
and amortization (‘EBITDA")/(‘LBITDA”) AI&R),/ (§18) (TEBITDAY)
(TLBITDA) 23 (63)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners of the Company Z<A T B N EEELEF, (§5i8) 3 (74)
Total assets MmEE 3,096 4,190
Quick assets'’ EREEE 533 573
Net current assets MEEERE 732 859
Net debt? B P58 41 72
Shareholders’ funds® RERESS 899 842
2021 2020
Shares in issue BETRA 5779,196,660  5779,196,660
shares shares
5,779,196,660f%  5,779,196,6608%
Net asset value® per share EREEFE HK$0.16 HK$0.15
0.16 87T 01587t
Basic earnings/(loss) per share SREARH, (BB 0.05 HK cent HK(1.85) cents
0.057% 1l (1.85)7 11l
Current ratio* pCES 1.39 1.30
Quick ratio® RE L 2 0.29 0.20
Gearing ratio® RNl 0.24 0.44
Net gearing ratio” FEABRLEE 0.05 0.09
Return on equity® B U 28 0.3% (8.8%)
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Financial Highlights
MBHHE

1. Quick assets represent current assets less inventories, properties under development,
completed properties for sale, pledged cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank
balances

2. Net debt represents bank borrowings less non-pledged cash and cash equivalents

3. Net asset value or shareholders’ funds represents the amount of equity attributable to

owners of the Company

4, Current ratio represents the ratio of current assets to current liabilities

5. Quick ratio represents the ratio of quick assets to current liabilities

6. Gearing ratio represents the ratio of bank borrowings to shareholders’ funds

7. Net gearing ratio represents the ratio of net debt to shareholders’ funds

8. Return on equity represents the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners of the

Company as a percentage of shareholders’ funds
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Directors’ Statement

£

Dear Shareholders,

We are pleased to present the annual results of Magnus Concordia Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2021. The Group recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$2,141 million (2020: HK$310 million), representing an
increase of 590% from that of the preceding year. Net profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately HK$3 million
(2020: net loss of HK$74 million), and earnings per share was HK0.05 cent
(2020: loss per share of HK1.85 cents). Shareholders’ funds increased by
7% to approximately HK$899 million (2020: HK$842 million), representing
net asset value per share of HK$0.16 (2020: HK$0.15).

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of the Company has
resolved not to recommend payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 March 2021 (2020: nil).

The turnaround of the Group’s financial results from net loss of the
preceding year to net profit for the year was mainly attributable to (i)
the decrease in valuation losses of certain investment properties; (i) the
increase in fair value gain on mark-to-market valuation of corporate bonds
portfolio; and (iii) the various cost savings measures adopted by the Group.
The above factors were partially offset by the absence of a one-off bargain
purchase gain of approximately HK$60 million recorded in last year upon
completion of acquisition of a property development project in Zigong City,
Sichuan Province, the People’s Republic of China.
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Directors’ Statement

£

The global economy has shown initial recovery from the setback brought
by the novel coronavirus, while the growing consumption sentiment and
inflationary expectation pose a concrete support to the property market
and the global trade activities. On the other hand, opportunities continue
to emerge from the asset markets as the global low interest rates and
expansionary monetary policies have provided continuing support for
recovery of the economy.

Through effective deployment of capital resources, the Group has
succeeded in refining its strategic development to channel business risks
and uncertainties to growth by expanding the property development
business to capture opportunities emerging from the real estate market,
especially the non-first-tier cities in Mainland China with less demand-side
restrictions. Our residential development project in Zigong City of Sichuan
Province possessing privileged natural environment and exceptional presale
record is anticipated to bring a further improvement in the financial position
of the Group in the coming financial years.
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Directors’ Statement

£

A detailed review of the Group’s operations this year is set out in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on pages 14 to 26 of this
annual report.

As at 31 March 2021, the Company had fully utilised the net proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$194 million received from the rights issue
completed on 13 February 2020 for repayment of bank borrowings.

The Group continues to carry out effective internal control measures,
comply with overall corporate governance practices and maintain proper
corporate communications with investors and other stakeholders. Details
of the Group’s corporate governance practices and corporate social
responsibilities are included in the “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.

Leveraging on the effective risk management and internal control systems,
we are staying particular alert to market value volatility of our investment
portfolios and the operation of the printing business. The Group will
continue to seek growth-enhancing investment opportunities in various
market.
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Directors’ Statement

£

On behalf of the Board, we would like to take this opportunity to
express our gratitude to our shareholders, customers and partners for
their continuous support and confidence in the Group, as well as our
appreciation to our executives and staff for their dedication and contribution
during the past year.

Your faithfully,

On behalf of the Board of
Magnus Concordia Group Limited

Li Qing
Director

Hong Kong, 30 June 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

%ﬂ)ﬁ V)

Review of financial performance

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group recorded a consolidated
revenue of approximately HK$2,141 million (2020: HK$310 million),
representing a substantial increase of 590% from the last year. The
significant increase in revenue was mainly attributable to upsurge in sales of
completed residential units in respect of a property development business
in Zigong City, Sichuan Province, the PRC, acquired by the Group in August
2019.

Consequently, the Group’s gross profit increased by 115% from the last
corresponding year to approximately HK$118 million (2020: HK$55 million).
The Group’s gross margin dropped to 5% (2020: 18%) of the consolidated
revenue, as a result of lower gross margin recorded from the residential
units sold in Zigong City, after taking into account the effect of fair value
adjustments to the cost of properties upon the acquisition of the property
development business in Zigong City in August 2019 in accordance
with the prevailing accounting treatment for business combination. For
illustration purpose, the Group’s gross profit margin would have been
approximately 23% (2020: 25%) by excluding sales of properties, the
decline of which was mainly due to the adoption of the competitive pricing
strategy for the printed products in order to sustain market share expansion
under the weaker market sentiment caused by rising global trade tensions
and increasing import tariffs.

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses recorded an increment to
approximately HK$43 million (2020: HK$26 million), which was attributed to
the growth in sales of residential property development business in Zigong
City during the year. The administrative and other operating expenses
decreased to approximately HK$53 million (2020: HK$56 million) resulting
from the various cost savings measures adopted by the Group.

The Group’s other income, expense and net losses amounted to a net
loss of approximately HK$5 million (2020: HK$31 million). The amount
mainly included the fair value gain on mark-to-market valuation of quoted
bonds portfolio of approximately HK$7 million (2020: loss of HK$7 million),
contingent acquisition consideration related to business combination of
approximately HK$8 million (2020: nil), net exchange loss of approximately
HK$7 million (2020: gain of HK$1 million) and gain on disposal of items
of property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$2 million (2020:
HK$0.1 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

%ﬂ)ﬁ V)

The fair value loss from revaluation of investment properties amounted
to approximately HK$3 million (2020: HK$78 million). Certain investment
properties had sustained a drop in fair market valuation amidst the weak
economic and consumer sentiment, despite that stable rental income
continues to be generated from such properties.

The Group’s finance costs decreased to approximately HK$3 million (2020:
HK$8 million), which was mainly due to new bank facility obtained with
lower interest rate under global low interest rate environment during the

year.
During the year under review, the Group recorded a profit before tax of
approximately HK$10 million (2020: loss of HK$85 million), which was

attributed to results of the following operating segments and factors:

(i) Property development — profit of approximately HK$33 million (2020:
profit of HK$36 million);

(ii) Printing business — loss of approximately HK$3 million (2020: profit of
HK$1 million);

(i) Property investment — profit of approximately HK$5 million (2020:
loss of HK$78 million);

(iv)  Treasury — profit of approximately HK$12 million (2020: loss of HK$3
million);

(v)  Net corporate expenses and other businesses of approximately
HK$34 million (2020: HK$33 million);

(vi)  Finance costs of approximately HK$3 million (2020: HK$8 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

%ﬂ)ﬁ V)

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$3 million (2020: loss of HK$74 million), and earnings
per share was HKO0.05 cent (2020: loss per share of HK1.85 cents). The
increase in profit was mainly attributable to (i) the decrease in valuation
losses of certain investment properties; (i) the increase in fair value gain on
mark-to-market valuation of corporate bonds portfolio; and (jii) the various
cost savings measures adopted by the Group.

Review of financial position

Regarding the Group’s financial position as at 31 March 2021, total
assets decreased by 26% to approximately HK$3,096 million (2020:
HK$4,190 million). As at 31 March 2021, net current assets amounted to
approximately HK$732 million (2020: HK$859 million), whereas current ratio
deriving from the ratio of current assets to current liabilities amounted to
1.39 times (2020: 1.30 times).

The net cash inflow from operating activities was approximately HK$30
million (2020: net cash outflow of approximately HK$47 million). The net
cash inflow from investing activities was approximately HK$8 million (2020:
net cash outflow of approximately HK$165 million). Taking into account
the net cash outflow used in financing activities of approximately HK$169
million (2020: net cash inflow of approximately HK$417 million), the Group
recorded a net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$131 million (2020: net increase of approximately HK$205 million). After
taking into account the foreign exchange realignment on cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$14 million during the year under review,
the balance of cash and cash equivalents (excluding restricted use balance
of approximately HK$29 million) amounted to approximately HK$149 million
as at 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$266 million).

Shareholders’ funds attributable to owners of the Company increased by
7% to approximately HK$899 million (2020: HK$842 million), representing
HK$0.16 per share as at 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$0.15 per share).
The change in equity was resulted from the net profit for the year of
approximately HK$3 million and the Renminbi exchange gain arising from
translation of foreign operations of approximately HK$54 million during the
year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

%ﬂ)ﬁ V)

Review of operations and business development
Property development business

The property development business involves the development, sale and
trading of real estate properties principally in Mainland China. It recorded
an operating profit of approximately HK$33 million (2020: HK$36 million)
for the year, which was mainly attributable to sales of completed residential
units in respect of a property development business in Zigong City, Sichuan
Province, the PRC, during the year. Last year, the operating profit was
mainly attributable to the bargain purchase gain of approximately HK$60
million attained upon completion of acquisition of the aforesaid business,
after deducting project expenses. The project contributed revenue of
approximately HK$1,928 million (2020: HK$87 million) during the year
generated from the delivery of residential units with gross floor area of
approximately 258,000 square meters (“sq m”) during the year (from the
date of acquisition on 1 August 2019 to 31 March 2020: 14,000 sg m).

In view of capturing the rapid growth opportunities in the property market
in Mainland China, the Group acquired a residential property development
business containing three plots of land forming part of the Zhonggang
Shenhai Forest Project (#2875 IER),
industrial development zone of the Yanluyu District of Wolong Lake in
Zigong City, Sichuan Province, the PRC (FREIIY)I|& B & & i E
(MBS HMEMERARE), on 1 August 2019. The contracted
acquisition consideration amounted to HK$400 million. The Group also

located in the high-tech

agreed to pay a conditional consideration in tranches of up to HK$200
million to the seller in proportion to the fulfilment of the profit target or the
delivery target, whichever is lower, being determined from the completion
date to 31 March 2021 in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
sale and purchase agreement of the acquisition. As at 31 March 2021, a
conditional consideration of approximately HK$8 million is accrued by the
Group pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement of the acquisition.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Despite the gross floor area of approximately 190,000 sg m being sold
and delivered before the date of acquisition, the three plots of land have
an aggregate remaining gross floor area of approximately 500,000 sq
m available for sales recognition subsequent to 1 August 2019. As at
31 March 2021,
sq m, completed residential units with gross floor area of approximately

out of this gross floor area of approximately 500,000

272,000 sg m had been delivered to customers and residential units under
development with gross floor area of approximately 165,000 sg m had
been presold and not yet delivered. The sales of properties recognition
upon delivery of the presold residential units are anticipated to take place
mainly during the financial years ending 31 March 2022 to 2023. As
at 31 March 2021, the total carrying value of the completed properties
for sale and properties under development in Zigong City amounted to
approximately HK$1,952 million (2020: HK$2,863 million).

As at 31 March 2021, the Group also held 18 units of residential villas
for sale at the estate Ju Hao Shan Zhuang (also known as Beverly Hills)
situated in Changsha City, Hunan Province, the PRC, with total gross floor
area of approximately 5,600 sq m and carrying value of approximately
HK$55 million (2020: HK$50 million). The management has negotiated
with potential customers for sales of the properties and such negotiation
is yet to conclude. With reference to the latest regional urban planning
and development of Changsha City, the management is optimistic about
the prospects of these higher-end residential properties and expects to
conclude the sale negotiation in a way which would bring substantial yield
to the Group.

Benefiting from the expertise of our residential development projects, the
Group is exploring business opportunities in the market to expand the
property development business.

Printing business

The printing business includes the manufacture and sale of printed
products, including art books, packaging boxes and children’s books, with
our production facilities located in Huizhou City, Guangdong Province, the
PRC. It recorded an operating loss of approximately HK$3 million (2020:
profit of HK$1 million) for the year under review.
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Being affected by the global economic slowdown caused by the novel
coronavirus pandemic crisis, the global book printing and paper packaging
market had experienced a setback on demand and the printing business
sustained from a lower profit margin in order to maintain the market share.
The revenue of the printing business recorded a drop to approximately
HK$195 million (2020: HK$207 million) for the year under review.
Nevertheless, the printing business strived to improve its profit margin by
adopting various cost control measures and enhancing its competitive
edge in innovative design, quality management and production resources.
The management also reacts promptly to reduce the market challenges
to a minimum by devising various modernised sourcing, manufacturing,
distribution, logistics and market segmentation solutions.

The management remains cautiously optimistic about the recovery of
growth momentum in the global book printing and paper packaging
market, and appropriate risk management and prompt business
deployment have been carried out to channel threats into growth

opportunities.
Property investment business

The property investment business involves the investment and leasing of
real estate properties, which recorded an operating profit of approximately
HK$5 million (2020: loss of approximately HK$78 million) for the year under
review. The improvement in performance was mainly attributed to the
unrealised revaluation loss of the investment properties located in Hong
Kong and Mainland China of approximately HK$3 million (2020: HK$78
million) which is significantly less than last year.
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As at 31 March 2021, the Group held the following investment properties
carried at fair market value of approximately HK$442 million (2020: HK$434
million), which contributed rental income of approximately HK$11 million
(2020: HK$10 million) during the year:

Location

HhEs

Investment properties in Hong Kong

ERZREYME

Shop B, Ground Floor, Wuhu Residence,

No. 111 Wuhu Street, Hunghom, Kowloon
FNBEALHENER A 115N B B

Shop D, Ground Floor, Wuhu Residence,
No. 111 Wuhu Street, Hunghom, Kowloon
FLRRALENEOR AT 11 SR B B # T DR 8

Shops 3, 4, 5, Parkes Residence,
No. 101 Parkes Street, Kowloon

NBEAMTHT1015RIA » $T3h T35 458 Kook &

Investment properties in Mainland China
PEKEZREYE

Level 6, Chengdu Digital Plaza,

No. 1 Renmin South Road Fourth Portion,

Wuhou District, Chengdu City,

Sichuan Province, the PRC

FREDI) || & AL AR T L2 & A R B B& PO B 1 S5 A ER BB [ 35018

Units 01, 02, 03, 06 and 07, 38th Floor,

R&F Yingkai Square, No. 16 Huaxia Road,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,

Guangdong Province, the PRC
FEEREENTRTRESRI6RE IR
EROTE

Y EH38IB01E ~02%F ~ 03F ~ 06
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The Group remains cautiously optimistic about the prospect of the property
investment business, having considered that the investment properties are
fully leased out and the unrealised revaluation loss incurred was mainly
resulted from the temporary quarantine measures carried out in Hong Kong
and Mainland China as at the end of the reporting period. The portfolio of
investment properties was acquired for long term investment purpose so
as to provide a stable income stream to the Group. The Group keeps on
monitoring the capital gain and rental yields of the portfolio and considers to
rebalance the investment portfolio when suitable opportunities arise.

Treasury business

The treasury business involves the investment and trading of debts, equity
and other treasury instruments, which recorded an operating gain of
approximately HK$13 million (2020: loss of approximately HK$3 million)
for the year. The portfolio of high-yield corporate bonds generated interest
income of approximately HK$5 million (2020: HK$5 million) and contributed
a fair value gain of approximately HK$7 million (2020: loss of HK$7 million)
during the year.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group held high-yield corporate bonds carried
at mark-to-market valuation of approximately HK$43 million (2020: HK$96
million), equivalent to approximately 1% (2020: 2%) of the Group’s total
assets. The portfolio of corporate bonds held by the Group as at 31 March
2021 comprised bonds issued by several Hong Kong listed companies
which mainly engaged in property development related business and
leasing business in Mainland China.

During the year under review, the global financial markets became stabilised
from the turmoil brought by the outbreak of novel coronavirus. The
corporate bond market had been recovered to a normal sentiment and the
management considers that our investment in the fixed-income market will
continue to provide remunerative investment portfolio’s underlying price
risk and credit risk by adopting an optimal risk-return balance investment
strategy.
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In order to capture opportunities emerging from the possible asset price
inflation and fund investment demand brought by the lowering global
interest rates, the Group is exploring expansion options into the financial
and asset management services market.

Liquidity and capital resources

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s total assets amounted to approximately
HK$3,096 million (2020: HK$4,190 million), which were financed by
shareholders’ funds and various credit facilities. Banking facilities are
maintained to finance the Group’s working capital and committed capital
expenditures, which bear interest at market rate with contractual terms of
repayment ranging from within one year to five years. The Group adopts
a treasury policy to maximise the return on equity, which manages the
funding requirements for new capital projects by considering all available
options including a hybrid of debt and equity financing.

The Group mainly generated income and incurred costs in Hong Kong
dollar, Renminbi and United States dollar. During the year, no financial
instruments had been used for hedging purpose, and no foreign currency
net investments had been hedged by currency borrowings or other hedging
instruments. The Group manages the exposures of fluctuation on exchange
rate and interest rate on individual transaction basis.

As at 31 March 2021,
approximately HK$219 million (2020: HK$373 million) with approximately
HK$219 million repayable on demand or within one year (2020: HK$373
million). The bank borrowings bore interest at floating rate, approximately
HK$205 million (2020: HK$361 million) of which were denominated in
Hong Kong dollar, approximately HK$12 million (2020: HK$8 million) of

the Group’s bank borrowings amounted to

which were denominated in Renminbi and approximately HK$2 million of
which were denominated in United States dollar (2020: HK$4 million). The
Group’s gearing ratio was 0.24 (2020: 0.44), which was calculated based
on the ratio of total bank borrowings of approximately HK$219 million
(2020: HK$373 million) to the shareholders’ funds of approximately HK$899
million (2020: HK$842 million).
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As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s cash and equivalents balances
amounted to approximately HK$178 million (2020: HK$421 million), which
included restricted bank balances of approximately HK$29 million (2020:
restricted bank balances of approximately HK$36 million and pledged cash
and cash equivalents of approximately HK$120 million). Approximately
HK$42 million (2020: HK$263 million) of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents were denominated in Hong Kong dollar, approximately HK$61
million (2020: HK$35 million) were denominated in United States dollar,
approximately HK$73 million (2020: HK$121 million) were denominated
in Renminbi and approximately HK$2 million (2020: HK$2 million) were
denominated in other currencies. As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a
net debt position (being bank borrowings net of non-pledged and restricted
cash and cash equivalents) of approximately HK$41 million (2020: HK$72
million).

As at 31 March 2021, the Company had fully utilised the net proceeds
amounting to approximately HK$194 million received from the rights issue
completed on 13 February 2020 for repayment of bank borrowings.

Outlook

The global economy has shown initial recovery from the setback brought
by the novel coronavirus, while the growing consumption sentiment and
inflationary expectation pose a concrete support to the property market
and the global trade activities. On the other hand, opportunities continue
to emerge from the asset markets as the global low interest rates and
expansionary monetary policies have provided continuing support for
recovery of the economy.

Through effective deployment of capital resources, the Group has
succeeded in refining its strategic development to channel business risks
and uncertainties to growth by expanding the property development
business to capture opportunities emerging from the real estate market,
especially the non-first-tier cities in Mainland China with less demand-side
restrictions. Our residential development project in Zigong City of Sichuan
Province possessing privileged natural environment and exceptional presale
record is anticipated to bring a further improvement in the financial position
of the Group in the coming financial years.
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Leveraging on the effective risk management and internal control systems,
we are staying particular alert to market value volatility of our investment
portfolios and the operation of the printing business. The Group will
continue to seek growth-enhancing investment opportunities in various
market.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2021, the Group provided financial guarantees in respect
of mortgage loans made by certain banks to certain purchasers of the
properties in the PRC, either directly provided to the banks or to the
housing provident fund management center who arranged the bank
mortgage, which amounted to approximately HK$1,818 million (2020:
HK$1,387 million).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2021, the Group pledged certain assets including right-
of-use assets under property, plant and equipment, owned assets under
property, plant and equipment, investment properties and accounts
receivable with an aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$320
million (2020: HK$570 million) to secure bank facilities of the Group. The
bank facilities of the Group are also secured by equity interests in certain

subsidiaries of the Group.
Commitments

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had capital expenditure contracted for
but not provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
acquisition of an equity of approximately HK$3 million (2020: acquisition of
property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$1 million).
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Environmental, Social and Compliance Matters

Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements of the business
operations and the key relationships with its employees, customers,
suppliers and others that have significant impact on the Group are provided
in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” as set out on pages
74 to 139 of this annual report.

During the year under review, the Group had complied with all the relevant
laws and regulations that have significant impacts on the businesses and
operations of the Group. As far as the Board and management are aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the applicable
laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant impact on the
businesses and operations of the Group.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

As stated in the enterprise risk management framework of the “Corporate
Governance Report”, the Group has assessed and identified key risks in
terms of strategic, operational and financial aspects facing the Group in
accordance with the likelihood of their occurrence and the significance of
their impact on the business of the Group. An effective risk management
system is in place to manage the key risks and response plans have been

evaluated by the management.

Certain financial risks and uncertainties about significant accounting
judgements and estimates are also set out in notes 37 and 3, respectively
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

Certain environmental and social related risks have been described in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” as set out on pages 74 to
139 of this annual report.
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Material Acquisition and Disposal of MEBASKMAMAT ZEKXWER

Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies HEEIE

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, ZHEBREE_Z_—F=-H=+—HIEEIE

associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31 March 2021. FRWNBAE BHE AR REEREZERANEN
HEEIE-

Event After the Reporting Period IREHIRSEIR

No significant event affecting the Group occurred after the reporting period RSB MREZEAFERAL  TEEFEHAER
and up to the date of this annual report. EEREEKREE-
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFERERERASZEEFE

Executive Directors
Mr. Li Qing

Mr. Li Qing (“Mr. Li"), aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director on
26 January 2018. He is currently the director and chief executive officer
of SFund International Investment Fund Management Limited (“SFund
International”). Prior to joining SFund International, he worked as a deputy
general manager and general manager in Lianyun Gangshi Runbang Zhiye
Company Limited* GEERTH EMEZEAFIRAS)from January 2008 to
January 2013. He was then the general manager and chairman in Hunan
Huiyin Tianxing Private Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd* GHFEEIR X 2
RERELEESEEHRAE) from November 2014 to October 2016.
Mr. Li is also a director of Qingda Developments Limited (“Qingda”, a direct
controlling shareholder of the Company), New Element Investments Limited
(“New Element”, an indirect controlling shareholder of the Company) and
Kapok Wish Investment Limited (“Kapok Wish”, the general partner of
Integrity Fund Limited Partnership (‘Integrity Fund”), which is an indirect
controlling shareholder of the Company). On 15 January 2019, he was
appointed as an executive director and the chairman of the board of
directors of SFund International Holdings Limited (a company listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Stock Exchange”), stock code: 1367).

Mr. Li graduated from the faculty of music in Minzu University of China
(FREKEAZ)In June 2001. He received a master's degree from the
Musikakademie der Stadt Kassel in Germany in September 2004. Mr. Li
has over 10 years of experience working in senior management roles in real
estate investment and fund management.

* For identification purpose only
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet

Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet (“Ms. Au”), aged 43, was appointed as an executive
Director on 26 January 2018. She is also a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. She has
been the investment director and deputy general manager of SFund
International since June 2017 and March 2018, respectively. Prior to joining
SFund International, Ms. Au had work experience in the financial services
industry at The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. from July 2000 to October
2002 and Morgan Stanley Asia Limited from August 2008 to April 2009 and
from September 2009 to April 2013. Ms. Au then worked as the deputy
general manager at WH Group Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange; stock code: 288) from May 2013 to October 2014 and the
chief financial officer and director of Eddingpharm International Holdings
Limited from November 2014 to March 2016, and Ms. Au worked as a
consultant at Baring Private Equity Asia Limited from October 2016 to May
2017. Ms. Au is also a director of Qingda (a direct controlling shareholder
of the Company), New Element (an indirect controlling shareholder of the
Company) and Kapok Wish (the general partner of Integrity Fund, which is
an indirect controlling shareholder of the Company).

Ms. Au obtained a bachelor of arts degree from the University of Rochester
in May 2000. Ms. Au received a master of business administration degree
from the Columbia University in May 2008. Ms. Au has over 15 years of
experience in mergers & acquisitions and corporate management.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis

Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis (“Mr. Lam”), aged 73, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 26 January 2018. He is also the
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lam has been the managing director and
founder of LR Construction Technologies Limited since August 2012 and
the managing director and co-founder of LR Construction and Consultancy
Limited since April 2012. He has also been the managing director and
co-founder of LR IOT Limited (formerly known as Alternative Turbine
Technologies Limited) since May 2009. He is also currently an independent
non-executive director of In Construction Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1500). From 1976 to 1987, Mr.
Lam was a lecturer in the Department of Civil and Structural Engineering of
the University of Hong Kong. From November 1996 to August 2004, Mr.
Lam was a principal lecturer of the Vocational Training Council. Mr. Lam has
been the head of the Department of Civil Engineering of Chu Hai College of
Higher Education since March 2020.

Mr. Lam obtained a bachelor of science in engineering degree from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1969. In November 1972, he
received a PhD from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam was admitted
as a member of The Institution of Civil Engineers in July 1975 and he has
also been admitted as a member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
since November 1975 and is also a registered professional engineer of
Engineers Registration Board.

Mr. Lam has over 45 years of experience in engineering.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFRERERBASZEEFE

Independent Non-Executive Directors
(Continued)

Mr. Hung Kin Man

Mr. Hung Kin Man (“Mr. Hung”), aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 26 January 2018. He is also the Chairman of
the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Mr. Hung has been practising as a barrister in Hong Kong since
1992. Mr. Hung was a Deputy District Court Judge in Hong Kong in March
2015.

Mr. Hung received his bachelor of law degree from the Wolverhampton
Polytechnic in England in July 1990. He was called to the Bar in England
and Wales and Bar of Hong Kong.

Mr. Ho Man

Mr. Ho Man (“Mr. Ho”), aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 26 January 2018. He is also the Chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of both the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Ho has over 20 years of
working experience in private equity investment and finance and is currently
the managing director of an investment holding company. Prior to that,
Mr. Ho served as an executive partner representative of a Chengdu-based
private equity investment fund from December 2011 to May 2014. Mr. Ho
worked for a Hong Kong-based private fund management company during
January 2010 to December 2013 and was the managing director and
head of China growth and expansion capital of CLSA Capital Partners (HK)
Limited from August 1997 to October 2009.
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ESEREEBIEASZEEFE

Independent Non-Executive Directors
(Continued)

Mr. Ho Man (Continued)

Mr. Ho has been an independent non-executive director of Fantasia
Holdings Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1777) since October 2009; an
independent non-executive director of Fu Shou Yuan International Group
Limited (stock code: 1448) since December 2013; an independent non-
executive director of Wanjia Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 401) since
February 2018; and an independent non-executive director of Grand Ocean
Advanced Resources Company Limited (stock code: 65) since 22 January
2020, all being companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ho was awarded an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from Tsinghua University and a master’s degree in finance from the
London Business School. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst.

32 Magnus Concordia Group Limited R K EERR B HRAF

BWILIFRITESE (B)

A8EE (&)

AEEEB - EZNFTAREITEREERERS
RAT RMDREE 1 1777) ZBIULIERNTESE; B
I —Ft+_ARETERESREEREESRER
B (RS - 1448) ZBUFERITES ; BT
—N\EZARETERERERERAT BRMHMR
8% 1 401) 2B IEITES KBS -E5—H
I HEREASEMERERAR ERDE
65) 2B IERITE S ZE AR ER
o

AERECEBEABRETRASTIHEERLTS
U R S S iE 2 SRR T B - RTF R 4FETF
R oD o



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EFRERERBASZEEFE

Senior Management
Mr. Leung Ho Man (“Mr. Leung”), joined the Group in February 2018
and is the Financial Controller of the Company. He is responsible for the
financial management and treasury functions of the Group, and acts as
the coordinator for the internal audit, internal control and risk management
functions of the Group in relation to corporate governance compliance.

Mr. Leung holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in
Accounting and Finance and a Master of Science degree in Financial
Analysis. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Leung has over 20 years of experience in financial
management, accounting, auditing and corporate governance in an
international accounting firm and listed companies.

Ms. Ng Yee Man, Fiona (“Ms. Ng”), is the Company Secretary of the
Group. Ms. Ng is responsible for overseeing corporate governance,
regulatory compliance and investor relation. She has more than 25 years’
experience in finance, accounting and corporate secretarial functions. Ms.
Ng joined the Group in January 2018. Before joining the Group, Ms. Ng
was a company secretary of a company listed on the Stock Exchange
during 2013-2017, a financial controller and company secretary of a
company listed on the Stock Exchange during 2007-2013, and a qualified
accountant and company secretary of a company listed on the Stock
Exchange during 2006-2007.

Ms. Ng is a fellow member of Chartered Association of Certified Public
Accountants, and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Chartered Governance Institute, and the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEELIRSE

Introduction

The Company is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate
governance that properly protects and promotes the interests of its
shareholders.

The Company has applied the principles set out in the “Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended 31 March 2021,
the Company has complied with the code provisions set out in the CG
Code.

(A) The Board

The Board is responsible for overseeing the business and
strategies of the Group with the objective of enhancing value for its
shareholders. The Board determines business plans and budgets,
regularly reviews the Group’s financial performance and monitors the
Group’s management. To cultivate good governance, the Board also
reviews the Group’s operation and policies from time to time.
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(A) The Board (Continued)

36

U]

Board Composition

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each
Director having sound knowledge, experience and/or expertise
relevant to the business of the Group. The Board has on a
regular basis reviewed the composition of the Board and
the skills and experience required for both the executive and
non-executive Directors, in the context of the business and
strategies of the Group.

The composition of the Board as at 31 March 2021 and up to
the date of this annual report were as follows:

A EFT @)

@

ExgmEAS

EXEEROE MEREFHARA
AEBEBEAZEENH KBk
NEXENH - EFTERRAEEZER
RRBERENEFE 2 AEAGNE
ERITRIFNITEFRERZ ARG
Eo

AT —F=RB=+—HREEXF
RO - EEgMEMNMEEIT :

Names Positions

L B 187

Mr. Li Qing Executive Director

EE A HiTES

Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet Executive Director

BHFI L L WITE=SE

Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis Independent Non-executive Director
MELESLE BIFRTES

Mr. Hung Kin Man Independent Non-executive Director
BREERSE BUFRITES

Mr. Ho Man Independent Non-executive Director
It BIFRITES

Biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. None of the existing
members of the Board nor the senior management of the
Company is related to one another.
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(A) The Board (Continued)

(ii)

Board Meetings

Arrangements were in place to ensure that sufficient notice
and adequate information were given to each Director prior
to the Board meetings. The Company’s company secretary
and senior management assist the Directors in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensure that all applicable rules and
regulations are complied with. The Directors are able to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at
the Company’s expense in appropriate circumstances or upon
their request.

Minutes of Board and committees meetings were kept in
sufficient details to reflect the decisions made in the relevant
meetings and were available for inspection by the Directors.

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year.
Special meeting of the Board will be convened whenever
necessary. The Board has held four meetings during the year
under review. The table below sets out the number of meetings
of the Board and its committees, individual attendance by the
Board and committee members at these meetings and the
annual general meeting (the “AGM”) during the year under

review.

A EFT @)

(ii)
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(A) The Board (Continued)
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(ii)

A EFT @)

Board Meetings (Continued) iy EZggz: @
The attendance record of each Director at Board meetings held BUEEFRNZEETg T FEaizN
during the year is as follows: 1= =
Chairman and
Independent
Nomination Remuneration Audit Non-executive
Committee Committee Committee Directors
Name of Directors Board Meetings Meeting Meetings Meetings AGM Meeting'
TRR
3 RAERE HWERE ERZRE REBE BUFEHT
BEity g g 83 LE - fEdd
Number of meeting(s) attended/held
R/ BTEERY
Executive Directors HITES
M. Li Qing TERE 24 NATER NATER NATEF 171 NATEF
Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet BHlFI LT 4/4 1N 2/2 NARER 1 1N
Independent Non-executive Directors BIE4TES
Mr. Lam Chi Hung s 44 NATER 22 33 1 111
Mr. Hung Kin Man ERREE 3/4 11 NATER 33 0/ 111
Mr. Ho Man fg%E 4/4 17 2/2 33 17 17
Note: PE -
1. Code provision A.2.7 stipulates that the chairman of the Board (the 1. FRAMEFEATHRREEEGERE (T

“Chairman”) should at least annually hold meetings with the independent

non-executive directors without the presence of other directors. Since the

roles of the Company’s Chairman and chief executive officer have been
performed by the executive Directors on a collective basis, Ms. Au Hoi Lee

Janet served as role of Chairman to hold a meeting with the independent
non-executive Directors during the year. The Board believes that the

Company has complied with the code provision A.2.7.
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(A) The Board (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

During the year, the roles of the Company’s Chairman and
chief executive officer have been performed by the executive
Directors on a collective basis.

The Board believes that the aforesaid arrangement provided
the Company with flexibility and allowed for effective and
efficient planning and implementation of business decisions
and strategies. The Board also considers that the above-
mentioned arrangement did not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company. The Board will review the current practice from time
to time and make appropriate changes if necessary.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of the appointment, re-election
and removal of Directors are laid down in the Company’s
Articles of Association. In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association and the Listing Rules, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors, including those
appointed for a specific term, for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to, but not exceeding, one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation, provided that all the Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation no later than the third annual general
meeting of the Company after he/she was last elected or re-
elected. Besides, any new Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only
until the first general meeting after appointment and are eligible
for re-election. All retiring Directors are eligible for re-election by
the shareholders at the respective general meetings.

A EFT @)

(iii)

(iv)
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(A) The Board (Continued)

(iv)

v)

40

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
(Continued)

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed for an
initial term of two years, subject to retirement by rotation as
aforesaid.

Nomination Committee

A nomination committee was established by the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) with clear terms of reference. The
principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, a board diversity policy of
the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and a nomination
policy of the Company (the “Nomination Policy”) on a regular
basis, recommending any proposed changes to the Board for
approval, and assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee currently comprises an executive
Director, Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet, and two independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Hung Kin Man and Mr. Ho Man, with
Mr. Hung Kin Man acting as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

During the year, the work performed by the Nomination
Committee is summarized as follows:

- reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board;

- considered and recommended to the Board on the re-
election of the retiring Directors at the Company’s 2020
annual general meeting;
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(A) The Board (Continued)

v)

(vi)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

- assessed the independence of each independent non-
executive Director; and

- reviewed the terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Policy and the Board
Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year.
The attendance record of the members at the Nomination
Committee meeting is set out in the table under “The Board”
section.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy was adopted in January 2019. In
accordance with the Nomination Policy, the Nomination
Committee shall consider, among other things, the following
factors in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate:
(a) reputation for integrity; (b) qualifications, skills, experience
and independence that the candidate can bring to the Board
in all its aspects; (c) commitment in respect of sufficient time,
interest and attention to the Company’s business; and (d)
the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee has
discretion to nominate any person, as it considers appropriate.
Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary
personal information, together with their written consent to
be appointed as a director and to the public disclosure of
their personal data on any documents or relevant websites in
relation to their nomination or otherwise pursuant to applicable
legal and regulatory requirements. The Nomination Committee
may request candidates to provide additional information and
documents, if considered necessary. The Nomination Policy is
available on the website of the Company.

A EFT @)

v)

(vi)
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(A) The Board (Continued)

42

(vii) Board Diversity

The Company endeavours to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate balance of skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives that are required to support the
execution of its business strategy for sustainable and balanced
development.

The Board Diversity Policy was adopted in September 2013
and revised in January 2019. The Nomination Committee
is delegated the authority, amongst other things, to review
and assess the diversity of the Board and recommend
suitable candidate to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors. In designing the Board’s
composition, the Nomination Committee shall consider a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural, educational background, professional experience
and skills and shall also take into account factors based on
the Company’s own business model and specific needs. The
Nomination Committee shall review and assess the structure,
size, composition of the Board from time to time and make
recommendations to the Board for implementing diversity
with adequate consideration of the Board Diversity Policy as
appropriate.

The selection of candidates will be based on the Nomination
Policy and the Board Diversity Policy. The ultimate decision
shall be based on a merit basis against objective criteria and
contribution that the candidate will bring to the Board, with
due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board. The Board
Diversity Policy is available on the website of the Company.
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(A) The Board (Continued) A EFE @
(vi) Board Diversity (Continued) (i) EFEZE (@
The following chart shows the diversity profile of the Board as RN ZZEZ—F=F=+—H=
at 31 March 2021: EEFLTEER -

Number of Directors

VR
5 [ [
Female Over 60
% 605 £
4 —¢ Independent non-
executive Directors
5 | BuspcEs [
2 —] A
1 —] Executive Directors |1l
BITES
O JE— I
Gender Age Group Designation
1451 FEeAa R i 463y

Skills & Knowledge

BRI A

Real estate investment & fund management ' ' ’ 60%
BHERE RES B

Corporate management ’ ' ' ' 80%
hEER

Legal ' 20%
prE

Engineering ’ 20%
Ii2

Finance ' ' 40%
BT
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(A) The Board (Continued)

44

(viii) Responsibilities of Directors

(ix)

Each Director is required to keep abreast of his/her
responsibilities as a Director and each Director is provided
in a timely manner with appropriate information of the Group
to enable him/her to make an informed decision and to
discharge his/her duties and responsibilities as a Director.
On appointment, new Director will be given a comprehensive
induction to the Group’s business. Directors ensure that they
give sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs.
Appropriate insurance coverage in respect of legal action
against the Directors is arranged by the Company.

Directors’ and Relevant Employees’ Dealings in
Securities

The Company has adopted the model code for securities
transactions by directors of listed issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the
Company’s code of conduct for dealings in securities of the
Company by the Directors. In response to specific enquiries
by the Company, all the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 March 2021.

The Company has also established written guidelines and
adopted the Model Code (collectively, the “Guidelines”) to
govern securities transactions by employees who are likely
to possess inside information of the Company and/or its
securities. No incident of non-compliance with the Guidelines
by relevant employees was noted by the Company.

Magnus Concordia Group Limited Rt KEBRIZEIRAE]

A EFT @)

(vii) EEZEME

(ix)

BUESFHARD THREREFZE
U ERHREERAERZER
DEEERBZ BN MR REMETT
EREFZHENET MEEZEIZE
EREBREAEZANENEERZFE
B BEFHRAREFHERAEFTGTE
HRRBMET ANEMEERRESR
ZAERTHRBEERR-

EENAMEEETESRS

KATIESRM EARAIM B -FrEg M £
METABERETESTZIEESTR
(MRETR)) FREFETEARTE
HFRHMNTRTH - BEEAATFL
ZRPER EREFEIMENEE
TECH-A=+—HLEFE—HE
STREETRIFFE] 2 RERE

RABTRHIE B EHES M HRMIRE TR
(8 T45511) LURERIBEHEA AR
RNEHER REESZBREREET
ZHEHFERF  RABLEERE BRI
BEERIESIZE M-



Corporate Governance Report
TEELIRSE

(A) The Board (Continued)

()

(xi)

Independence of Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis, Mr.
Hung Kin Man and Mr. Ho Man, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company considers all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent in light of the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Training

According to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant. The Company should be responsible
for arranging and funding training, placing an appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of the Directors.
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(A) The Board (Continued) A EET @
(xi) Directors’ Training (Continued) (xi) EBEFZEI @)
During the year, the Company had arranged seminars and REE > ARBREEE 2 BE M
provided reading materials to the Directors that are relevant ARETHMT G RIRHEREER o L
to their duties and responsibilities. A summary of the training TARAEAAREIERESUES ZIFIIE
record of each Director received by the Company is as follows: PRI E
Attending Reading/
briefings/ studying
seminars/ training or
conferences/ other
forums materials
HEGSNE, B#ER 23
etg b H 14
Name of Directors EEUa g wiE H it
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Li Qing E=ERE v v
Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet BHFIZ+ v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIERITES
Mr. Lam Chi Hung MEESE v v
Mr. Hung Kin Man ERERLE v v
Mr. Ho Man A se & v v
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(B) Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

(U]

(ii)

(iii)

Remuneration Policy of Executive Directors and Senior
Management

The Group’s remuneration policy seeks to provide a fair market
remuneration so as to attract, retain and motivate high quality
staff. The Group will set levels of remuneration to ensure
comparability and competitiveness with companies competing
within a similar talent pool.

Fee Paid to Non-executive Directors

Each non-executive Director receives an annual fee of
HK$276,000. Such fees and the amounts of emolument of
the other Directors are determined by reference to their duties
and responsibilities within the Company, the remuneration
benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions.

Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee was established by the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”) with clear terms of reference
and is primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure
of all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration, on
the Company’s establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy, on the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior
management, and on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors. The Remuneration Committee performs an advisory
role to the Board with the Board retaining the final authority
to approve the remuneration packages of Directors and
senior management (i.e. the model (c)(ii) as stipulated in code
provision B.1.2(c) of the CG Code is adopted).

(B) EEREEEEASZHMN

(ii)

(iii)
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HITESEAREEBEEABZFHMK
&R

FERZHHNBRSKGTATZHE
#EN > LUBIE  REARIEBF 28T -
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Fo

XNFERITEREZHEE

BUIFNTESSFEEE276,000
B -AMEBRRHEMESNEH2E
RERERBDZHERBHUARENZ
HINRERIRITHEE

HWNEEE

XABIEMIUFNEE S (HFMEE
g1 KT EEBR BREE LS8
EXITEERANEERESASES
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(B) Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management (Continued)

438

(iii)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee comprises an executive
Director, Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet, and two independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis and Mr. Ho Man,
with Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis acting as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

During the year, the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee is summarized as follows:

- reviewed the remuneration package and the
supplemental service agreements of the executive
Directors and recommended to the Board for approval;
and

- reviewed the remuneration policy of the Group and the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during
the year. The attendance record of the members at the
Remuneration Committee meeting is set out in the table under
“The Board” section.
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(B) Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management (Continued)

(iv)

Remuneration of Senior Management

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 March 2021 is set out below:

(B) EEREEEEASZHMN

(ivy SEEEASHM

BEEEERTAIZTARNEBAS
HBE_Z_—F=B=+—HLHF
EsBEEASZ FEMEHER N

B
Number of
individuals
Remuneration band (HK$) 485 (Brc) A
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001 1,500,000 1
2,000,001 to 2,500,000 2,000,001%2,500,000 1

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended
31 March 2021 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(C) Accountability and Audit

U

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to
prepare the consolidated financial statements and to present
a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the
performance, position and prospects of the Group in the
interim and annual reports of the Group.

The responsibilities of the Company’s independent auditor for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group
is set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 158
to 165 of this annual report.

BE_Z_—HF=-B=+—HLFE"
BEFZNEFBENGEMHREM
5190

(C) MERE%

i) HMEERS
EFRBHALBRNAEATBRE
RERNZEEMBRE WA EE

ZREBE-RRKRAREZ2—HRE B
B Ko 2 E 2 5T

NNBVB LT E LA E B S
FIRFAEZ SEHPNEERF158E
1658 2 MBI Z AR o
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(C) Accountability and Audit

50

(ii)

Audit Committee

An audit committee was established by the Company (the
“Audit Committee”) with clear terms of reference. The principal
duties of the Audit Committee are reviewing the financial
information and reports of the Group and considering any
significant or unusual items raised by the financial officers
of the Group or independent auditor before submission to
the Board; reviewing and supervising the Group’s financial
reporting process and its financial control, risk management
and internal control systems, and reviewing the relationship
with and the terms of appointment of the independent auditor
and making relevant recommendation to the Board.

The current members of the Audit Committee are three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Ho Man, Mr. Lam Chi
Hung Louis and Mr. Hung Kin Man, with Mr. Ho Man acting as
the chairman of Audit Committee.

During the year, the work performed by the Audit Committee is
summarized as follows:

reviewed with the Directors and the auditor the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group;

S reviewed the financial control, risk management and
internal control systems and financial reporting process;

- reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
annual results announcement and annual report;

- reviewed the Group’s interim financial statements,
interim results announcement and interim report; and

- considered and recommended the re-appointment of the
independent auditor.
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EXEERRSE

(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

(i)  Audit Committee (Continued)

(iii)

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year. The

attendance record of the members at the Audit Committee

meetings is set out in the table under “The Board” section.

Risk Management and Internal Control

(@)

Responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks that the Group is willing
to take in achieving its strategic objectives; ensuing
that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control
systems; and overseeing management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of these systems.

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for
the risk management and internal control systems of
the Group and reviewing the systems’ effectiveness
to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’
interests. These risk management and internal control
systems can provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss; and
they are designed to manage, rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve the Group’s business objectives.

Management of the Group is responsible for designing,
implementing and monitoring the risk management and
internal control systems, and confirming to the Audit
Committee on the risk management and internal control
systems’ effectiveness.

(C) MEKRE% (@)

iy BZZEET @)
ERFEARRT=NEHE B

TZ% SENEZHELCHEN EFE)
TEREAC

m)ﬂﬂ

(i) RAREERANIPELE
@ E=TLEEEBES

Bt hEEAEERM
agixﬂlz RHO M R AR B LUE AL
REEER TRAEREREIL
ET—:LEE&EAZE’JHBAEEEEZ
NEERIERR  KEBEEE
RIRERET Eﬁﬂ&ﬁkgo

EFENTHEEFEENAR
EERANMEERS EZRMN
BB URIE R E B E E R
RAm-ZERBREERANEE
ERATHEHSIBEIFEHRR
HEREAERRAEER BRE
Efﬁ“ﬁ s IR R A E R EE
ERHEBERAER -

FEREEEEERBREERN
BERIERMBIRET B ER
Uk mEZEESHEDREKREE
BB R ARV B At o
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued) (C) MEREZ (1)

(i) Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued) (i) EREERAIBEEE (@)
(b)  Risk Management and Internal Control Governance () REBREERAIEZEEAESR
Framework

Audit Committee Board of Directors
EREES BEEY

e Support the Board in e Review the effectiveness of the e QOversee management in the design,

monitoring the design and
operating effectiveness of
the risk management and
internal control systems
THRHEEFRHEERREIE
B R B R AR 5T A
EEMM

risk management and internal
control systems and have overall
responsibilities for these systems
FRAREERABEIERFNE
MIHZERKELE

e Share experience and provide direction
on determining the key risks (at
corporate level) and their mitigation
measures
REEXZZRR RNABREHE RERE
RRBEER > R = LR RIRHIEE

implementation, and monitoring of the

risk management and internal control

systems

ﬁg‘mfiﬂﬁAMiE&WﬁB?ﬁ%.,ﬁE’J
SRt B EER

Internal Audit
A B E X

e Have an internal audit
function of the Group

Management
EEE

52

[ S A o @
REERELREE gﬁ e Design, implement and monitor risk e Monitor risk management practices m}%
Perform reviews to evaluate gg management and internal control and internal control activities ;g
the effectiveness of the risk 2 systems B m G B IR e S <

. o R EIRIB A R R EDEERES)

management and internal EE 5t B R B R AR EE RN - - B g-;
control systems 8y iy oy e Provide a confirmation to the Board &rg

L1 . . =
BRI ERAREERAN g  Develop risk management policy and on the effectiveness of the risk ﬂbg
ERESIE R AR B RO = procedures management and internal control =

|

Provide regular reports HIs] B EE BN R S o systems
(including monthly progress * Provide guidelines on performing risk HMEEFERERMEERABEIZR
Update repOrtS) to the Audit assessment and control activities f?}fﬁ?ﬂl’ﬁ E,‘JEE;Ei

Committee

TR AtET AT R B EERI1E5]

THRBIZEE RS e |dentify key risks, assess their
(BESAEE TSR respective impact and likelihood
) of occurrence, and determine

corresponding mitigation actions

AR ETERE TERENEETLE
Fe 8% 4= Y BT AEME » 1 7 7E 4B B BV PR

EBRTTE

o |dentify, assess and mitigate risks
Al ~ ST R FEE R B
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

(iii)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

(©

Three Lines of Defence Model

The Board and management of the Group rely on
the adequate line functions, including monitoring and
assurance functions within the Group to ensure the
effectiveness of its risk management and internal
control systems. The Group adopts a ‘Three Lines of
Defence’ model to shield against risks that threaten
the achievement of the Group’s goals, and as a way of
explaining the relationship between these functions, as
illustrated below:

o The first line of defence is provided by the
business units/teams who own and practise the
internal controls on a day-to-day basis;

° The second line of defence is provided by the
risk management and other oversight functions
that assist the Group to monitor the first line of
defence; and

° The third line of defence is provided by the internal
audit function, which is responsible for providing
independent assurance to the Group.

(C) MEKRE% (@)

(i) EREERAIBEEE @)

© Z=EMZERX

FEREEEREEBKEES
AYERFIESE (B A E BN ERE
BRAHERAE UREREEEN
R EERAEEIEREEY
MHoAEERAZENHI ER
DUEERE R AEEERERN
LRz > W LUT PR R s BR 22 S

BERIREA :

E—EHRBEATEER
ERREIERIREFEQ
/BB

FEEMBERRERER
HhEs B aER it 2
FEMMAEREEZES -8
e 5 K

B EAR BB E R
pEfRM B AE B EmAE
EiR BRI IR ©
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

(iii)

1st Line of Defence
H—ERAR

Internal Controls

54

Self Assurance

(C) FEREX (R)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued) (iii)

(¢)  Three Lines of Defence Model (Continued)

Board of Directors

=g

Audit Committee

Senior Management

SREEAE

2" Line of Defence
EBEHRR

Risk Management

EEAA S R ER

Other Oversight
Function

HAib B EmRae

Al
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EREEE
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

(iii)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

©)

Risk Management

The Board has established an enterprise risk
management (‘ERM”) framework with reference to
the key principles of the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations (“COSQ”) of the Treadway Commission
ERM framework, “Enterprise Risk Management —
Integrating with Strategy and Performance” published
in 2017. The Group’s ERM framework includes the
following key features:

Risk Governance Structure

The Group’s risk governance structure comprises
day-to-day operational management and control,
risk and compliance oversight. The Group has
developed a risk management policy, which
outlines the principles and procedures for the
Group to manage its risks and clearly defines
roles and responsibilities of each of the multiple
layers of the structure, including the Board, the
Audit Committee, department heads, employees
at operational levels and the internal audit
department, in order to achieve the Group’s
strategic and operational goals and objectives.

(C) MEREZ (@)
(i) EREERAIBEEE @)
o REEE

EEEE2%FCommittee
of Sponsoring Organizations
(FCOSOJ) of the Treadway
Commissionfit — & —t F B R
rERRER ((hERREER)
HEZRM F E R A P32 7 B —
BB FIEIEE S IR T %
EREERER AERNTER
I EEEREE T FEI58E .

- ERELARE

FEBENRBRELARER
EHEREEEERER
REkEHRES -~EED
HlE] B EEHER > &b
ETAEEREERBAE
AR A2R  BRFESR E R B
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CERFIEE R EERER
ERANEBESER) S
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

(iii)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)
(d)  Risk Management (Continued)

Risk Management Process

A robust risk management process is developed

to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks,
as shown in the diagram below:

1
Identify 3 31

5

Monitor & Report
EERER

® Perform ongoing monitoring of
risks
ETRERRER

e Consolidate the results of the
risk assessment; and establish
a detailed action plan
RO BB EER ; REIETE
RITHE

* Report to management & the
Audit Committee
REEEREZZERER

Process
B % EERE

4

Respond FE¥
® Select an appropriate risk treatment for
identified key risks
ENAERRERIESE LG T 2R
* Design, evaluate and implement controls
on the identified risks
HE MR RBREIET T E R BHEEE

® |dentify the risks faced by the Group
R A EEE R R

Risk Management

Prioritise key risks and validate
top risks
HEBRBETERIF R

me

REE AR

(C) MERE% (&)
(i) AR EER A ()

R EIE ()

(d)

[P IR

FEBRERYREIER
BB FHERE
EEXRER B

2

Assess T
* Analyse the identified risks based
on two dimensions: potential impact
and likelihood of occurrence
BEMEAESNTE#NER &
EREBRBEENAIREN

3

Prioritise 2 )X BEFF

Risk Management Process

E R E IR

56

Magnus Concordia Group Limited FiXEERIGBRAE



Corporate Governance Report

EXEERRSE

(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued) (C) MEREZ @

R EE RN EE (&)

(iii) Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued) (iii)

(d)  Risk Management (Continued) o REEE @)

Risk Management Process (Continued)

Risk Management Process

During the year, the Group conducted risk
assessments at both corporate and business
process levels which include its principal
activities (the manufacturing and trading of
printed products, property investment, property
development and treasury businesses). It also
maintains a risk register that contains information
of key risks, the potential consequences, the
likelihood of occurrence, impact and overall risk
rating. Risk owners will execute risk mitigation
actions and respond to their assigned risks in the
risk register based on the Board'’s risk tolerance.

The Group has developed a process to identify
and report any new or emerging risks in the
monthly management reports. In addition, any
update on the risk management would be
reported and discussed in the Audit Committee
meetings, in order to effectively monitor and keep
track of the key risks identified at corporate level.

On an annual basis, the risks in the risk register
are re-evaluated, with consideration of potential
new or emerging risks. Depending on the changes
in circumstances and the external environment,
the Group’s risk tolerance levels and risk
responses would be adjusted accordingly.
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued) (C) MEREZ (1)

(il Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued) (i) EPREERAIBEEE (@)
(e) Internal Control ) MBPEEEE

The Group has implemented an internal control system AEME T LECOSOE I A EL
with reference to the key principles of the Internal Control B IRaEENEERAIETT
— Integrated Framework established by the COSO. The ABEZERR - AEBRNIERE
main features and components of the Group’s internal AENETERMNRARIS DT
control system are represented in the following diagram. EEIM

1

Control Environment

EIRRE

5 2

Objectives:

Monitoring Activities BE : Risk Assessment
EEEH e Operations BB R
=}
e Reporting
E=

e Compliance

B

4

Information and

3

Control Activities

BEEEE

Communication
ERRBER

Internal Control Framework
N EBERIEIELR
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

(iii)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

©)

Internal Control (Continued)

Internal Control Framework

For the residential property development business in
Zigong City, Sichuan Province, the People’s Republic of
China, the Group engaged an external advisory service
provider with specific in-depth industry knowledge and
experience to conduct internal control reviews of the
core business processes. The external advisory service
provider supported management to conduct the control
self-assessment on certain key property business
processes and to perform follow-up reviews on internal
controls so as to assess if the identified issues have
been rectified.

The Group has an internal audit function. The head of
the internal audit department leads the internal audit
function and performs independent reviews of key
business processes of the Group. The internal audit
plan of the Group adopts a risk-based approach, which
is approved by the Audit Committee annually with
an objective to assess the adequacy, effectiveness,
efficiency and reliability of internal control procedures
over financial, operational and compliance activities
of the Group. The internal audit department reports
the results of the independent reviews together with
the recommended remedial actions, in the form of
internal audit reports, directly to the Audit Committee
on a regular basis. Follow-up reviews are performed
by the internal audit department, in order to verify that
the identified issues have been remediated in a timely
manner.

(C) MEREZ @

(iii)
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

60

(iii)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

©)

Internal Control (Continued)

During the year, the internal audit department conducted
reviews and reported the status of implementation of
remedial actions on control deficiencies, e.g. through
monthly progress update reports provided to the Audit
Committee. Relevant recommendations reported by
the internal audit department will be implemented by
management to enhance the Group’s internal controls,
and to resolve material internal control deficiencies in a
timely manner.

Inside Information

In compliance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”, Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
the Listing Rules, the Group has developed an inside
information disclosure policy and internal controls for
handling and dissemination of inside information to
ensure consistent and timely disclosure, and fulfiment
of the Group’s disclosure obligations. The Group
has also established and implemented procedures
to guide its employees on how to report and handle
inside information, and strictly prohibit them from any
unauthorized use of inside information.
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

(iii)

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued)

)

Whistleblowing Policy

The Group is committed to the highest possible
standards of openness, probity and accountability. Anti-
bribery and anti-corruption standards are important parts
of the Group’s policies and operating practices. In line
with this commitment, the Group has its whistleblowing
policy which the employees and other stakeholders
of the Company can raise concerns, in confidence
or anonymously, about any suspected misconduct or
malpractice within the Company. A designated email
account and a dedicated hotline have been set up for

this purpose.

Review of Systems Effectiveness

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted
an annual review of the effectiveness and adequacy
of the risk management and internal control systems
by reviewing the work performed by the internal audit
department and the external advisory service provider
for the year ended 31 March 2021. The review covered
all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls, and risk management functions.
The scope and quality of ongoing monitoring of risks
and the internal control system have been assessed.
The changes in the nature and extent of significant risks
faced by the Group and response plans have been
evaluated.

Management has conducted control self-assessment
on the core business processes annually and the Board
has received a confirmation from management on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, and considered that the risk
management and internal control systems are effective
and adequate.

(C) MEREZ @

(iii)
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(C) Accountability and Audit (Continued)

(iii) Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued) (iii)

(C) MEKRE% (@)

(h)  Review of Systems Effectiveness (Continued) (h)

During the review, the Board also assessed and was

satisfied with the adequacy of the resources, employee

qualifications and experience, training programmes and

budget of the Group’s accounting, financial reporting

and internal audit function. Qualified individuals of the

Group maintain and monitor these internal control

procedures on an ongoing basis.

The Board is satisfied that the Group has fully complied

with the code provisions under principle C.2 of the CG

Code regarding risk management and internal control for

the year ended 31 March 2021.

(iv) Independent Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid or payable to the
independent auditor, Ernst & Young, is set out as follows:

R EE RS (&)

ERAMBERE (R

RERF EFGHTERER
FEBNG  MBRSRAE
BERZBENER  BTERKRK
B EIst B RRE L REM A
SEENEERNREERBER K

EBZENEEERT -

EZEEMAEEREECZS
T—F=ZRA=+—HIFEZ®A
BEThEEARTRIEC2AKIEBTE
& B B 1 S R BB BE R RV ST AU AR
Xc

(iv) WUz ZME

RAFE BN HEMTEIZBENZ
KEEEIEBRZ MM T

HK$’000

Services rendered PRI (H AR5 FHET

Audit and audit related services B2 B AR RS 1,980

Non-audit services IEBIZARTS

Review of interim condensed ERPRBPBREBERE

consolidated financial statements 600

Tax advisory services RSB ARTS 30

Others HAh 105

2,715
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(D) Delegation by the Board

(U]

(ii)

Board Committee

The Company has established three committees, namely
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, and Remuneration
Committee. These committees were formed with specific
clear written terms of reference which deal clearly with the
committees’ authorities and duties.

Management Function

The Board has determined which matters are to be retained by
the full Board sanction and which matters are to be delegated
to the executive management. The executive management
are delegated the authority and responsibilities by the Board
for the day-to-day management and operation of the Group,
while the Board reserves for its decision on all major matters
of the Company, including the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. The executive management
has been given clear terms of reference, in particular,
circumstances where the executive management should report
to and obtain prior approval from the Board. All delegations to
the executive management are reviewed periodically to ensure
that they remain appropriate.

(D) EFgZiRE

U]

(ii)
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EXERRSE

(E)

(F)

(G)

64

Corporate Governance

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties which include reviewing and developing the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices; reviewing and
monitoring (a) the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management, (b) the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
and (c) the compliance with the Model Code; and reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the

Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed and performed the
abovementioned corporate governance duties.

Company Secretary

Ms. Ng Yee Man Fiona is an employee of the Company and she
confirmed that she has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year under review in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Dividend Policy

The Board adopted a dividend policy for the Company which took
effect from January 2019. In general, the Company intends to
provide shareholders with semi-annual or annual dividends, and to
declare special dividends from time to time. In deciding whether to
propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the
Board will take into account the Company’s earnings performance,
financial position, investment requirements and future prospects.
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(G)

(H)

Dividend Policy (Continued)

The Board will also take into account the prevailing market conditions
and global economic situation. The dividend payout ratio, would be
calculated based on certain per cent of the net profit recorded during
the financial year, after retaining a sufficient fund as capital for future
investment opportunities, future use; and all possible investment have
been financed. The dividend policy will continue to be reviewed from
time to time and there can be assurance that dividends will be paid in
any particular amount for any given period.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restriction under the
laws of Hong Kong, the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Articles
of Association of the Company.

Communication with Shareholders and Investor
Relations

The Company has established a shareholders communication
policy with the objectives of enabling its shareholders and investors
to exercise their rights in an informed manner and to allow the
shareholders, investors and the investment communities to engage
actively with the Company. The Board has the responsibility to review
the policy regularly to ensure its effectiveness.

(i) General Meetings

The Board regards general meetings as the principal
opportunity to communicate with shareholders of the
Company. During the year, the Company has held an annual
general meeting.

The attendance records of each Director at the general
meeting is set out in the table under “The Board” section.

(G)

(H)

iz SR (48)
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(H) Communication with Shareholders and Investor
Relations (Continued)

66

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Significant Issues

The Company has ensured that any significant issues would be
dealt with at general meetings and be proposed as a separate
resolution.

Voting by Poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, votes of
shareholders at all general meetings of the Company
have been taken by poll and results of the poll have been
announced in accordance with the procedures prescribed
under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

Corporate Documents Available on the Websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange

The Company has placed the announcements, circulars,
annual/interim reports, notices of general meetings and other
information of the Company as required by the Listing Rules on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Shareholders’ Enquires

Shareholders of the Company may direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong and all other questions to the Board. Details have
been published on the website of the Company.
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0

Shareholders’ Rights

(U]

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 72 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, an extraordinary general meeting may be convened
on the written requisition of any two or more shareholders of
the Company deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong at Units D&E, 20 Floor, China Overseas Building,
139 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or, in the event
the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands, specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. General meetings may also be
convened on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognized clearing house (or its
nominee) deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong at Units D&E, 20 Floor, China Overseas Building,
139 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or, in the event
the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist,
provided that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up share
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not within
21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed
duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting
in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.
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638

Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders of the Company will have the opportunity to pose
questions to the Board at general meetings. Shareholders of
the Company may also make enquiries to the Board in writing.
Such enquiries shall be directed to “The Board of Directors,
Magnus Concordia Group Limited” by one of the following
means:

° By mail to

HHE BB BT BB 1395 R EIEINKE20MEDKREE
° By email to . mcg-board@mcgrouphk.com

BHE

e  Byfacsimieto : (852) 2160 3080
BEZE

The Board will respond promptly to proper enquiries raised by
shareholders.

Putting forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

(@  Shareholders may put forward proposals relating
to the election of Directors at general meetings as
follows:

- Pursuant to Article 120 of the Articles of
Association of the Company, a shareholder
or shareholders (not being the person to be
proposed) who holds or collectively hold not less
than 5% in nominal value of the issued shares of
any class of the Company may propose a person
for election as a Director at any general meeting
of the Company by giving a notice in writing to the
secretary of the Company:

o of his/her/their intention to propose such
person for election; and

° signed by the person to be proposed of his/
her willingness to be elected.

Magnus Concordia Group Limited Rt KEBRIZEIRAE]
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(I) Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

(iii) Putting forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings
(Continued)

@

Shareholders may put forward proposals relating
to the election of Directors at general meetings as
follows: (Continued)

— The period for lodgement of such a written notice
will commence no earlier than the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting
and end no later than seven (7) days prior to the
date of such general meeting. If the notice is
received less than fifteen (15) business days prior
to that general meeting, the Company will need
to consider adjournment of the general meeting in
order to (i) assess the suitability of the proposed
candidate; and (i) publish an announcement or
circulate a supplementary circular in relation to
the proposal to the shareholders at least fourteen
(14) clear days and not less than ten (10) business
days prior to the general meeting.

— Any notice given for such proposal must include
such person’s information as may from time
to time be required to be disclosed under Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules in the event that
such person is elected as a Director or any other
applicable laws, rules and regulations which
the Company may be subject to. Currently, the
following information are required:

o Full name and age;

° Positions held with the Company and other
members of the Group (if any);

0

AR ERTEF (38)
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

(iii)

Putting forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

(Continued)

(@  Shareholders may put forward proposals relating

to the election of Directors at general meetings as

follows: (Continued)

Experience including (i) other directorships
held in the last three years in public
companies the securities of which are listed
on any securities market in Hong Kong or
overseas, and (i) other major appointments
and professional qualifications;

Length or proposed length of service with
the Company;

Relationships with any Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company;

His/her interests in shares of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO;

Amount of the Director’'s emoluments and
the basis of determining the Director’s
emoluments and how much of these
emoluments are covered by a service
contract; and

Magnus Concordia Group Limited FiXEERIGBRAE
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Shareholders’ Rights (Continued)

(iii)

Putting forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

(Continued)

@

Shareholders may put forward proposals relating
to the election of Directors at general meetings as
follows: (Continued)

A declaration by the nominated person
stating that he/she is not and has not been
subject to any of the events provided for
under Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (w) of the Listing
Rules, or if any one or more of these
provisions are applicable to him/her, full
details thereof.

Any notice given for this purpose shall be directed
to “The Company Secretary, Magnus Concordia
Group Limited” by one of the following means:

° By mail to
Hong Kong
MHE

° By email to
MHE

: mcg-board@mcgrouphk.com

° By facsimile to : (852) 2160 3080
BEE

Any such shareholder(s) shall be one(s) that is/
are entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given.

) M=R#EF (@)
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N LER
TEER/RREE
() Shareholders’ Rights (Continued) () BREEHEF (@)
(iii)  Putting forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings (i) MHREARELREH:=E @

(Continued)

(b)  To propose to put forward any other proposals at (o) TRKREAZ LREMFEMAEM
shareholders’ meeting, and for questions relating to FEABERKRREAT LIRS
putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings, sz MEMS REAEB
shareholders could direct all such enquiries/proposals T EHA—IBREUE MR
in writing to “The Board of Directors, Magnus BEZERE/EEEETH
Concordia Group Limited” by one of the following AXEERNDBRABZESR
means: gl
e By mail to . Units D&E, 20 Floor, China Overseas Building, 139 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

prife ey BB EFHEFE1395 T EEINKE20IEDKREE
e By email to . mcg-board@mcgrouphk.com
BEE
e By facsimileto : (852) 2160 3080
BEZE
(J) Amendments to Constitutional Documents () BEBEEXHFZ1EET

72

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its Memorandum and Articles of Association. An up-to-
date version of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. Shareholders may refer to the Company’s Memorandum
and Articles of Association for further details of the rights of
shareholders.
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About this Report

Magnus Concordia Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively known as the “Group” or “we”) are pleased to present our
fifth Environmental, Social and Governance (‘ESG”) report. By reporting
the policies, measures and performances of the Group in ESG aspects,
we ensure all stakeholders can fully understand our commitments and
progress towards sustainable development.

Reporting boundary

This ESG report covers the period from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 (the
“Year”).

This ESG report includes general disclosures for both property businesses,
including property development business and property investment business
and printing business. The key performance indicators (“KPIs”), unless
otherwise specified, cover the Group’s headquarters in Hong Kong and two
key operating subsidiaries — Zigong Zhongzhi Cultural Tourism Investment
Co., Ltd and Guangdong Boluo Yuanzhou Midas Printing Limited.

Reporting standards

The content of this ESG report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (‘ESG Reporting
Guide”) set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). For details of our corporate governance,
please refer to the Corporate Governance Report included in this annual
report.
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About this Report (Continued)
Reporting principles

We applied the principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and
consistency in preparing this ESG report, as detailed in the table below.

Principles’

A

R A®RE (B)
wmERA

HARBREARE HERELABRSHRAER
M B0 T —BERR SR N RPR

The Group’s response

EmpoEFE

Materiality

EEMN

Quantitative

The threshold at which ESG issues determined by the
board are sufficiently important to investors and other
stakeholders that they should be reported.
EEFSECAHRE HENEAEETHREER
HMFHEELEZXER 1T ARBELER-

KPIs in respect of historical data need to be measurable.
The issuer should set targets (which may be actual
numerical figures or directional, forward-looking
statements) to reduce a particular impact. In this way the
effectiveness of ESG policies and management systems
can be evaluated and validated. Quantitative information
should be accompanied by a narrative, explaining its
purpose, impacts, and giving comparative data where
appropriate.
BERE S BBENRARENISEET T8 817 AEET
TRAERFENBEIE FIUSEREBFTH A MM Al
BMNER) B RE-HEREARRREERR
B4 5 BT 42 5T A A B a8 o L B R B A5 5R BA » Mt E
BN RS WEEENER MM bR e -

i The definitions of materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency are quoted from the 1
ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

We determine material ESG issues by
stakeholder engagement and materiality
assessment.

EMBEeFNESENEEN T GRETE
ENRFE L EREREE

We state environmental KPIs and certain
social KPIs on a quantitative basis and provide
comparative data where appropriate.

RFIE RER T BIE S AN RENIEER
ETHESENRRANEE LEEEE
R T haRER

22 81T —BMRINEERE LHRAMNER
-+ Err#E(ESGIR E1E5) ©
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About this Report (Continued)

Reporting principles (Continued)

Principles’
A

R A®RS (B)
wERA (&)

The Group’s response

E@mpEfE

Balance

T

Consistency

—H%

The ESG report should provide an unbiased picture of
the issuer’s performance. The ESG report should avoid
selections, omissions, or presentation formats that may
inappropriately influence a decision or judgement by the
report reader.
RIE-HEEEAREEETRTIFAMBZREITANER
I SR TR g T Ie B M B BT RBIHERYE
B ERAERE -

The issuer should use consistent methodology to allow for
meaningful comparisons of ESG data over time.

ETANEER—RRERSHE QR HLERE
AEMBRIIFEERMNLER.

This ESG report provides an unbiased picture
of our environmental and social performance.

FRE-HERELGRSTRIAEHERT
RFRENAE S ENERR

The methodology for preparing the ESG report
is well defined. The scope of the ESG report
is the same as that of the prior year's ESG
report.

HFERE - HEREARENAEIERER
RE ARBFE - HEREARSTHEE F—
FREF-B UEFHEUHRBEERER
FLH&-

Opinion and feedback

We greatly value the suggestions from our stakeholders and encourage

readers to contact us through the following contact information. Your

suggestions will help us further improve our reporting and enhance the

overall sustainable performance of the Group.

Address:

Phone:
Fax:

Units D & E, 20 Floor, China Overseas Building,
139 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(852) 2160 3088

(852) 2160 3080

i The definitions of materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency are quoted from the
ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.
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IRIE - HERERERS

ESG Governance

The Group always attaches great importance to ESG performance,
promises efforts to create positive impacts on the environment and the
community in the development of our business, and is committed to
creating value for stakeholders. In order to effectively achieve sustainable
development, the board of directors (the “Board”) incorporates ESG-related
elements into strategic planning and operation management to achieve a
sustainable business model.

A strong governance framework is crucial for the successful delivery of
our sustainability strategy. The Board is responsible for the development
of sustainability strategies and management policies, and regularly reviews
and assesses the Group’s work progress in corporate responsibility,
sustainable development and climate change. The Board continuously
monitors and listens to the work progress reports of senior management
to ensure the ESG risk management and internal control systems are well-
functioned. The Board is also responsible for the final review and approval
of the information disclosed in this ESG report before publication to ensure
its accuracy and timeliness.

At the operational level, the senior management and heads of business
departments regularly assess the ESG-related risks in daily operation in
accordance with the requirements of the Board, develops and executes
ESG-related management measures to respond to risks and seize
opportunities.

RIg-tERER

FEE-EERRE - HEREALENKRE K
AEEBERBETRBEHRENTENEGSY
B RNIRFNERLEBE RENERAIFEHR
BE5%g (E59) RRE - HEREAHEMTE
RATEERERESEEREFR UENFENS
FRo

F== N2y u]

REFNEARBHNBERAMNIREERREE
HEZ -EFEEEHERELRBBRMNEER
REHOREANGAERTEESE AIRFER
RERBSEHTENIFER EFEREBEEYT
RINSENIFER BRRE HERELAR
BERABEERARNAENET EFSFARRE
BRNEHER TARE HEREAREEX
A BEZNRE A RERRENIRENER >
RERBE - HERELGBREABTNERENREH
R o

FRTHE sREBEEREEBHFIEENEKE
EFENER EHFALEEMIRNRE LS
REBRRE GIERPITRE - HEREREMRE
BN SRR RS RIS

ESG Concept IRiZE - 1t & &

N
5N

2N
(==

i

ESG Management Strategies
IR EREREEREK

ER=N=)

e Environmental Friendliness 4 A& & i

R

O =5

¢ Refined Product Quality m =&
e Business Integrity E 2=

e Caring for Employees BAZ & T

=]

e Social Contribution & S &k

ESG Management Structure
IRIB- G RERRE

B /a7=
Board of Directors =& &

v

Senior Management & Heads of Business Departments

SREERRSEBHPIREA

A 4
All Employees FrEE T

ESG Report IRiE (1 B R EARE

Stakeholder Engagement 1515 & 2 i
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IR - HERERRS

Stakeholder engagement

The Group attaches great importance to stakeholder engagement and

establishes various communication channels to gather our stakeholders’

opinions and suggestions on our development strategy and social

responsibility performance, and maintains a close relationship with our

stakeholders. Our core stakeholders include customers, employees,

suppliers, investors and shareholders, regulators and communities.

Stakeholder Groups Key Concerns

FipEeRe FAEER,

Customers Product and service quality

R EmERBEmE
Customer rights protection
HREmiRE

Employees

=]

Handling of customer complaints

FRHFERIE

Employee remuneration and benefits

B T #rhi B s@ A

Occupational health and safety
WEEREZS

Protection of employees’ legitimate rights
and interests

REETL R AT

Training and career development
B

Corporate culture

XX
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FEEERFNENSE BUSBEBRE I
EXFHEHRMNERRB AT EEETRIES
HNRRERS WRARSHERFE B - HM
RZORREREER VEE HER REERR
RBEERENTE-

Communication Channels

BRERE

e Business visits
[EECEET]

e Regular meetings
EH =

e E-mail and telephone
BT HAHRES

e Employee activities
BTEH

e Employee performance appraisals
BTEMEZ

e Employee training
BT

* Internal meetings and notices
NE S E RS

e Social media communication platform
HRIEREETS
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IRIR - HERERRS

Stakeholder engagement (Continued)

Stakeholder Groups
Frin & B

Suppliers
HRER

Investors and
Shareholders

REERRKRE

Regulators

EEME

Communities

HE

Key Concerns

RAEERS

e Supplier management and requirements
YIRHEER B R E K

e State of operations
KER R

e Sustainable supply chain management
AR R R B IR

e Financial performance disclosure
M RITINEE

e Corporate transparency
REVBRE

e Protection of rights and interests
EmRiE

e Compliance with laws and regulations
aBEER

e Corporate governance
tEER

e Social welfare engagement
S2HEME AT

e Support community development

XFEHtE#ERE

FRESHR (@

Communication Channels

BEERE

e Business visits
(k=]

e Liaison through email and telephone
EBEFBMREEESHE

e Meetings
=E

e Information disclosed on the website of the
Company and The Stock Exchange
RARR B RS PR B2 E R

e General meetings and other shareholders
meetings
BHEREARS REMKRREE

e Periodic report
TE HA ER ER

e Compliance inspection
aBRE

e Community activities
& EE)
e Company website

R /NSIE b
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Materiality assessment of ESG issues

The Group recognises the importance of the key issues concerned by the
stakeholders. In this Year, we conducted a survey on the materiality of ESG
issues through online questionnaires and face-to-face interviews with the
stakeholders to understand the importance attached by various stakeholder
groups to ESG issues. In this way, the Group identified the key issues to
be reported to respond to their concerns and expectations in an effective
manner.

The process of materiality assessment on substantive ESG issues for this
Year is as follows:

RIg- 1t EREGRZEEEZMNTL

FERDHIFNEMINFARBDENEZ S
KEE > RFIEBE LBERALFTFNEDHNT
AHRE - HERELGREERMETRE TH
BERMERBHNIRR HEARELAEENERRE
E-BBEREAN AEEH#A T ZERNEEZSR
B AR OEFHENRTERE-

rEEEEURE - HEREREREEZHTEN
A2

Identifying issues % 5!:% 8

‘

By taking into consideration of the Group’s business development in this Year, and with reference to national policies, industry

developments and the disclosure requirements in the ESG Reporting Guide, we identify ESG issues in four aspects, namely,

environment, employment and labour practices, operation management and community investment.

REFERAMEEFEREL GEERBR TEHEKR(ESGHREEIDHREZR RMAHHRE - BEKFTE

REEEERMEREMERBNRE - HEREREE

Conducting surveys #E{T:E%E

%
N
|
e
I
[

We invite internal and external stakeholders to participate in the survey through anonymous online questionnaires to collect

scores on the ESG issues, as well as their comments, suggestions and expectations on the Group’s environmental and social

policies, practices and performance.

HPIBFERINEFHEBEICRBEBENTASEBE  WEHIRE L ERERZENTD  URHEERIRER

HEREER BRREMRRNTE EENHE-

Determining materiality = & & Z 14

|¢

We divide stakeholders into internal and external groups, and the priority of issues is determined based on the matrix materiality
assessment reflecting their average scores. Management of the Group reviews the results of the materiality analysis and the
opinions of stakeholders and determines the key issues to be disclosed this Year, which also serve as the basis for setting ESG
management objectives for the next year.

FPIR R E D AR E RN O EMER > REBESBETETENEEUTLER  REZEH T AEEEIEE
BERBEUDMTERNFNERR REAVERBRR WERRE T —FERE - HEREREEBERENKE
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Materiality assessment of ESG issues (Continued) R -H EREALAEZEEEM TG
€=)
The results of materiality assessment in this Year are as follows: AEESEMTEERUWT :

High T

=

08 ®
(19)
@%ﬁ
@ 18
0 04 14
®
(02)

HRAREEMS

£
Im

HFz

Materiality to stakeholders

V

7
Middle Materiality to business development ngh
HEBERNEEMN =
Environment . Employment Qperation . Community
IRIB =4 BE &
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Materiality assessment of ESG issues (Continued) RIF-H EREALEZEETEM TG
¢=))

Emission and waste management

P e BE Y B 1R
Efficiency on usage of water resources
IKEIRE AR e
Environment Energy consumption efficiency

B BIRERAM S
Green operation and environmental conservation
HBEEEHRIRIERE
Climate change and greenhouse gas emission
RIRE L ER ERBHEN
Employee management
BTEKER
Employee remuneration and benefits
BT EET
Employment Occupational health and safety

&R HEERARZS
Employee training and development
BTEIIHRER
Protection of employees’ rights and interests
BT D RE
Use of environment-friendly products and services
IRIRE m B AR
Supply chain environmental and social risk management
HERREET R REE
Construction and printing quality management
EEEp mEEE
Customer health and safety
ERERARZR
Operation Protection of intellectual property rights

wiE A 58 o (RIS RN 38 EE 1

Marketing and promotion compliance
AREHETE
Customer service and satisfaction
ERRBREE
Customer security and privacy protection
EREREKRETARE
Anti-corruption management and training
REFEEEE
Participation in community investment
2t REE
Community Charity and Public warfare

HE RERDE
Community concern and communication

HEERERBR

Note: The issues above in bold font are classified as “highly important” issues. 3 UEIEEEARSATEEEE SERIMNEE
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Materiality assessment of ESG issues (Continued)

As indicated by the results of the materiality assessment, the most
concerning issues for various stakeholder groups this Year are construction
and printing quality management, employee management, customer
service and satisfaction, occupational health and safety and protection of
employee rights and interests.

The Group promises to place product quality and customer demands as
a priority, and endeavours to improve product quality control and build up
the capabilities in service management, innovation and integrity monitoring,
so as to safeguard the interests of customers, partners and other core
stakeholders. In addition, the Group pays close attention to employee
management. As a responsible employer, we are committed to providing a
healthy and safe working environment for employees, and protecting their
rights and interests.

Based on the materiality assessment results, the Group highlights the
disclosure of such issues in the ESG report and further optimises the
subsequent ESG work plan.

Environment

The Group is committed to playing an active role in the sustainable
development of the environment, and adopting environmentally-friendly
practices in daily operations. The Group acts in strict compliance with the
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China ({FHZ& A

HAMERIZEFRZ L)), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution ((fF# A B XA AR5
2[5585%)), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Solid Waste Pollution ((FREE A R HANEE FERE =Y 5 2R
IRIEBHIAE)) and other local laws and regulations to ensure the proper
treatment of wastewater, exhaust gas, solid waste and other pollutants, and
the efficient use of energy and resources to prevent adverse impacts on the
natural environment.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations regarding air and greenhouse gas emissions, water
and land discharges and hazardous and non-hazardous waste generation
that had a significant impact on the Group during this Year.

IR ER
(&)

WBEUTEERMI~ A FE SFMHEHER
SRNEEOEEREONAEEE - BETEKE
B -ZEAREAERE BEEREAZE BTHERRF
f& o

EAREEEMTMG

REBMAHEURBERERBRRL WHRAER
mE S MR EIRRE D U IR F AR AE ST
RMEEZER SIFBHEZERRNENNZ -F
B AEESERIBSTEBNEE RNRET
RUEBREZ2NTHERE RES T #m AEF
REEREINEERST-

REBE2MFEER  FEBERER %i REAR
HEREERB T ILEABERNRE WE—F B
TRERIRIE (B REBTIF5E.

5

FEBRRNRRBAUFBEREERGENIFER T
HEEEPERIRREE - AEERKRET (PE
ARHNBRRERE L) (PEARJMBEARSH
Bria%) (hEARKMBEIERERY) S RIRIEN A
) FEEREMBUERER  RIEER XK E
RERYFRFSAYOREEE RER ER
B RF A - [ EE Y B AR AR R & o

REFERN ZMLETNEGHAERSERNEAT
ENARERCEERBENSIR MK T #AHE
BURHREER S RESERYNERERAE
RIERERE R
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Environment (Continued)
Property business

Our property business can be divided into property development and
property investment businesses. We have property development projects
in Mainland China which carry out environmental management during the
construction. Our investment properties are mainly office and commercial
premises, which have relatively limited resource consumption and
environmental impacts.

The property development business of the Group strictly abides by the
Regulations on Environmental Protection Management for Construction
Projects ((ZRIBEBIRIZEREBIEMRMG)) and other local laws and
regulations. We have developed and implemented the “Standard
Safety Management Guidelines”, the “Project Inspection and Evaluation
Guidelines” and other civilised project construction policies. A project
engineering department is established for each construction project with
the project manager serving as the team leader and the first responsible
person for environment management. The Group signs the “Agreement
on Safe and Civilised Construction Management at Construction Site” with
construction contractors, and urges them to comply with the local green
construction code and protect the surrounding ecological environment.

Importance is attached to the management and promotion of green
construction in our property development business. The engineering
department emphasises the environmental protection requirements to
all construction teams before the start of construction, and inspects the
construction site on a regular basis. Follow-up with the contractors and
construction teams will be performed based on the inspection results, and
training on civilised construction will be arranged for the construction teams
to ensure that they meet the following management objectives:

Compliance of
sewage discharge

Compliance of
construction noise

BRI AR BEBREAHR
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Proper disposal of
solid waste

ZERIZEREREY
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EXBERECEEFERES  (TRGRaRETE
R85 FRRTHIE AR ITEERIIER
Ti28l HEE I REEEFERFARREES
—EBEA WK T BRI (ETIRERE X
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Meeting civilised
construction standards
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Environment (Continued)
Property business

Energy and resource consumption and waste and emissions arising from
office work are the main impacts of our property investment business on
the environment.

Carbon emission and energy management

Our property development business has implemented construction
equipment management policies, prioritised the use of energy-saving
and efficient construction equipment and tools recommended by the
State and industry, made well-planned use of equipment and with proper
maintenance to improve equipment efficiency. To strictly control power
consumption during construction, we have conducted a detailed power
consumption analysis and arranged power-saving signage nearby electric
equipment as a reminder of power conservation.

Energy consumption in our property investment business mainly originates
from office electricity consumption. We advocate the concept of green
office, and encourage employees to make full use of the Internet by
holding video conferencing to avoid unnecessary business travels and
reduce resource consumption and greenhouse gas emissions therefrom.
Registration for the use of official vehicles is required to reduce unnecessary
vehicle travel. Consumption of resources in the office areas is under strict
control by the dedicated personnel, and employees are required to turn
off the lights and power when not needed in order to reduce energy
consumption.

IR ()
EE S

REBYERBEGHRRZEETBNAFER
BEIR BRI ELE B Y R ) -

Bk HFIR A AE TR E 12

IR 3£ 3 R T 1 E 30 B e i LR 18 B IR A
B BRERER TEREBRNERE 2Rk IR
% o EREER I RER MR EE
HRE RERBESVUX -HBRBREFRIAE
E HFfFARETIRAEBEAEDT EHRBEREEES
REMMBERHE LUEEERERNL-

REMYEREREXHEREARBMAELN
BHE - RAEEHREHLES SZBETHA
MR ED LIRARA TR AB T BRI ER [F
BRITBEENE RS RERENN ; H2
BEWERETECSEE BN ERNEHHT,
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Environment (Continued)
Property business (Continued)
Waste management

For the property development business, we develop construction waste
treatment plans at the initial planning stage of every construction project,
which clarify the production volume limit of the construction waste, the
disposal measures and the clearance schedules. These plans are also
stated in the construction contract signed with the contractors. We classify
the construction wastes at construction sites. Wastes such as steel bars
and wooden boards are centrally collected, retained and passed to a
professional third party for recycling. Earthwork and construction debris
are prioritised to be used as backfill to reduce spoil from excavation; other
construction wastes are piled up at a dedicated place as per relevant laws
and regulations and transferred away in a timely manner; general domestic
waste is handled as per relevant regulations on garbage storage and
classification, and transported, on a regular basis, to the sanitation station
as designated by the government for disposal. Littering garbage at will is
forbidden by the Group.

Domestic waste, waste ink cartridges and toner are the main types of
waste generated from daily operation of our property investment business.
Domestic waste has been collected and properly disposed by the sanitation
team, and waste ink cartridges and toner have been properly recycled by
the suppliers.

We also seek for recycling opportunities to reduce the environmental impact
and enhance ecological protection. For instance, the coffee capsules used
in the office’ coffee machine are collected and returned to the designated
collection point; as they will be recycled as material for new products.
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Environment (Continued)
Property business (Continued)
Use of water resources and treatment of sewage water

For the property development business, we advocate the concept of
water conservation and require employees to develop the habit of water
conservation to prevent water wastage. We have taken the following
measures for water conservation:

° Reasonably planning the temporary water layout at construction
sites, living areas and office areas;

° Collecting rain for road cleansing at construction sites;

° Using commercial concrete and ready-mixed mortar to avoid
excessive water consumption at construction site;

° Wastewater recycling from car scrubbing and washing;

° Providing training on water conservation to relevant personnel to
enhance their awareness of water conservation, requiring them to
turn off the tap once after use.

The wastewater produced by our property development and property
investment businesses is mainly domestic sewage. Wastewater will be
properly discharged to the municipal sewage pipeline for further handling.
The Group did not encounter any issue with sourcing water that is fit for

purpose.

IRIR ()
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Environment (Continued)
Property business (Continued)
Environment and natural resources

The property development business focuses on environmental
management of construction, and strictly controls the noise, vibration,
light pollution, dust and other environmental pollutants at the construction
site that may adversely affect the surrounding ecological environment. For
example, we implement the low-noise period contract at the construction
site, limit on-site noise decibels, cover all the unused bare soil, wash the
tires of incoming and outgoing vehicles, and turn on the spray nozzle in
accordance with “the emergency plan for heavy pollution weather” to
reduce dust. We implement strict site management for the use of the
ready-to-use material such as concrete, to reduce material wastage caused
by improper construction. We also actively adopt new materials, new
processes and new technologies that can enhance the construction energy
efficiency.

To reduce the impacts to the local ecology caused by the construction
projects, the property development business conducted studies on the
microclimate, the water cycle, the ancient and famous trees, etc., at the
construction site and its surroundings during the project planning and
construction phases, and established reasonable natural ventilation,
water cycle and the ancient trees protection plan in advance, and also
performed the construction with caution to protect the natural resources,
so as to achieve a harmonious development between the project and the
surrounding community.

Printing business

To enhance the standard of the environmental management, the Group
has established standardised environmental management measures for
the printing business, and developed the “Quality and Environmental
Management Manual”, the “Environmental Factor Management
Procedures” and other policies in accordance with the standards of
ISO14001:2015 Environmental Management System. An annual review
is conducted by a third-party certification body to ensure the continuous
effectiveness of the environmental management system. In order to
continuously enhance our environmental performance, the Group strives
to drive the dynamic cycle of the environmental management system
comprising of “planning — performance — inspection — improvement”
through identifying and managing the material environmental risks,
establishing systematic environmental management process and
continuously inspecting and reviewing the management strategies.
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Environment (Continued)
Printing business (Continued)
Exhaust gas emission management

Our printing business generates ink exhaust in the printing process and
organic exhaust in the bronzing process. We strictly implement the Stage
Il Level 2 requirements of the Emission Standard of Volatile Organic
Compounds for Printing Industry (CENRI1TZIEE MBI E S Y HEBUE
#£)) (DB44/815-2010) of Guangdong Province, and entrust a qualified
contractor to build a professional VOCs? exhaust treatment facility using the
biological purification technology according to the standard. The exhaust
is collected, treated and discharged, with an adsorption device absorbing
the gaseous effusion. In addition, the Group hires a professional inspection
company to conduct annual testing of the samples from the exhaust gas
outfall, ensuring that the organic content of the exhaust gases such as
benzene and toluene comply with the emission standards.

Our printing business continuously improves the production processes
and the raw material selection. For example, considering that traditional
petroleum inks are easy to evaporate and effuse, they are replaced by the
ink with higher content of soybean oil to reduce the emission of volatile
organic compounds.

An oily fume and exhaust gas filtration system is installed in the staff
canteen of the printing business to reduce the oil droplets in the exhaust
gas and prevent air pollution. We also perform regular inspection and
maintenance for the fixed equipment and official vehicles to ensure they
function properly so as to reduce air pollutants such as sulphur oxide,
nitrogen oxide and particles.

e Volatile organic compounds (VOCs), according to the definition by the World Health
Organization (WHO), are various organic compounds with a boiling point of 50°C to 260°C
at room temperature. VOCs contributes to the formation of ozone and secondary aerosols
in the atmospheric environment, which has an impact on regional atmospheric ozone
pollution and PM2.5 pollution.
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ENRIZET (4
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Environment (Continued)
Printing business (Continued)
Carbon emissions and energy management

In an active response to the state’s policy of restraining corporate carbon
emissions, we include the concept of “energy saving and consumption
reduction” in practice to increase the energy efficiency and to reduce
the carbon emissions from daily operations. We have taken the following

measures to reduce energy consumption and carbon emission:

° Prioritising the procurement of energy-saving lamps, facilities and
equipment during the procurement;

° Performing maintenance of the facilities and equipment, optimising
process flow, and arranging procedures reasonably to reduce energy
wastage;

° Installing separate electricity meters for each production department,
office and staff dormitory to monitor the electricity consumption and
solve exceptional power consumption in a timely manner;

° Promoting the concept of green office, carrying out energy-saving
trainings for employees, and educating employees to develop
habits such as turning off unnecessary appliances and maintaining
reasonable air-conditioning temperatures in summer.

Waste management

Our printing business has established and implemented the “Regulations on

» o«

Solid Waste Management”,“Regulations on Return and Recycling Control
of Office Supplies and Raw and Auxiliary Materials” and other policies in
accordance with the requirements of the Standard for Pollution Control of
General Industrial Solid Waste Storage and Disposal Sites ((—#% T 2 [E§2
BEEYRT  BEIS S ERIIEA)) (GB18599-2008) and the Standard
for Pollution Control on Hazardous Waste Storage ({1 [&EE {51775 Za4%
HIIZZE ) (GB18579-2001), to classify and dispose solid waste to increase
the resource recycling rate and prevent hazardous waste from causing

environmental pollution.
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Environment (Continued)
Printing business (Continued)
Waste management (Continued)

Wasted raw materials, disposed computers, disposed desks and chairs
and other office facilities of our printing business are entrusted to a
professional company for recycling, to increase the reuse rate of resources.
General domestic waste is disposed according to the relevant regulations
on garbage storage and classification, and is regularly transported to the
sanitation stations designated by the government for disposal.

For the hazardous waste generated in the production process, we
designate dedicated storage places and packaging materials according
to the relevant standards for classified storage, separate reservation and
recording, and entrust a company with professional treatment qualifications
to perform harmless disposal. In addition, we revise the “Hazardous Waste
Management Plan” every year to guarantee the timely update of the source
information and the disposal plan, so as to ensure that all hazardous
wastes are properly stored and processed, to avoid any environmental
pollution.

Use of water resources and wastewater treatment

The major usage of water resources in the printing business is the office
work and the printing production, and water is sourced from the municipal
water supply. We have launched the “Water Conservation Management
System” and water-conservation practices to improve water-use efficiency
in the production process. Dedicated personnel perform regular inspection
and maintenance of the water facilities to prevent water wastage.

The printing business strictly abides by the relevant national laws and
regulations on sewage discharge. We have established and implemented
relevant policies such as the “Sewage Discharge and Treatment
Management Regulations”. For the ink-containing wastewater and plate-
washing wastewater generated in the production process, we have built
dedicated wastewater processing facilities, and the collected wastewater is
handled by a company with professional treatment qualifications. Domestic
wastewater is processed centrally by the municipal wastewater agency.
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Environment (Continued)
Printing business (Continued)
Environment and natural resources

As the printing business represents a segment of the timber industrial
chain, we deeply acknowledge the significance of the forest resource
management. To support sustainable forest operation, the printing business
has obtained the Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)® Standard for Chain-of-
Custody (COC) Certification?, and we have set up the internal standardised
management procedures ranging from material procurement to product
delivery, to ensure the FSC-labelled products meet the requirements of
the responsible forest management. While consuming the resources, we
are committed to protect the forest biodiversity, encourage local residents
to maintain forest resource for long-term development, and collectively
promote environmental-friendly, social-beneficial and economical-viable
forest management.

FSC-COC Certificate
FSC-COC8re &

e Founded in 1993, the FSC is an international, non-profit, non-governmental organization
advocating environmentally responsible, socially acceptable, and economically viable ways
of managing the world’s forests.

& The FSC COC certification identifies the entire chain of production, processing and
circulation of a wood processing enterprise to ensure that the final product is derived from
a certified well-managed forest. After passing the certification, the enterprise has the right
to display the name and trademark of the certification system on its products, namely the
FSC COC certification label.
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Environment (Continued)
Printing business (Continued)
Production noise management

The Group continues to promote the implementation of noise pollution
management. In accordance with the Emission Standard for Industrial
Enterprises Noise at Boundary ((TZtERBRAIRIERSHRIZE))
(GB12348-2008), we have installed sound insulation, vibration reduction,
sound reduction and sound absorption devices in the printing plant with
storing compressors and printing machines which generate high level
of noise. The Group aims at reducing noise decibels in the surrounding
environment and ensuring that it will not affect the lives of surrounding
residents. We engage external professional environment monitoring
agencies to conduct noise monitoring on a regular basis to ensure that the
noise level is in line with relevant statutory standards.

Climate Change

The Group understands that climate change is changing the business
environment, affecting our operational processes, supply chains, urban
infrastructure and market demand. As a responsible corporate citizen, the
Group pays close attention to the climate change risks associated with
the Group’s business in production and operation, evaluates their impacts
on the sustainability of the Group’s business, fully identifies potential
challenges and opportunities, and prepares for the climate crisis and the
low-carbon policy era.

IR (48)
ENRI 275 (48)
EERSEE

ENRI St S E A BIR g s 181 BFREB(T
= PEMAIRFRSHRERLE) (GB12348-2008) >
EERBR A RIS EE R AR SN ER
RE EE EHE WEES UBRERBIRENE
BENE BRIAGHABREREFEETE - BM
LIS IR R RS TIRE %A b
RIREKFREEEIZLE-

RIREME

REEFNRIEECIEARERHERE  HHRMA
BEBRE HERERETERRE  HIEBRIE

FE-AERFABEENEERR TEER
EEBRPEYMIREREFERNREZETR
B s ENEEEFFEENTE TOME
ERRBAKE B RIZCH R ERERFAE
SRAGYF FEET o

Annual Report 2021 ZE = —FFiR

93



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR - RERKRS

Environment (Continued)
Climate Change (Continued)

We have initiated a number of climate change mitigation and adaptation

measures:

° Following the standardised management procedures of the
ISO14001:2015 environmental management system to reduce the
environmental impact of the operations;

. Following the relevant environmental regulations in the construction
and the production process strictly. Improving energy utilisation
efficiency and reducing greenhouse gas emissions through
technological upgrades, maintenance and transformation of the
facilities and equipment;

° Optimising green and environmentally-friendly products, paying
attention to local procurement, and reducing carbon emissions
during transportation;

° Establishing contingency plans to ensure business continuity and
employee safety.

Looking forward, we will continue to improve the identification, assessment

and management of the climate change-related risks to enhance the
company’s strategic, business and financial resilience.
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Employment

We always regard our employees as the most valuable assets, and strive to
create a fair, motivated and harmonious workplace where employees can
make accomplishments and realise their personal values.

The Group strictly abides by the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of
China (FEAREMESE L)), the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Employment Contracts ((FREAR LML EESEE)), the
Employment Ordinance ({{E{&1&%1)), the Minimum Wage Ordinance (&
(& & &H)) and other relevant laws and regulations. We take practical
measures to protect the legitimate rights and interests of the employees,
continue to optimise and upgrade the human resources management
system, and strive to provide employees with better working conditions
and benefits. The printing business has obtained SA8000:2014 Social
Accountability (SA)® certification. We regard employees as the cornerstone
of enterprise survival and development, and endeavour to provide them
a fair and impartial working environment and a development platform for

realising their value of life.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations on compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion; working hours, rests periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfare during this Year.

Recruitment and promotion

In accordance with the relevant employment laws and regulations and
the actual situation, the Group has established the “Human Resource
Management Policy”, the “Employee Handbook” and other policies, and
actively carried out recruitment activities through the Internet, talent market,
school intermediaries and other channels to attract new forces to the Group
and expand our talent pool.

2 SA8000, short for Social Accountability 8000, is the world’s first international standard
of ethics. Its purpose is to ensure that the products supplied by the company meet the
requirements of social accountability standards.
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Employment (Continued) % (4@
Recruitment and promotion (Continued) STIREHEEH @
Employment data of the Group in this Year are as follows: REE AEBRREEEOT -
By Gender By Age Group
gk ba) s ERIE )
a0 A 55
M 20 and below
‘ 20T
21-30
253 21-30 %
W 31-40
31-40 %
B 41-50
189 154 41-50 %
Male 51-60
B 51-60 #%
B Female M 60 and up
g 605E A £
By Geographical Region By Employment Type
¥ T EFRTEMEI 5 HEEERE S
o 2
420 448
Mainland China
R B Ay 3
B Hong Kong Full Time
B S
Overseas B Contractor
IS L

The Group establishes reasonable promotion protocol and sets up two  AEBEIERE SRS > REMEAVRRS
career development paths, including vertical rank promotion and horizontal  EHEMNERYIHEMERELERE BFYEIS
cross-sequential expansion, to provide employees with diversified #RIEMERIEZT HMHE TETIHEENR
development opportunities. We conduct multi-dimensional assessments — FE{REF A A FESA 7 RI% W BB KI5 Bk
of the employees to ensure that outstanding talents are given sufficient BB B ERBIE A A iR BIENIEENHIVE
opportunities to be identified and promoted. For the talents vet to be T35 B AREMATE TE AZEREZR KT
promoted, we provide training and follow-up guidance so as to give AEEEFEEETCLERETREFER-
employees opportunities for personal development to the greatest extent,

and lay a good foundation for the Group’s sustainable and stable business

development.
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Employment (Continued)
Remuneration and benefits

The Group has established the “Employee Benefits and Allowance

» oo«

Management System”, “Employee Performance Evaluation System” and
other policies with reference to relevant national laws and regulations,
based on which, the Group resolutely implements “distribution based on
labour value” and “equal pay for equal work”, provides work allowances
for qualified employees, pays for employees’ social insurance on time and
guarantees that employees are entitled to paid annual leaves. In addition,
we also provide employees with a variety of welfares, such as improving
the accommodation environment and food quality, arranging diversified
entertainment activities, so as to mobilise the enthusiasm of employees and

create a comfortable working environment.

The Group conducts comprehensive assessments on employees from
aspects of working attitude, work quality, technical level, management
skills, collaborative spirit, civilised discipline, etc., to ensure the fairness
of employees’ remuneration, so as to attract outstanding talents. The
department head conducts face-to-face interviews with employees on
the results of the performance appraisal, commenting on their work
performance and listening to their opinions, thus promoting the common
progress of the employees and the Group.
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Employment (Continued)

Remuneration and benefits (Continued)

Office snacks
MAEZTE

E1E (&)
N ERET (R)

Daily care for employee welfare

On the occasion of holidays and employee
birthdays, the Group prepares holiday and
birthday gifts, and holds festive celebrations
and birthday parties to increase the sense of
belonging among employees. We have also
set up a snack bar in Hong Kong office with a
variety of snacks, coffee, etc., allowing everyone
to enjoy leisure time during the busy work.

Celebration for Mid-Autumn Festival and
National Day

On 12 September 2020, in celebration of the
Mid-Autumn Festival and the 70th birthday of
the motherland, the Group’s printing business
held Mid-Autumn Festival and National Day
celebrations where employees were able to
relax by participating in collective activities
such as making lanterns, playing puzzle
games and having delicious food in the joyous
festival atmosphere, which enhance affective
interaction.

Tepdk) ~ TEI ) S R R

HERPIER BEBE +EL
AEE B2 R 2 F5 1020209812
B&m Itk ~ TEE) EMEES T
B o AIEBNEIEDIVIESE 15
B REEXRERN EETIHESE
BESEEN RS 0 0 1S 1B RIS

Improving food quality for employees

Diversified canteen meals

LEMNREUR

98

In April 2020, for enhancing the employee
welfare, the printing business changed the
canteen supplier, increased staff meal subsidy,
and lowered the weight-based unit price of the
canteen meals and the retail product prices
of the snack shop. In addition, in July 2020, a
Staff Canteen Supervision Committee has been
established to collect employees’ needs and
opinions on the canteen and the meal.
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Employee training

The Group aims to provide employees with training and to encourage
continuous development. We have established a comprehensive training
management system to conduct diversified training sessions for employees
through classroom, seminars and webinars, so as to enhance employees’
knowledge and skill set.

The property development business provides training to employees at all
levels based on their development needs, such as professional training
and enterprise management training. We implement the “Master and
Apprentice” training system, and select promising talents for targeted
training by the experienced masters, so that new hires can “have a way to
enquire” when having difficulties.

The printing business establishes annual training plan and provides
six categories of the training courses for different trainees and training
objectives. The courses include orientation training for new hires, corporate
culture training, safety and system training, professional skill training,
management skill training and career development training, so as to
comprehensively improve employees’ professional knowledge and skills.
To enhance the training quality, the human resources department sends
out questionnaires to all participants after each training session to collect
feedback to make targeted improvements to the training content.

Training for the engineering department of the property
development business
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Induction training of the printing business
ENRIZF5 3 8 T3

Annual Report 2021 ZE = —FFiR

929



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR - RERKRS

Employee training (Continued)

Printing knowledge training

In May 2020, the printing business provided a printing knowledge
training for the front-line staff of the quality department, session for
them to better understand the printing process and to learn about the
product quality requirements by comparing the good quality products
with the defective products, thus enhancing the Group’s product

quality assurance.

Discipline training

disciplines.

During this Year, the total number of training hours attended by staff of
the headquarters, property business and printing business of the Group
reached 7,736.5 hours. The percentage of trained employees and the
average training hours of employees by gender and rank are as follows:

Average training hours by gender:

S TIE: (&)

N &0 35 3

202058 » EIRIZE B R mE B —R A S RMHER
A EE - BB T ERAMBAREIRIRIZ » IR
HEoRkmnERFNERAREMREEZENR
RASEERBERE-

ABL S

In June 2020, the printing business 20204618 » ENRIEF5IRMH
provided various personnel discipline T AB#2@EE:) BBRE T ED
training sessions. To clarify policies and RIEBSERESNE BB
procedures of the printing business, SIBEETEZEEERTC
to educate and guide the employees
to consciously abide by the rules and

FTEE EEEB MEEZREOBEBETSM
BRI AR B B 7, 736.5/ NI o 3R M I ~ B AR B YR
JEE B DLk Sl fE BRI TR B0 TR
N

RIEB DN EE TR

Percentage Average

of trained training hours

employees (hr/person)

ZEI TR &

Gender 431 ZiEEET DL (NBEN)
Male Bt 71.15% 19.40
Female Z 71.57% 14.36
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Employee training (Continued)

S TIEH (48

Average training hours by ranking: AR E D EE T AIRE -
Percentage Average
of trained training hours
employees (hr/person)
Z TR 8
Ranking BeE 4R ZifREFT DL (INEEN)
Senior Management EAREIERE 21.74% 1.39
Middle Management FIREIEE 35.43% 1.80
General and technical employees — R ERETAE 96.03% 26.87

Occupational safety and health

Taking employees’ safety and health as the top priority, the Group strictly
abides by the relevant laws and regulations such as the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases
(hEANR KRB ZERIGAE)), the Work Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China (FZEAREMEIZ 2 EE L)), the Fire Prevention
Law of the People’'s Republic of China ((FZE AR EMELHE)) and
the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)(BiEEEZ25H)) (FHEEHISE509%)). The Group has
also actively enhanced safety management measures in order to provide
a healthy and safe working environment for employees. In the meantime,
the Group follows national regulations regarding epidemic prevention,
implements daily epidemic prevention measures and provides employees
face masks and other anti-epidemic items, in order to prevent the spread of
COVID-19 in the workplace.

During this Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with relevant laws or regulations relating to the workplace safety and the
employee protection from occupational hazards.
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Occupational safety and health (Continued) XL BER (B
Epidemic prevention and control RIERE

Since the resumption of work, the Group has strictly enforced the relevant  Z<8EE B 18 T MR B ITER 20198 R EHE 15
state regulations on preventing and controling COVID-19, and carried out  BA¥ERIERAIRE > EHARE R IZIE - BAREE T
various prevention measures regularly. To safeguard the health and safety KREFEMNBELEZ S  FRPIEZIBVHRENGIE (£
of our employees and customers, we established the “Business Continuity &M 5tE]) » @RS REERBEOS HEEF R
Plan” at the beginning of the epidemic and purchased anti-epidemic items,  B&BE s FHEYE » YT B ERZIBHIZI(E
including face masks, hand sanitisers and thermometers via multiple

channels, and made great efforts in epidemic prevention and control.

Anti-epidemic items

Digey/y
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Occupational safety and health (Continued)
Epidemic prevention and control (Continued)

To prevent the spread of COVID-19, the Group disinfected key areas such
as the reception area, office area and staff canteen on a regular basis.
All employees and Vvisitors were required to have temperature testing
and registration, and all personnel were required to wear masks before
entering the office zone; special dustbins were used to hold anti-epidemic
supplies; and employees who planned to travel out of town were required
to report to the corresponding departments and to submit a proof of
negative test result for COVID-19. The Group also attaches importance
to anti-epidemic training. To be specific, in order to popularise epidemic
prevention knowledge to the employees and enhance their awareness of
COVID-19 prevention and control, we have distributed epidemic prevention
handbooks to all departments and post the epidemic prevention posters in
the office area.

e
®
T
Temperature testing at the
entrance of the printing factory
of the printing business

ENRI 275 ENRI R & AR B 52

Daily disinfection at the marketing centre
of the property development business
MEZREBSHPOEEEE
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Temperature testing of customers at the marketing centre of the
property development business

MEEREFEHT LT AR
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Occupational safety and health (Continued)
Safe construction

Adhering to the principle of “maximum security by prevention and
comprehensive management”, the Group implements the “Standard
Safety Management Guidelines” and other systems to ensure safety in the
property development. In accordance with the Unified Code for Technique
for Constructional Safety GB 50870-2013 ((Z2EE i T & 2 H T4t —#R#0))
and construction plans, the engineering department and the construction
team exchange views on the safety techniques, and discuss the key points
of construction and safety management. During the construction process,
the engineering department has carried out safety checks of construction
every month, so as to stop and rectify unsafe behaviours in time, and
prevent safety incidents.

Safety inspection
ZRKE
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BEZEHEREE (@
ZEHT (8

Occupational safety and health (Continued)
Safe construction (Continued)
The key safety management measures of the Group's property ZAEBYEERBESNELZEEEREMIOT

development business are presented as follows:

Safety use of Equipment Safety of Construction Site

RERE

Implementing the principle
of “designated machines,
responsible persons and
duties” stringently to
prevent the misuse of the
construction equipment.

M L EBERAITER T
A~ TE e R B > B Lk 5% 8
==

Organising safety inspections
regularly; rectification measures
are applied as long as general
safety hazards are discovered;
project must be shut down
for rectification when serious
and major safety hazards are
detected; construction can be
continued only after passing
the acceptance test.
HECHREMZmE &
H—AgBE R 7 AR A EE B
ERBRABE-BEAREER
FLEN ERINEREA
AEMEAE T o

Designing overall construction
electricity consumption and
specifying responsible person
for electricity usage.

HE LB ETARRS R 5T
PREERASBEEA

Checking temporary power
source according to the
drawings.

HERS R BRBERET
U R AR o

Purchasing standardised
electricity boxes to prevent
potential safety hazards
caused by inferior ones.

BERELHIEN L

HEBRERZERS-

Gt

Installing safety facilities
in surrounding areas
and hanging up warning
signage.
ZERELEMERK B
BL 2 BERRS

Piling up materials at
designated locations,
clearing and transporting
them in time to maintain
tidiness of the construction
site.

M RHR S TE M B W R ke
BB E (RiBM LIRS E
R e

Annual Report 2021 —E=—&4&8% 105



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR - RERKRS

Occupational safety and health (Continued)
Safe construction (Continued)

For the purpose of enhancing employee’s safety consciousness, the
property development business provides safety training to the engineering
department and the constructors before starting the project. Besides,
project managers who are responsible for the safety of the construction
sites and the special appliance operators must obtain corresponding
certificates. We hold safety meetings every week to communicate and
resolve the possible safety hazards and problems in time.

BEZZHERE (@
22T (8

REMYERREFER LAHNIER TEMNMELT
ANEREZE2HEIF URE2EBZE2EH AL
B APEFRREZE2EEASNEEFEARL
AR ELE HMASEARZ2ME KB
BRI FEN R 2R B KR E

Training on the correct use of the safety
equipment

In order to carry through the national policies
of safe production and guarantee the
physical security of construction workers,
the property development business provided
training to the construction workers in April
2020 on the proper use of safety helmets
and safety belts.

Safety training on electricity usage at
the construction site

In April 2020, the property development
business carried out safety training
on electricity usage including at the
construction site, employees’ physical
safety and equipment safety, and the safety
of the design, construction, operation and
maintenance of the electricity facility at the
construction sites.

Z2AAERE
HERATERZEEE
B9 STBES, FRIETAS
Za MR BEETENL2020
FARHET AB#EIT T &
HL2ENZ2E ERE
RBAEREEE o

MIRGAEREREE
£l

MR R FEF 2020541
FMETHIRSAELZ:
REEF EAREIERT
REREBRETHAEZR
ENREZE WEHITIR
SR BREARET L
BT MR 2R 5
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Occupational safety and health (Continued)
Safe production

The Group’s printing business highly values the management of safe
production. Based on SA8000 Social Responsibility Management
Manual ({SA8000t & EEEEFM)), it develops and implements
the “Environmental, Health and Safety Policy” (EHS Policy) and other
regulations, and continuously enhance the health and safety standards.
At the same time, the printing business has set up a Health and Safety
Committee composed of the management representatives and worker
representatives, and also appointed coordinators to deal with environmental
health and safety affairs. Those coordinators evaluate the health and
safety risks in the workplace on a regular basis and rectify potential safety
hazards, to ensure the safe production environment. We also set up a
safety inspection team. The safety commissioners perform inspections
every week, including the fire-fighting equipment and passage, the safe
operation, protection and use of the personal protective equipment
(PPE), occupational disease risks, facilities and equipment, as well as
the operating procedures in order to rectify and stop improper operation
behaviour in time.

BEZZEER (B
Z2EE

FEBMBEBSEERZE2EEEETF &1
(SAB0001 & EEEEFM) Kl E L B i FRIFREE
ZEHR)FHE FEREARRZ2RE R,
EREHRLTHEEERRMN T ARRAERS
REZ2ZE8E ZRREREZE2EHFRES

T TSR ENZ 2 RRET G W
NEETRZ2RBETEI UREZ2LEERE
HPERILZE2EE/NE HR2FESBEHD
RERBE 2R BRMERER BERE
b R B RARFRIEF EIT S KA LE
MBETERIFT R

Random check by safety inspection team
TZREBE/NAEKIE
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Occupational safety and health (Continued)
Safe production (Continued)

Building fire and disaster prevention awareness bears great importance to
occupational health and safety. To strengthen employees’ safe production
awareness, we conducted professional fire safety training, fire drills and
other disaster prevention training and drills, aiming at fostering employees’
ability to escape and evacuate during the dangerous circumstances.

In order to practically implement the occupational health and safety policy,
the printing business of the Group provides regular knowledge training
sessions on safe operation to the employees. These training sessions
explain the operating rules to enhance their safe production awareness in
order to reduce safety incidents. We also offer annual occupational health
check to all employees encountered with occupational hazards, so as to
discover occupational diseases and improve their health conditions in a
timely manner.

Training on safe production
BT 4 EZ2E
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Occupational safety and health (Continued)
Safe production (Continued)

In this Year, the Group was not aware of any work-related death, and the
number of lost working days due to work-related injuries was four (4) days.

BEZZEER (B
Z2EE @)

rEE AEBRTENTETEAFLETHES
THIRRNTFE#RAH - AEBMEMBERER

Other occupational health and safety data of the Group are as follows: ZREEWT
Number of
ltem EHHE AE &
Number of staff participating in general health check — FEE i@ EERESE A K 10
Number of staff participating in occupational B EEEm AR
health check 77
Number of fire drills JEBGEE R 3
Attendance at fire drill 2EEEZ AR 371
Number of safety training for projects ERBEEZ2EIRE
under construction 24

Labour standards

The Group regards every employee as important member of the Group.
All staff will not be discriminated against their nationality, gender, age,
ethnicity, race, physical condition, religious belief, sexual orientation or any
other factors. While respecting employees’ freedom of association and their
rights of collective bargaining, we have established internal and external
information communication and complaint channels, to follow up claims
and protect the legitimate rights and interests of the employees.

We are strictly in compliance with the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection of Minors ({FZE A R HME K E A RE
%)) and the Provisions on the Prohibition of Child Labour ({ZZ1-f#A
ETHIEY), and verify the actual ages of the job applicants during the
recruitment process. Meanwhile, the Group strictly abides by its internal
labour management policies and forbids forcing employees to work or work
overtime in any manner. In the event of discovering any false information of
the applicants, or any false reporting of age or forced labour, the Group will
conduct relevant investigations and implement internal rectifications.

5 T A8

FEERS(EIAEEERZ -5 TREIHN
BIFE . MR FE - RE B SBERR RHBIE
MR EREEFRMEEKE TR RFTEE
ETHNETEHRERSAR BUANIINBERE
BAREFRE  URERN RES THG/ARD -

BABBET(REARKEMBERLEAREE)
(RILERETRE)  EHREBRPZERBEN
BERFR -BER cEEBRLEEANEEREER
B BEUEAARRBE T TFRER L{F- i
HRERKBABSMNERTE MRFHRAZERR
HEHIRR > ERFETREREL L BER RN -
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Labour standards (Continued)

The property development business has established and implemented the
“Measures to Guarantee the Rights and Interests of Outsourced Workers”.
We set up a special account for the outsourced workers’ wages to make
deposits in advance and guarantee the payment. We regularly check the list
of workers and their amount of wages, to urge the construction units to pay
wages on time and in full.

During this Year, the Group was not aware of any cases of child labour
or forced labour which had caused any significant violation of labour
standards.

Supply chain management

While strictly complying with the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Bid Invitation and Bidding (1 A R &£ BIHBIZIZIZ A )) and the relevant
laws and regulations, the Group conducts access evaluation and periodic
review of its major suppliers to ensure their abilities in quality management,
delivery period, after-sales service, as well as the social and environmental
risk management.
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Supply chain management (Continued)
Tendering and supplier evaluation

The property development business has established and implemented the
“Bidding Management Policy” to and other relevant policies standardize
the bidding mechanism. The property development business of the Group
seeks qualified suppliers by invitation to tender, simple tender and direct
entrustment. Bidding shall go through strict bidding approval process,
including demand approval, shortlisted units approval, bidding documents
approval and bid selection approval, etc., to ensure the openness and

transparency of the procurement process.

The printing business has developed and implemented the “Procurement
Control Procedure” and the “Supplier Management Procedure” and other
relevant policies. We conduct rigorous access evaluations on suppliers and
select qualified ones by adopting various assessment approaches, such as
reviewing suppliers’ documents, material quality related certificates (e.g.,
ISO9001 Certification) and material safety data sheets, testing their samples
or cooperating with them for a trial period. We review the suppliers in the
“List of Qualified Suppliers” annually to update the qualified suppliers.

HrERERE (&)
BIR R M EE TG

MEZLREZFEL B (BREEVE) FHE
DURBIRIREG M FEHREFUBFHER B2
BREERSH-BH XSO RHEERD - BRA
BEBENBESHANE QEFREL AEBE
UEH BEXHERRERERLS  BEEREL
PR ARER

ZEE [ EN R 275 16 7 0 B (IR BB 1 A2 e ) e (it
BEERERF) FHE - R HEEETRREAST
il BREZMERNES Y REERES W
ISO900158 %) ~ Ml Z 2 BRI RFERL BIE MER
REGRSFGEATEA REBENMHES R
I (ERHEER L) AN HERETFESRZU
BT AR MER-
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Supply chain management (Continued)
Environmental and social responsibilities of suppliers

The Group evaluates and investigates major suppliers prior to cooperation,
and acquires and updates information during cooperation to ensure that
their environmental and social performance is in compliance with relevant
laws and regulations. Priority will be given to suppliers with outstanding
environmental and social performance.

The printing business requires major suppliers to sign the “Social
Responsibility Commitment Letter” and promise to abide by local labour
laws and regulations. Suppliers included in the “List of Qualified Suppliers”
should sign the “Declaration of Compliance with the Restricted Substances
Control Standards” and provide the levels of restricted substances
contained as well as a test report from an approved third-party notary
organisation to ensure that their raw materials are up to the criteria
stated in international material safety standards, such as European toy
safety standards Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and Restriction of
Chemicals (REACH) ¢, EN71-3 Safety of toys Part 3: Migration of Certain
Elements” and American toy safety standards ASTM F963-17 Standard
Consumer Safety Specification for Toy Safety®. At the same time, the
printing business keeps a close eye on the employment of child labour
and the payment of salaries among suppliers. If a supplier is noted to
intentionally hire child labour, forced labour, or have any other serious
violations of labour laws or regulations, our cooperation with that supplier
will be terminated immediately.

HEERERE (&)
HERIRIRRAMERTE

KREBRTERESFRIH S AMEEETEEE
EEFRERTREMER  RERATRERLS
FHENKRRANTEERER BLERRERLIER
REEMMHER-

HREHFTEHEREEEGEEERES) K
T EHMBE AR A (BRI R ) B3
ERBEEE(RARAYEETIZEZRE) TR
HIRAYE & 2184 K3 o A A BTV IR A
e UWRFRENTEEE (2R a5
BIFIPRA (REACH))® (EN71-35t B L 2 5E3 0 © 45
ETENBR) MEEGTALZEIZE(ASTM 963-17
AR SITEHEERT DR ) SR N Z2E
R R EBFEMIEEaEEETGEH
BERURS THEEWER ARREHERKE
FRET RESHNEMBREERSBFRNIR
R B EME LSRRI R o

No.of suppliers

Location of suppliers HAERFRTEM HEES=E
Mainland China el zspzul 2,747
Hong Kong =8 23

6 REACH is the abbreviation of “chemical registration, evaluation, licensing and restriction”.6 g REACHIE < 2 ME2 @ sE i 57E ~ sF eI PRIl B S

REACH directive is the regulation of the European Union on the preventive management of
all chemicals entering its market.

i EN71-3 Standard: Phthalate in children’s products is attracting increasing attention. The
European Union made an official decision in 1999 to strictly limit the content of phthalates
in mouth-contact toys (such as baby pacifiers) and other children’s products used by
children under three in EU member states.

e ASTM F963-11 refers to the ASTM (American Society of Testing Materials) standard for
heavy metal content in toy products.
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Product responsibility

The Group emphasises that excellent quality, creative design and
professional after-sales service are at the core of its sustainable
development. We strictly control the quality of printed materials and
residential buildings, and provide professional and convenient after-
sales service for customers, striving to protect their consumer rights and
interests. During this Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations regarding health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and services
provided by the Group.

Property and printing quality control
Property development business

Taking “quality first” as a core development principle, the property
development business strictly follows the Construction Law of the
People’s Republic of China ((FPZE AR HFMEIEREE L)) and other laws
and regulations, has established and implemented policies such as the
“Construction Progress Management Guidelines”, the “Project Inspection
and Evaluation Guidelines”, the “Management Requirements of General
Contractors and Subcontractors”, the “Process and Node Method” and
the “Management Policy of Supervision Unit”, so as to provide guidance for
standardising the comprehensive project quality management measures.

The property development business follows the quality policy of “prevention
first” and implements quality control measures that cover prevention,
inspection, summary and rectification, thus forming a closed loop of the
project quality management where responsibility is clearly defined. Through
these efforts, the quality of the delivered properties can be guaranteed.

EmBE
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Product responsibility (Continued) EmEE @)
Property and printing quality control (Continued) MEBER mEEE (B)
Property development business (Continued) MERRE B

Acceptance of materials #1#}EgU

e \Verifying whether the used materials or work in process materials have the qualification certificate or quality certificate,
and whether they are consistent with the designated brands
ZEEPTEAME F R BT AR L REEEA - BRASURETEIEERE—5; ZBPMEAME - FHEEE
BHEEEER BREEURESERIETE DB —

e Engineering materials and products must be submitted for sampling inspection or tested by the supervisors at the
construction site before use

TR2MiE R R RI X AR EEIE T LIRS A R e s 5

e  Correcting the measuring and metering devices used by the general contractor to ensure their accuracy

HREBEARTIHERNAE StEREFETRIE BAEBEE

Preparation for construction hti T £ %

e Making full preparation for construction, including developing construction plans, coordinating the design and engineering
departments to review the construction drawings to identify potential design problems; technical clarification between the
engineering design company, the supervision company, the general and the subcontractors and clarifying the quality standards
and requirements to ensure the construction process is well-organised and strictly complies with the design and technical
requirements
HERSHMELISEE T @%%Jiﬁﬁl%ﬂrgu AR 5T TR FAERAEFI HBARET B URIRETE R RIE ) I
BTRERFAF HERAT B EAEETRME ARGERERE R WRERTEEEESF  B&IZE
a2 5t B AT 2 SR AETT

e Implementing the model project system. A small-scale model project shall be firstly carried out before

starting a large-scale one, which is allowed to be conducted only after the model project is accepted.

BITEARERGE > & TREANERM LA ST/ N\ ERFIR T2 EBRUCER%R 5 P RSB T

e  Consulting local supervision authorities, and inviting experts to provide guidance for key and difficult stages and projects,
S0 as to enhance the construction technology level

[ BB E B PIEI T BEA MK E B  TRRETRE  DERA I TRk E
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Product responsibility (Continued) EmEE (@)
Property and printing quality control (Continued) MEBENR mEEE (8)
Property development business (Continued) MERRE (B

Special acceptance and completion acceptance EIEEE UK K if T E& UL

e The engineering department holds regular meetings on a weekly and monthly basis, and,
from time to time, organises construction contractors to jointly convene on-site quality
coordination meetings, special sessions on common quality defect prevention and control and
other communication meetings, so as to increase the quality awareness during construction
ITRHEGE -SACHNS UACHASE T A HEMRRSEEHAS - EERRMaEESZBRT R LUEH
MLERENESEH

e Implementing the principle of inspecting each process. One process can be carried out only after the
previous one passed the inspection by the construction contractor, on-site supervision engineer and
the engineering department. If there are problems related to quality supervision, preventive measures,
and engineering and quality issues caused by entering the next stage without inspection, or such
problems are not rectified in time, the supervision engineer or the engineering department of the
property development business will direct the construction unit to stop work immediately for rectification
ETZRELFRENRA EEELFTRE AL H RSHEETRERM TR FRESREA ETTELRF
MERAERBMEAT B LF ANSENTIENEE2ME A5 BEHETREE E R SRIETREMmEY
EEREBIRPEIECH TEMIBME TN

e After a project is completed, it will be checked by the construction unit, supervision unit and
the Group’s acceptance team. If problems are found at the time of acceptance, the Group
and the supervision unit will urge the construction contractors to rectify within a time limit
TREETE  Hif L BRI AEE R/ NA= 5 ETHERER - 7EERUR IR A A & B K BR IR B (U (]
B{ePREAEE RN

Delivery acceptance 3ZERUK

e After the completion acceptance is qualified for record, the project will enter into the warranty
period. The problems raised by the owner during the handover and warranty period shall be sorted
out by the property management and submitted to the general contractor and sub-contractors.
The general contractor is responsible for supervising and urging the subcontractors to rectify
BTREERERZREIREAGERENR XERFRRERANETIRENBERYEEEBIBBRRE RO RIEREN
REBUaEEERES DB BEUEN
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Product responsibility (Continued)
Property and printing quality control (Continued)
Printing business

The printing business has developed a strict control system for the design
of the printing materials and the production quality, and strived to safeguard
customers’ rights and interests with an efficient management level. In terms
of the product quality and safety, the Group has set the following goals,
which have been fully achieved this Year.

£y
e
Products withdrawn/recalled due to
safety causes:

EmZ2EHERHE/ERIE M

0

The Group has established policies and procedures such as the “Quality
and Environmental Management Manual” and “Defective Product Output
Management Procedures”, which strictly follow the Product Quality Law
of the People’s Republic of China (FEAREMEERBEE)), the
Regulations on the Administration of Printing Industry ((ENfIZ£ & IR1E4))),
the Provisions on the Administration of Undertaking of Presswork Printing
(ENR AENEIRIRE)) and other relevant laws and regulations and
international product standards. Besides, the Group has also established
a management process for controlling product quality at every stage from
incoming materials, semi-finished products to final products. The quality
control procedures of the printing business mainly include four stages,
namely quality control of the incoming materials, work in process and the
final products, and the transportation and storage management.

116 Magnus concordia Group Limited R4 £ B AEIRAS

EmEE ()

YR EENR R BB (@)

ENRI %75

EDRI$ B B4R BRI SR REEREER
R BRUBRHERATRES S Mo

EEERIETUTERRERZ2TENER &
FEUTERHIEER-

O

=
Customer Satisfaction
BERRE

> 85.

FEFBRER(FEARKNEERREE)  (F
RIZERRE)) DRI mAENEERRE ) FERER
KEREMRE fE(RERRFEEEFM) « OF
GRMBEERREN) EHERME BYTHRE
MR RE - FRnnERREMRENEER
BoHREFREEERED AR MmEEE &
EREEE innEEEkERL#EFEENE

TR



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IRIR - HERERRS

Product responsibility (Continued) EmEE @)
Property and printing quality control (Continued) MEBERREEE (@)
Printing business (Continued) ENRIZET (48)

Quality control of incoming materials ¥l 5 8 &

When selecting suppliers, we evaluate their market reputation, business scale and samples’ quality, and regularly
evaluate material quality and delivery time during the cooperation, so as to select the superior ones to further cooperate
EAHEENFAETSZESE CERE KRB 2E T UESIEERERRE S RAFETML BESE

Suppliers of raw materials, machinery and equipment are required to provide product test report from third-party
testing organisations, sign an instruction to prove that they meet the requirements for using restricted substances,
in order to ensure that our children’s book, food book and packaging products meet the safety requirements
BREME 25 R EFENRERRUEFE =S IRARENERARS  BERTSRAYMERAS  LIRREM LR
SESMERIIES KMERMNZEEREREES BREERREEERTE

Check whether incoming material is up to standard, eliminate incoming material quality problem

BERMESER HERNEERE

Quality control of work in process 3412 & &%

Setting up standardised quality inspection procedures and carrying out strict inspection and dispatch standards on all products
from raw materials to finished goods. Products at all phases must be tested qualified before entering the next stage
RERECHNESWERER  HA EmiREE m A BRI TERNERRITIRSE  LEBESBERERIBIAERE
FEEAN T —FEEL

Quality control of final products i & 5 & &iE

Each batch of final products must pass the sampling inspection by the quality control department, and only the products
with green label are allowed to be delivered, implement the finished product inspection system and punishment mechanism
SR EARBE IR SR MEREERERES &S  SEB N mEEE T E KRS

The quality control department coordinates the technical department and production department
to analyse the causes of quality problems on an irregular basis, and formulates improvement
measures relating to system, process and technology to improve the quality of finished goods
mBE P E AR £ EZ Y HERESMBEETRRE S WHIE G E ORE - 5% 75 maSeERT > LUE
F R mmE

Transportation and storage management & & {17 & 12

Monitoring the temperature and humidity of the storage environment to avoid damage
BEERMEFRRAE RES  BREMBE

Employing professional transportation team to ensure cleanness and careful handling, and avoid getting wet from rain and
snow during transportation
ERFEEERE ERBERERT  BRRIMNR  sEIEEH
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Product responsibility (Continued)
Property and printing quality control (Continued)
Printing business (Continued)

In order to enhance the quality inspectors’ professional competence, the
Group has arranged professional training sessions on quality inspection
of the printed materials. These training contents include professional
inspection knowledge, such as different product features, inspection
standards and judgement approaches, to improve the professionalism and
the efficiency of the inspection process. In order to enhance the quality of
inspection, the “Quality System Assessment” policy has been implemented
and the quality inspectors are evaluated to increase their levels of
inspection.

EmBE ()
MEEER R EEE (@)
ENRI%E5 ()

REAEBABREKT  AEERERNBIRES
BREEEINRE RELHBEIRERTE 18
BRERAETESEERRARS LU Em 5
BRBREENFX AN - AEEHARASER
(RERMEZEERE) HERABETSR
LIRS IRERIK T o

Professional training for quality inspectors
mE R S FEE

The Group’s products are sold to local and overseas customers. We have
implemented the quality management which is certified with the third party
certification of ISO9001:2015 Quality Management Standard. To satisfy the
needs of international customers such as customers in North America and
Europe, the Group has also obtained a number of international certificates,
such as BRC Global Standard for Packaging & Packaging Materials
(Issue 5) and the G7 Master Facility Colorspace Certification issued by
the International Digital Enterprise Alliance (IDEAlliance). Having these
certifications shows the Group’s professional management ability regarding
the printing colour controls and the packaging health and safety controls, in
order to meet the international mandatory compliance requirements.
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Product responsibility (Continued)
Property and printing quality control (Continued)
Printing business (Continued)

In this Year, none of products in the printing business was recalled due to
safety and health concerns.

Innovative product design

When designing books, paper toys, toy book sets, calendars, packaging
boxes and other products, the Group lays emphasis on the innovativeness
of design concepts. Through designing Pop-up books and combining
elements such as blue and white porcelain, classic landscape and
traditional festival stories, we endow the printed works with cultural
connotations, spatial changes and other elements, for the purpose of
improving the quality and creativity of printed materials. Many printed
works of the Group have won the Print Awards from Hong Kong Printers
Association.

Pop-up book
REUEER

EmBE (8
MELERREEE (@)
ENRI% 5 ()

FEE AERNBEZF L EERRNZ2ERIER
mZAEYL -

Bl EmasE

EHER GHRA GAZEE HE 9Ea%
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Chinese-style packages
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Product responsibility (Continued)
Customer satisfaction management

The property development business has established policies such as
the “Customer Reception Standards and Assessment and Supervision
Mechanism”, “Customer Complaint Management System and Work
Guidelines” and “Customer Satisfaction Survey Management Mechanism”,
to standardise customer complaint follow up process. After receiving
customer complaints, the property consultant or customer service specialist
will coordinate relevant departments to discuss and draft plans to solve the
complaints in a timely manner; as for property quality issues reported by the
property owners during the inspection, we will liaise with the construction
unit to follow up. The case can be closed only after being inspected by the
owners. For material cases or claims, we will seek for legal department and
the responsible unit’s advice to properly resolve the problems.

To fulfil customer commitment, the property development business strictly
tracks the construction plan, and supervises the effective implementation
of the plan through regular meetings, performance appraisal and other
means, so as to ensure that the houses are delivered in accordance
with the agreed time. Before property delivery, design, engineering,
marketing, customer service and other related departments will carry out
comprehensive inspection, including property pre-acceptance, field check
in accordance with construction drawings and the contract, to ensure that
the quality and function of property and ancillary facilities are consistent with
planning.

In this Year, we have not received any major complaint about the products
or after-sales service of the property development business.
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Product responsibility (Continued)
Customer satisfaction management (Continued)

The printing business strictly follows the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests ((FZEA R+
MEHEE R REL)) and other relevant rules and regulations. The
Group has established the “Control Procedures of Internal and External
Communication Policy”, to collect customers’ complaints and opinions
on product quality, delivery and service through various ways. The quality
control department performs the inspection and resolves the abnormalities
discovered by customers in time. For the complex product anomalies,
the quality control department coordinates the sales department, the
technology department, the production department, etc. to review
customers’ feedback and follow up timely.

To standardise client satisfaction management, the printing business
has established the “Management Procedures of Customer Satisfaction
Survey and Analysis”. It conducts customer satisfaction survey every year
to understand their opinions and suggestions on the Group’s service
level, technical capability, product quality and delivery capacity. Apart from
identifying the changing trend of customer satisfaction, we also require
relevant departments to follow up and communicate with customers to
continuously increase customer satisfaction.

In this Year, the statistics regarding after-sales service of the printing
business are shown as below:

EmEE (&)
ERREEER (|

FEBMBIEZBRET(PEARNBEHES
mREE) FERER  FIE (RINERBBIEHIZ
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Complaints received on products and services
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Product responsibility (Continued)
Customer information and privacy protection

The Group attaches great importance to protecting the security of clients’
product information and privacy. We have formulated and implemented
the “Confidential Work Guidelines” and “Written Information Management
Procedures” to standardise the protective measures and processes of
clients’ information and privacy, so as to effectively protect the rights and
interests of customers. The Group respects the privacy and security of
customers. By setting access right for customer information and carrying
out awareness training to employees who have access to customer
information, we ensure employees are able to protect customers’
information. We appoint special personnel to take care of the documents
relating to customer information, and strictly manage computers, account
numbers, computer rooms and network used by employees to prevent
information leakage.

Marketing in compliance

The Group hews to the Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of
China (ZEARIEMBEELSE)), the Trademark Law of the People’s
Republic of China ((#E AR E£MEIFIZ%)) and other relevant laws and
regulations, strictly reviews the wording and pictures of information released
in the official account and publicity materials, so as to prevent inaccurate
or misleading descriptions of the business, housing and printing products,
and protect customers’ consumer rights and interests. At the same time,
all planning materials for external image display and marketing activities of
the Group are subject to strict internal review to ensure the compliance of

marketing activities and publicity materials.
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Product responsibility (Continued)
Protection of intellectual property rights

The group are in strict accordance with the Trademark Law of the People’s
Republic of China ((FFZEARZEMBEIEIZE)), the Copyright Law of the
People’s Republic of China ((FZEAREMBEEE#IL)), the Patent
Law of the People’s Republic of China ((FZE AR EMEFF%)) and
other related laws and regulations. The group standardises the application,
registration, ownership change and related information management of
intellectual property rights, through signing agreements for Trademark and
copyright use, applying patent for our own product and technology, and
consulting internal and external legal experts, etc. We also avoid infringing
others’ trademark right, copyright and patent right. Meanwhile, the Group
provides training for relevant personnel on an ongoing basis, and monitors
the implementation of intellectual property related systems, so as to ensure
the Group’s compliance with intellectual property management.

Anti-corruption

The Group strictly implements anti-corruption policies, complies with the
Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China ((FFZE A R EFEFIE)),
the Law Against Unfair Competition of the People’s Republic of China ({7
EARHANBERAFEEFHRE L)), the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Competition Ordinance
(Chapter 619 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and
regulations. By adhering to the integrity principle, we maintain a just, fair
and open business environment.

During this Year, we are not aware of any major violations of laws and
regulations pertaining to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
There were no identified cases of corruption litigation relating to the Group
and our employees.
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Anti-corruption (Continued)
Anti-corruption management measures

The Group takes integrity and honesty as the foundation of our business
development and established the “Magnus Concordia Code of Conduct”
and the “Magnus Concordia Reporting Mechanism” to strictly monitor and
prohibit any corruptive behaviour. The Group develops guidelines on anti-
corruption in the “Employee Handbook”, encourages employees to develop
professional ethics and to follow the laws and regulations, and prohibits
corrupt practices such as accepting kickbacks.

The Group attaches great importance to the education on integrity for the
directors and the employees. We provide “Anti-corruption Programme —
A Guide for Listed Companies” ( EFATIPFERFAEFKISRE)) to the
directors and the employees, conduct anti-corruption training, guidance to
the new hires on the materials relating to self-discipline in the “Employee
Handbook”, and post the integrity and self-discipline notice on bulletin
boards, etc., so as to actively promote the corporate culture of integrity and
honesty.

Internal training site the employees.
AEBIEE
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Anti-corruption (Continued)
Anti-corruption reporting channels

The Group has set up a variety of reporting channels. Whistle-blowers
can report any improper matters within the Group by sending the “Report
Form” to the internal audit department, emailing or calling the director of
the internal audit department. We will make reasonable efforts to prevent
the leak of reporters’ information. After receiving the report, the internal
audit department will conduct further investigation and report to the Audit
Committee. For serious or critical cases, the internal audit department
and the Audit Committee will report to the Board of Directors at earliest
convenience, and the Board of Directors will discuss and determine the
recommendations for further handling. Serious cases will be passed to
relevant authorities for investigation.

Details of the anti-corruption training provided by the Group during the year
are as follows:
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Community investment

The Group is actively involved in the community investment activities, and
maintains close relationship with the surrounding communities, works
with those communities to promote mutual development, and makes
contributions to build a harmonious society. Considering the significant
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the tenants’ operating conditions
this Year, the Group has decided to provide concession to tenants in Hong
Kong, to reduce their financial burden and tie over the difficulties together.

In this Year, the Group participated in a cookie charity sale organised by
Helping Hand (a fully non-government funded charity organisation). All the
money raised from this cookie sale was used as funding for the operating
expenses of the elderly’s homes and the related services of Helping Hand.
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Certificate given by Helping Hand Organization
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Bt %1 ESGRE 245315 1R

IRIGRARARIE IR

Appendix | ESG Key Performance Indicator

Environmental Key Performance Indicators

Year ended Year ended
Indicator Unit 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
BE-Z-_—& BE_T-THE
=B=+—H =B=+—H
1512 Bl IHEE LEE
Greenhouse gas (GHG)
mERAE
Total emissions Tonnes of COze 5,068.01 5,705.25
e WE_EEREE
Direct emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes of CO2e 113.86 500.86
BN @E—) BoEtES
Indirect emissions (Scope 2) Tonnes of CO2e 4,954.15 5,204.39
B (EE D) WE-ESERES
GHG emissions intensity (Scope 1 and 2) (Revenue) Tonnes of COz¢e/ 0.001 0.002
HK$’000 revenue
RERBHNEE EE—R#BET) (K@) M ER
FHAT
GHG emissions intensity (Scope 1 and 2) (Production) Tonnes of COze/ 0.60 0.88
Tonne
BERBHNZE @BE—KHED) (E8) M_EtRESE WES
Air emissions
BEREmE
Nitrogen oxides (‘NOX”) kg 340.40 437.47
a8’ T
Sulphur oxides (“SOX”") kg 0.45 0.32
=Rl T
Particular matter (‘PM”) kg 24.49 31.47
RERT T
Hazardous waste
BEREEY
Total hazardous waste disposal Tonnes 3.91 4.90
BEEBEVRERE Mg
Intensity of hazardous waste disposal (Revenue) kg/HK$'000 revenue <0.0001 0.0001
BEEREEVRETE W) FTr/ FExla
Intensity of hazardous waste disposal (Production) kg/Tonnes 0.62 0.78
BEEBENEERE (ES) Fn/WEE
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Appendix | ESG Key Performance Indicator
(Continued)

Environmental Key Performance Indicators

IRIGRRRBIER (B)

fft %1 ESGRAREXIEIR (B)

(Continued)
Year ended Year ended
Indicator Unit 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
BE_ZT_—%& BE_T-THE
=A=+-H =A=+-8
1515 B IHEE LHFEE
Non-hazardous waste
mEREEY)
Total non-hazardous waste produced Tonnes 1,818.23 49,237.26
PREENESEENEE i
Intensity of non-hazardous waste produced (Revenue) Tonnes/HK$'000 revenue 0.0003 0.46
BREEEVELTE WH) g,/ F BT
Intensity of non-hazardous waste produced (Production) Tonnes/Tonnes 0.20 0.28
REBEVELRE (ES) g, MEE =
Non-hazardous waste disposed
BREENESEEY
Domestic waste Tonnes 21.36 17.14
LR MA
Construction waste Tonnes 428.00 2,201.00
EREREER i
Non-hazardous waste recycled
BN EEEEY
Paper Tonnes 1,099.58 1,586.66
i i
Metal Tonnes 175.73 287.41
T8 i
Food waste Tonnes 21.82 22.16
EIER MA
Wood Tonnes 71.74 113.07
N i
Earthwork (mud) Tonnes - 45,000.00
+75 (CEL) ME
Discarded electrical appliance Tonnes - 0.56
$REEE 2 i
Discarded furniture Tonnes - 9.24
REER{E i
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Appendix | ESG Key Performance Indicator

fft %1 ESGRAREXIEIR (B)

(Continued)
Environmental Key Performance Indicators IRIBRAREMIER (B
(Continued)
Year ended Year ended
Indicator Unit 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
BEZ_-—& BE_ZT_ZTF
=B=+—H =B=+—H
1512 B ILEE LEE
Energy
e
Total consumption MWh 6,473.5 8,063.00
HFERE KB
Electricity MWh 6,064.47 6,205.62
g5 SKEE
Diesel MWh 277.89 1,668.98
o JEELBF
Unleaded petrol MWh 131.13 188.41
B ITH KB
Energy consumption intensity (Revenue) MWh/HK$’000 revenue 0.0008 0.003
AERHFERE (&) KEE FHETE
Energy consumption intensity (Production) MWh/Tonnes 0.79 1.24
ERHERE (E8) BB MEES
Water
KER
Water consumption m?3 141,146.26 152,324.36
HEEKE IHR
Water consumption intensity (Revenue) m3/HK$’000 revenue 0.02 0.13
FREE () UAR/ TR
Water consumption intensity (Production) m3/Tonnes 14.74 22.51
BAEE (ES) URK/EES
Packaging materials
B
Packaging material consumption Tonnes 264.85 418.80
BEMROEERS i
Plastic bag and tape Tonnes 32.44 51.02
BRRRER i
Paper box Tonnes 232.41 367.78
o] L
Packaging material consumption density (Production) Tonnes/Tonnes of production 0.04 0.07

BEMHERRE (ES)

mg,MEE =
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Appendix | ESG Key Performance Indicator
(Continued)

Scope of environmental data collection

Environmental data was collected from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021,
covering the Group’s headquarters in Hong Kong, Zigong Zhongzhi Cultural
Tourism Investment Co., Ltd. and Guangdong Boluo Yuanzhou Midas
Printing Limited.

Notes to environmental data and coefficients

1)

GHG emissions (Scope 1) mainly come from the primary energy
consumption of the fixed equipment and vehicles, while GHG
emissions (Scope 2) mainly originate from consumption of
electricity. The above data is sourced from relevant fee bills and
administrative ledgers. GHG factors for domestic power grid are
subject to the 2019 Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power
Grids in China issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment
of People’s Republic of China. GHG factors for other energy
categories are subject to the Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs released by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (SEHK).

In this Year, energy consumed by the Group include fuel consumed
by fixed equipment, official vehicles and purchased electricity. The
above data is from relevant fee bills and administrative ledgers; the
energy consumption coefficients are subject to conversion factors
provided by the International Energy Agency and the GB/T 2589-
2020 General Principles for Calculation of the Comprehensive
Energy Consumption.

The Group mainly uses municipal tap water and the above data
is collected from water bills, financial reimbursement records and
administrative ledgers.

Production intensity data covers Guangdong Boluo Yuanzhou
Midas Printing Limited. Revenue intensity data covers the Group’s
Hong Kong headquarter and Zigong Zhongzhi Cultural Tourism
Investment Co. Ltd. The revenue density data adopts the total
revenue minus the printing business revenue as the denominator.

In this Year, the decrease in the number and usage of official
vehicles of the Group, and the increase in the proportion of
outsourcing production of printing business, led to a significant
decrease in direct energy usage and GHG emissions (Scope
1). For the property development business, some projects have
been delivered, while the remaining projects are in a later stage
of construction, resulting in a significant reduction in the weight of
construction waste.
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Social Key Performance Indicator T ERARENISE
Key performance indicator Year ended 31 March 2021 Year ended 31 March 2020
B#E—_T—_—F BE_T-THF
RRSEAE IS IR =ZA=+—HLEE =ZA=+—HLEE
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, age group, geographical region and employment type
B1. 13245« FH 4R EREFEERE THESEH
Number of Number of
employees Proportion employees Proportion
BT A 5 EE BT AZ & EE
By gender Male 253 56.22% 351 53.59%
eIk ) B
Female 197 43.78% 304 46.41%
ez
By age group 20 and below 4 0.89% 32 4.89%
HER AR B D 20 LR
21-30 68 12.22% 161 24.58%
21-30%%
31-40 154 34.22% 193 29.47%
31-408%
41-50 189 42.00% 215 32.82%
41-50%
51-60 44 9.78% 51 7.79%
51-6075%
Above 60 4 0.89% 3 0.45%
607% L
By geographical region Mainland China 420 98.33% 625 95.42%
BT RPRTEHE] D R g it
Hong Kong 29 6.44% 29 4.43%
BH
Overseas 1 0.23% 1 0.15%
BIM &
By employment type Full-time 448 99.56% 535 81.68%
RIEEELE D 2
Contractor 2 0.44% 120 18.32%
=8
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Social Key Performance Indicator (Continued) T ERAREBISIE (B)

Key performance indicator Year ended 31 March 2021 Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_ZT_—F BE_T-THF
RRSRAE IS IR =ZA=+—HLEE =ZA=+—HLHE

B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region

B1.2## 15« FEAERI R ER S EERKLEE

Number of Number of
employees employees
leaving Turnover leaving Turnover
employment rate  employment rate
MRANE DS TR ANE TMRE
By gender Male 289 53.32% 294 47.04%
IERIE sM
Female 238 54.71% 260 52.42%
o
By age group 20 and below 57 93.44% 85 108.97%
BERAERB D 205 AR
21-30 228 80.57% 236 57.99%
21-305%
31-40 132 46.15% 159 45.82%
31-405%
41-50 94 33.22% 72 29.39%
41-507%
51-60 16 26.67% 2 4.88%
51-605%
Above 60 0 0.00% 0 0
605% A £
By geographical region Mainland China 526 55.60% 550 51.50%
¥ T{RARTEHIEN e A st
Hong Kong 1 3.33% 4 7.69%
B
Overseas 0 0.00% 1 0.00%
EIM &
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Social Key Performance Indicator (Continued)

Key performance indicator

R AR AE1R

T ERARERIER ()

Year ended 31 March 2021 Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_ZT_—F HE_T-THF

ZA=t—AIEE ZH=+—BIEE

B2 Health and Safety

B2gEE LR

Work-related fatalities
ETIETHIAE

Lost days due to work injuries
RITHBBLRNITIEEE

No. of people participating in general
S HE TR RERERR AR

=

health check

No. of persons participating in occupational health check

S EH R RS A
Fire drills
SHEUH I EE R
Participants in safety drills
SHEUHES AR

Safety trainings of the project under construction

EREE Z2HIIRE

122
10 2
7 76

7
371 1,138

24 119

The percentage of employees trained and average training hours per employee by gender and

Percentage
of trained

Average
training hours

Percentage Average
of trained training hours

B3.1&B3.2
ranking category

B3.1&B3.2 R R B AR 8 5 B = EIME B B 72 EE R e F R
Category
By gender Male
tiegeilIE o) BM

Female

o=
By ranking Senior Management
R AR o BAREERE

Middle-level Management

iR EIEE

General and Technical
Staff

—E R ITET

employees per employee  employees per employee

ZiIfES ‘ 23RS ‘
BotE AR Bt ABERIIEFEH
71.15% 19.40 92.02% 17.15
71.57% 14.36 94.41% 16.50
21.74% 1.39 92.59% 7.99
35.43% 1.80 89.05% 4.60
96.03% 26.87 94.30% 20.76
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Social Key Performance Indicator (Continued)

Key performance indicator

B S 1R

HERAREIER ()

Year ended 31 March 2021 Year ended 31 March 2020

HE_S_—%&

ZR=+—HLEE

BE_ZT_ZTHF
ZRA=+—HLFE

B5 Number of suppliers by geographical region
B5# it & & RV EE R E
By geographical region
RRMEEmAEMES S (R)

Mainland China
FRE g it
Hong Kong
HEME
B6 Product Responsibility
B6EmEE
Product recalls due to health and safety issues
Rz b f2REIEAMALUE RER
Complaints related to product and service (Printing business)
B RAE R ARFFVIG R AR R ENRIZETS)
Complaints related to product and service

(Property development business)

BRERRRBIRFEY MEEREER)

B7 Anti-corruption

B7TRES

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the Company and its employees

FIEH AR RABE TERETALBEEEN

BISHrsAZE M

Anti-corruption training
REBEE
Anti-corruption training provided to directors
MESRENRESE
Senior Management
=REER
Anti-corruption training provided to Middle Management &
employees General and technical
mEIRENRESE employees
AR EIRE R —fir K
KiTE T
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2,747

23

39

Trained Total
employees training hours

ZillRE AR

5 15
14 15
30 64

BRFH ZIIREAK

2,778

32

28

Trained Total
employees training hours

A B

5 8.75
13 15.25
29 29
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IR B RERERS

Social Key Performance Indicator (Continued)
Scope of social data collection

Social data collected from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021 was included in
this ESG report, covering the Group’s headquarter in Hong Kong, Zigong
Zhongzhi Cultural Tourism Investment Co. Ltd.and Guangdong Boluo
Yuanzhou Midas Printing Limited.

Notes to social data and coefficients

1) The formula for calculating the B1.2 employee turnover rate is:
employee turnover ratio = the number of leaving employees during
the year/the number of employees at the beginning of the year + the
number of entering employees during the year.

2) The formula for calculating the percentage of B3.1 trained employees
in the Group is: percentage of trained employees = number of trained
employees during the year/number of employees at the end of the
year. The formula for B3.2 trained hours per person is: number of
trained hours per person = total trained hours/number of employees
at the end of the year.

T ERARERIER ()
HEHBKEREE

HERBERE S _SFNA—HEZS " —F=
B=+—8 WEHEOEAEEERET -BE
RENLRFREARARMERESERRENE
EENBBRRE -

T EHEEFRHHRA

1) FEESFEBI2ETRALENANS BT
MAKLLE = AERBREAY (FYREA
F+AFARREEAR -

2  AEEHEBMRIIEEBDLNANS R
HEEEDE-BEFRZIREAE FX
BEAH B2 ABZIIRH AR | AR
FIS 2 = AR NEFRL FREE A B
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Appendix Il ESG Reporting Guide Content Index

ESG indicator
RE - HERERIEE

A1 General disclosure

A1—RIFE

Al

A1.3

A1.6

A2 General disclosure

A2—fR IR
A2.1

A2.2

E

Information on the policies; and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BERERMREREII BRI AERESERYNE
EEMBRAETHETABERTZENEMEREIRGINER -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

HEBAESR R ABRAHE IR E K o

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and where appropriate, intensity.

BERBEEINE CIEHE &k WMER) BE WUSESEM 8ER
Hst &) o

Total hazardous waste produced and where appropriate, intensity.

FRELERSERYMBE QUEE) &k NER BE MUSESEN &
HR T E) ©
Total non-hazardous waste produced and where appropriate, intensity.

FREABRIEEYESE CUESE) Rk WEBER) BE MINSESEN-§
IHR st &) ©

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.

R R B ENIE TR R TS AR ©

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results achieved.

B EEIEA SR EEBEEYN G L RBRELENRHERPTERE -
Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other
raw materials.

BRMERER (B3EETR KR EAMMFEM D BIBER

Direct or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity.

RERS SNERER,SEEER (S R5Ch) B8 UTETRE

58 REE MUSESE U BERMEH)
Water consumption in total and intensity.

BIEKEREZE NMUSEEEN BERKH) °

%H
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Chapter/Disclosure

EHi HBERAD
Environment
RIS

Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator
Fft &% ESGRE RRAR IR
Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator

Wikl ESGRE A ISR

Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator

&% ESGRASRAERIEIR

Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator

Wikl ESGREFRAERISR

Environment
RiE
Environment

RiE
Environment

IR1E
Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator

W%l ESGREFAE ISR

Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator

Mkl ESGRE A RIS
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Appendix Il ESG Reporting Guide Content Index [i##ll (IBi5 - H @R EAHKREHES])

(Continued)

ESG indicator
RIE - ERERIER
A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

A3 General disclosure

AS—RRINE
A3.1

B1 General disclosure

B1—f&iEE

B1.2

B2 General disclosure
B2—f% i E

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3

E

(%)

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

H it A IR (2 A R 5T R K PG AR ©

Description of whether there is any issue with sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

o3t SR ERGE A ACR E Rl BRI R RE  LURIRF A K e 518 & PSRk
Bo

Total packaging material used for finished products with reference to per unit
produced.

SURL P A EEMEINAE (UMESTE) &k WER) SEEE LS
Policies to minimise the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.

BEETAHRRERRAEREREATENER

Description of the significant impacts of activities on major resources of the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.
MM ER RHHIRERRAERNEAE RNEAXEREBHRNEER
AR E1TE -

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

BRI xR e RIS R B TR E - R TEHRE 2ot RIX
WU BB R ENNBERRETHETABEATENERAEER
BHE R o

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical
region.

IR BIEEE  FRARRNER DI ESEY -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.
BRI~ Fhe AR Rth = B RV E BRI EE =R o

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.
BRRMHZ2THRREURFREES B RBEIERSHBERKIETH &

TABBEAZENHERAEERRGINER -
Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

ETERARMIE TR AR LXK

Lost days due to work injury.

HAIGEATIEE#-
Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted and how
they are implemented and monitored.

HTFr IR R R R R T 2R URABRTRERG -
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Chapter/Disclosure

B HBERAE
Environment
B
Environment
RiE

Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator

MyER ESGRISRAEIEIR

Environment

RiE
Environment

RiE

Employment

(=

Employment

&

Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator
Fi 8571 ESGRARARR
Occupational safety and
health

BEzelfRE

Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator

f &% ESGRE SRR IR
Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator
Ft &3l ESGRE SRR MISIR
Occupational safety and
health

BEZERE
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Appendix Il ESG Reporting Guide Content Index Hi##ll (I8« H @R E AR EHES])

(Continued) il (&)

ESG indicator Chapter/Disclosure

RIF-HERERER B IRBEARE

B3 General disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging Employee Training
duties at work. Description of training activities.

B3— ik &= ERIEFAEB BT TR S AV 38 Fe B SERVIEER o H it s 31 E & o BT

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category Employee Training

(e.g. senior management, middle management).
BENREERER WesREEE -FHREEES A/NZIEEES BIE

EEo

B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and Employee Training
employee category.
R R EELENE D SREBTMR NN TR # - BT

B4 General disclosure Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and Labour Standards

regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
child and forced labour.

B4—figik = BRI IEE TEAHI S TR RETHETABEATZENAERMERE HITEL
FFRBINERS
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and  Labour Standards
forced labour.
g T R B IB B RO A b LA %E 52 28 T Kool g5 T o BT AR
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate violations when discovered. Labour Standards
H It B IRERIE N RDH PR B B IS PTEREN A 2 B o T AR
B5 General disclosure Policies on managing the environmental and social risks of the supply chain.  Supply Chain
Management
B5—Rg i & EIRMHEENIRIE R g RS- HEEESE
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical regions. Supply Chain
Management
&S D HEREE o HEESE
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers ~ Supply Chain

where the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented Management
and monitored.

H AR A EEENES  AEATAMEMNNHEERH®HE - UkE  HEEERE
REAIRITREE R 5 -
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Appendix Il ESG Reporting Guide Content Index [i##ll (IBi5 - H @R EAHKREHES])

(Continued)

ESG indicator
RIE - ERERIER

B6 General disclosure

B6—f% i E

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

B7 General disclosure

B7—i&iEE

B7.1

B7.2

B8 General disclosure

B8—fiR KR

B8.1

B8.2

E

(%)

Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
BRFMREERMRBNEREZS  BEE RERMRERETUREHR
FENBRRETHETABEALENEREZRERROIBNEE
Percentage of total sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

EENEEXERRYUPRZLERIEAMALWNE DL

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they
are dealt with.

RN ER KRBT E UREH 5%

Description of the practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

8 2t B At 5 s (R PR R 5B EE PE S BRI R 1B 51 o

Description of the quality assurance process and recall procedures.

it B R E 8RR EmBIRET

Description of the consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

HiEEEERMRIERFARER » U ABRAMITRER A
Information on the policies and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

AR AR R ARGIFE Y 0

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERARNEETAREESRE L ESEENESHRARZHNHE ki
SMER

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how
they are implemented and monitored.

i B E S T R R IR AR T U ABRA AT B R 0k o

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.

BRMtE2HERTREEMTHERENRREERTHE BLERT]
mAVER o

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour
needs, health, culture, sport).

EIEHEE MBEE BREE - FIER - BE XL BH) -
Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

EEIHBEABAER WEHNFRE) -
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Chapter/Disclosure

B IRBEARE
Product Responsibility

EmBEE

Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator

Fft &3 ESGRERRAA ISR
Appendix | ESG Key
Performance Indicator

W Erl ESGRE 3 A RIERR
Product Responsibility

EmBfE
Product Responsibility
EmBaE
Product Responsibility

mEE

Anti-corruption

k&5

Anti-corruption

k&5
Anti-corruption

R&E=E

Community Investment
HERE

Community Investment
HERE

Community Investment
HERSE
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Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

The Board presents the report of the directors together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Business Review

The information on business review is set out in the Management and
Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 to 26 of this annual report. Such
discussion forms part of this “Report of the Directors”.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its subsidiaries are established in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and the British Virgin Islands. The Group is primarily
engaged in property development, manufacturing and trading of printed
products, property investment and treasury business. The principal
activities and other details of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40
to the consolidated financial statements.

Analysis of the performance of the Group for the year by business lines and
geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 166 to 284 of this annual
report.

Dividend

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Particulars of Principal Properties
Particulars of principal investment properties, properties under development
and completed properties for sale held by the Group as at 31 March 2021
are set out on pages 285 to 287 of this annual report.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on page 288 of this annual report.
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REBRAEEZ RIFBERFGRMIF DI 2 9
RS I IRRM 4
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Major Suppliers and Customers

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 68% of
the total purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 51%.

Sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of
the total sales for the year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the number of
issued shares of the Company) had any interest in these major suppliers or
customers.

Relationship with Suppliers and Customers

The Group establishes long-term cooperation relationships with reputable
suppliers within the industries. The Group implements a series of
procurement management systems and control procedures so as to select
suppliers in a prudent manner.

The Group keeps good relationship and maintains effective communication
mechanisms with its customers. This is to ensure that the Group is well
aware of all customers’ requirements or feedbacks on a timely basis and
provide high quality services to its customers.

Share Capital

Details of the movement in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Company’s Article of Association, share premium,
other reserve and contributed surplus of the Company are available for
distribution to ordinary shareholders (after deduction of the accumulated
losses) provided that the Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business immediately following the date on
which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

Accordingly, the Company’s reserves available for distribution

to shareholders at 31 March 2021 amounted to approximately
HK$248,149,000.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities

During the year ended 31 March 2021, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s securities
listed and traded on the Stock Exchange.

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Li Qing
Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis
Mr. Hung Kin Man
Mr. Ho Man

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors shall retire from office by rotation at annual general meeting and
be eligible for re-election. Accordingly, Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet and Mr. Lam
Chi Hung Louis will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on Thursday, 26 August 2021.

The initial term of office of each independent non-executive Director will be
two years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once
every three years.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management as at the date
of this annual report are set out on pages 28 to 33 of this annual report.
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Update on Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the change(s) in information
of Director(s) since the last annual report is/are set out below:

o On 31 January 2021, Mr. Ho Man resigned as an independent non-
executive director of CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company Limited (a
company delisted from the Stock Exchange since 25 January 2021).

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its
subsidiaries which is not terminable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts that are
Significant in relation to the Group’s Business

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries, was a party and in
which a Director or the Director’s connected entities had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Directors’ Interest in Competing Business

During the year ended 31 March 2021, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest
in a business that competed or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Annual Confirmation of Independence
The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director
an annual confirmation of his independence, and the Company considers

such Directors to be independent in accordance with each and every
guideline set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors nor chief executives of the
Company had or was deemed to have any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which (a) were required to be notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions
of Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

During the year under review, none of the Directors and chief executives
nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age were granted or had
exercised any right to subscribe for any securities of the Company, its
specified undertaking or any of its associated corporations.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

So far as is known to the Directors or chief executives of the Company
as at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of persons in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to Section 336 of
Part XV of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein were as

follows:
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Long Positions in the Ordinary Shares of the

REQABEERZERE

Company
Aggregate Approximate
Number of  Percentage of
Ordinary Interest in the
Shares of the Ordinary
Company Share of the
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interest Held Company
b VNS
[FESF NG| EiERER
MRERME, %R Bin/ HEmtH EiBRRAaE BAE DL
Qingda Developments Limited Beneficial owner 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
BEZEEARAR EREAA
New Element Investments Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
(‘New Element”) ("New Element J) SEGEE#E
Integrity Fund Limited Partnership Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
(‘Integrity Fund”) (T Integrity Fund 1) REGEEZ #a
Kapok Wish Investment Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
(“Kapok Wish”) (M'Kapok Wish 1) REGEEZ #a
Xinsheng International Holding Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
(“Xinsheng International”) REGEEZ #a
MERERERERAR (AR
Zeng Dazhang Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
grE SEGEE 2 iR
Wang Xigiang Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
5% SEGEE 2 iR
Ally Cosmo Group Limited (‘Ally Cosmo”) Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
BEEEBRAR (THHE) SEGEE 2 iR
LiLi Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
TR SEGREE 2 iR
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Aggregate Approximate
Number of Percentage of
Ordinary Interest in the
Shares of the Ordinary
Company Share of the
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of Interest Held Company
YN
JEEF VN BBkt
[ 2Py ] g7/ #EtE EERAEY BA B2
Juye Investments Limited (“Juye Investments”) Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
EXREFRAR ((BEELE)) REGEEZ #a
Chen Liying Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
BRifE REGEEZ #a
Shining Orient Investment Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
(“Shining Orient”) (T Shining Orient 1) ZEGIEE 2w
Pioneer Fund Limited Partnership Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
(“Pioneer Fund”) (I Pioneer Fund J) TP
Hong Kong Huixin Investment Limited (‘Hong Kong Huixin”) Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473" 35.04%
HLEEREERAR ((HLEZ)) REGEEZ #a
Higher Cycle Investment Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 2,025,303,473' 35.04%
(“Higher Cycle”) (THigher Cycle 1) TP
SFund International Investment Fund Management Limited Interest of a controlled corporation
(“SFund International”) TP 2,025,303,473 35.04%
ENEERRRELEESEERRAR
(TEMNEZEF)
Luso International Banking Limited (“Luso International”) Security interest in the shares 2,025,303,473? 35.04%
RPIEIPRERTT (DRPIERR) RRR 2 IR i
Huijin Dingsheng International Holding Company Limited Beneficial owner 1,618,143,724° 28.00%
ETREERERERAT Ba#EA
Xu Ruigiao Interest of a controlled corporation 1,618,143,724° 28.00%
ESiy= REGEEZ B
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Notes:

Such interests represented 35.04% of the issued share capital of the Company owned
by Qingda Developments Limited, a company wholly-owned by New Element, which is
in turn wholly-owned by Integrity Fund. The limited partner of Integrity Fund is Xinsheng
International, which is owned 50% by Mr. Zeng Dazhang and 50% by Mr. Wang Xigiang.
The general partner of Integrity Fund is Kapok Wish. Kapok Wish is owned as to 30%
by Ally Cosmo, 30% by Juye Investments and 40% by Shining Orient. Ally Cosmo is
wholly-owned by Ms. Li Li, and Juye Investments is wholly-owned by Ms. Chen Liying.
Shining Orient is wholly-owned by Pioneer Fund. The limited partner of Pioneer Fund is
Hong Kong Huixin, which is wholly-owned by SFund International. The general partner
of Pioneer Fund is Higher Cycle, which is wholly-owned by SFund International. SFund
International is wholly-owned by Guangzhou Huiyin Tianyue Equity Investment Fund
Management Co. Ltd (“Huiyin”). Huiyin is wholly-owned by Guangzhou Technology
Financial Innovation Investment Holdings Co. Ltd. (“Guangzhou Technology”). Guangzhou
Technology is wholly-owned by Guangzhou Industrial Investment Fund Management Co.,
Ltd. (“Guangzhou Industrial”). Guangzhou Industrial is wholly-owned by Guangzhou City
Construction Investment Group Co. Ltd, which is a state-owned enterprise of the People
Republic of China. Accordingly, all of the abovementioned parties were deemed to be
interested in the interests owned by Qingda Developments Limited pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

Luso International is interested in 2,025,303,473 shares in its capacity as a person having
a security interest in the shares.

Such interests represented 28.00% of the issued share capital of the Company owned by
Huijin Dingsheng International Holding Company Limited, a company wholly-owned by Ms.
Xu Ruigiao. Accordingly, Ms. Xu Ruigiao is deemed to be interested in the interests owned
by Huijin Dingsheng International Holding Company Limited pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO.

Saved as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors, as

at 31 March 2021, there was no other person who was recorded in the

register of the Company as having interests or short positions in the shares

or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to

the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO,

or which were required, pursuant to Section 336 of Part XV of the

SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.
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Controlling Shareholder’s Interest in Contracts ¥R ERMN SNz RS

There was no contract of significance between the Company or any of its ~ AERNKREEARERBELE  KATREE AW B
subsidiaries and the controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its ‘AT EA N T IEE AR R R R B AT T 1L
subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of this annual report. EREREH

Share Option Scheme

R e festEl

A summary of the share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”) is AT Z BER#ETE| (T%stE81) HIZHHWNT -

set out as follows:

1. Purpose:

B8y

2. Participants:

W

2HE

3. Total number of shares available for issue
under the Scheme and percentage of the
issued share capital that it represents as at
the date of this annual report:

RIEZ TR T2 RP BB AN KRE
HREHFGEZEEITRAB DL

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant:

BRSEETVERBRELR

To give incentive to Directors, employees or business consultants of the
Group and any other party as approved under the Scheme.

BTYARERCEER - BEENEBBRBDNZ B E EREMA IR

Including, inter alia, Directors, employees or business consultants of the
Group.
B HAP e AEEzEE BB EHEER -

220,720,827 ordinary shares are available for issue under the Scheme,
representing approximately 3.82% of the issued share capital as at the date
of this annual report.

RIFZTEI ] F817220,720,827 R @R HEN A FER A ERTR
A#93.82% o

The maximum number of shares issuable under options granted to each
eligible participant in accordance with the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the issued share capital of the Company (or such
other percentage as may from time to time be permitted under the Listing
Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations) at any time. Any further
grant is subject to the shareholders’ approval in general meeting with the
participant and the close associates of such participant abstaining from
voting.

RIEZTBEFTEEER D2 EENBREMEM2(E B BBANE 1T
EERABERRARBREMREEEITRAN% (3 EHHRAKER
BEHMBRAZRERERARETFZEREMB D) - ERE—FREA
FRERNREAS LEAZ2HEERZ2EENTEREARELRE
BHEIEE-
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5 Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option:

RIERBRIEREMRMD Z AR :

6. Amount payable on acceptance of an option
and the period within which payments shall
be made:
BB IR 2 ARIB R S ARAAIR ¢

7. The basis of determining the exercise price:

TREEEEE:

8. The remaining life of the Scheme:

ZET B H BRER

An option may be exercised by the grantee at any time during the period,
commencing on the date of offer for option (the “Offer Date”) (which must
be a business day) and in any event such period must not be more than
10 years from the Offer Date, subject to any restrictions or the minimum
holding periods or conditions (including but not limited to any performance
targets or the time required for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised) on the exercise of the options as the committee, which is
delegated with the powers of the Directors to administer the Scheme, in
its absolute discretion may determine. No performance target is expressly
specified in the Scheme.

No share option has been granted since the date of adoption of the Scheme
on 29 August 2012,

ERATRHEEREDR (RAH) WEAREXA) ERBRER
TREBRE EERUNM ARANBETSERELRAMES 5 AR
EFEEREERFEZEZEENTEBRESRNIFRE 2 ERRHI
REFARRIET (BEEFRNEMERRIERXNTEARETER
Bt 2 B5PR) FrARR o s% st BI W R BAME SR E R RIRIER

BZ BN - FN\B T+ AERMR  SiERDEAERE-

Eg(“"

HK$1.00 payable to the Company upon acceptance of option which should
be taken up within 28 days from the Offer Date.

MBI AN HHL R A EA1228 R Atz i > T MBS FE (Y T R A F)1.0078 7T °

No less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the Offer Date
(which must be a trading day); (i) the average closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five trading days immediately preceding the Offer Date (which must be a
trading day); and (jii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.
AMERTI=ZBz e (\HXMESERERNMBER WERR
5 B) FrRARBRRAD 2 W E () E B RERN ERMEER W
BRI H) ARERZ BFFRAABRMN 2 WS E ; Rii)EQF K
PEE

Valid until 28 August 2022 unless otherwise terminated under the terms of
the Scheme.

BEMEREE_E__FN\AZ+/N\B L BERBZEGRRT UL
LEBUBRSN o
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Arrangement to Purchase Shares or Debentures

Other than the section “Share Option Scheme” disclosed above, at no time
during the year under review there subsisted any arrangement to which the
Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries
or its other associated corporations was a party and the objectives of or
one of the objectives of such arrangement are/is to enable the Directors,
their respective spouse or children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company, its
specified undertaking or any of its associated corporations.

Equity-linked Arrangements

Save as the Scheme disclosed in the above section “Share Option
Scheme”, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were
entered into by the Company during the year and subsisted at the end of

the year.
Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Connected Transaction

The Group did not enter into any connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions during the year which are required to be disclosed
in this annual report pursuant to Rule 14A.49 of the Listing Rules. Details of
the Group’s related party transactions are set out in note 35 to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. None of such related party transactions
constitutes a connected transaction of the Group under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

BERMEESTZZH
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Use of Proceeds from Rights Issue

On 13 February 2020, the Company issued 1,806,221,760 rights shares,
on the basis of one rights share for every two existing ordinary shares, at
subscription price of HK$0.11 per rights share (the “Rights Issue”). Upon
completion of the Rights Issue, the Company received net cash proceeds
of approximately HK$194 million (the “Net Proceeds”). The Company
intended to apply the Net Proceeds as to: (i) approximately HK$170 million
for the repayment of bank borrowings falling due; and (i) approximately
HK$24 million for general working capital.

During the year, the Company had applied approximately HK$169 million of
the Net Proceeds for repayment of bank borrowings.

As at 31 March 2021, the Company had fully utilized the Net Proceeds
of approximately HK$194 million for repayment of bank borrowings.
The amount of approximately HK$24 million originally intended to apply
for general working capital had also been used for repayment of bank
borrowings, as a result of our responsive treasury management aiming to
further relieve the Group’s leverage position under the turmoil in financial
market.

Corporate Governance

Report for the corporate governance practice adopted by the Company is
set out on pages 35 to 72 of this annual report.

Environmental Policies

With regard to the environmental policies, the Group aims to minimise
the Group’s environmental impact. The Group is committed to promoting
awareness and decisions that contribute to achieving environmentally
sustainable development. The Group will comply fully with all applicable
environmental laws and regulations. We will use fuel, water and other
natural resources efficiently and conservatively. We recognise this to be
a continuous process of improvement and we seek to actively look for
environmentally-friendly options and carry out environmentally-friendly
practices whenever appropriate and possible.

Further details will be disclosed in the Environmental, Social and

Governance Report of the Company on pages 74 to 139 of this annual
report.

152 Magnus Concordia Group Limited RiA &£ B {AEIRAS

HAIFRISTRIER R

R_E_TFE_A+=H AT EEMREEL
AR B — AR AR AR D 2 B E LR E S IR AR
50.1178 75 85971,806,221, 76088 (1t AR AR 15 (MHARY) o
SRR ARATBEWEIREMERIEEE (Fr
BRIEFER)) 4910488 T o AR BRI TR RIER
BERPLUTAR (491708 AN BB IR
TER K2, 4008 B AE—REEES

REFE > 7ATBCERPIERIEFEAL.60(58
TCRRMEZERITHER

NIEZ—F=—BA=+—HB &XABEEHE B
BRIBF R BB TANMEBIRTHER R
BE—REBEESM42,4008 B ERARNEERR
TEF WHBERERMARREHEENEREE
LR SRmIBEBER TE— P REAERNE
BKTFo

TXER

KFABRMNZ EEERBRREHNEFREDBE
728>

IRIREER

ERRERRATEH 2EBSEHRENFERE
RE-FAEERNNEEENBERREIFELR
ZBRRAE - AERRE2EETHRABRAZIERE
ERRGER - F IR LA B BERY 5 TR AR A
KEBRKREMBEZRER - RFIRMLER 2 —EF
BHUEZ B RPIRBBRSRRFRARLNES
FITIER MR BIRRIE

E—FFBRNAFRETAEI0EZ AR TIRFE
HEREAREANKE-



Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Under Article 179 of the Company’s Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director in
defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment
is given in his/her favour, or in which he/she is acquitted. During the year
under review, the Company had taken out and maintained an insurance in
respect of the Directors’ liabilities.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained sufficient public
float as required by the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March
2021 and up to the date of this annual report.

Number of Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 March 2021, the Group, including its subcontracting processing
plants, employed 450 (2020: 655) staff and workers. The Group provides
its employees with benefits including performance-based bonus, retirement
benefits contribution, medical insurance and staff training. Also, the
Company adopted the Scheme to provide alternative means to align the
employees’ career goal with the Group’s business strategy. Details of the
Scheme are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme” of this annual
report.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The employees of
the subsidiaries established in Mainland China are members of the Central
Pension Scheme operated by the Mainland China government. As at
31 March 2021, no forfeited contribution under the retirement benefits
schemes of the Group is available to reduce the contribution payable in
future years.

The Group’s remuneration policy for its employees is set up and approved
by the Remuneration Committee and the Board on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The remuneration of the Directors is decided by the Remuneration
Committee and the Board, as authorized by the shareholders in annual
general meeting, having regarded to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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Loan Agreement(s) with Covenants Relating
to Specific Performance Obligations of the
Controlling Shareholders

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.21 of the Listing
Rules, the following disclosures are included in respects of the Company’s
bank loan facilities entered into during the year and/or subsisting at the
end of the year, which contain covenants requiring specific performance
obligations of the Company’s controlling shareholders (such specific
performance obligations do not constitute or form part of any financial
guarantees for repayment):

1. On 30 September 2019, the Company, as a guarantor, and certain
of its subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong, as borrowers, entered
into a revolving loan facility agreement with a bank, as the lender, for
certain banking facilities with an agreement amount of up to HK$150
million which is subject to annual review without a definitive maturity
date. Pursuant to the terms of the revolving loan facility agreement,
Qingda and any persons acting in concert with it shall remain the
largest group of shareholders of the Company at all times during the
subsistence of the banking facility. Details of the transaction are set
out in the announcement dated 30 September 2019.

2. On 7 January 2021, the Company, as the borrower, entered into a
term loan facility agreement with a bank, as the lender, for a term
loan banking facility of HK$160 million, with final maturity date falling
five years from the first utilisation date. Pursuant to the terms of the
loan facility agreement, the Company undertook to the lender that
(i) it shall procure that SFund International shall directly or indirectly
remain as the largest shareholder of Kapok Wish, and Kapok
Wish shall remain as the general partner of Integrity Fund, and (i)
Integrity Fund (which is deemed to be interested in the shares of the
Company held by Qingda, a controlling shareholder and the single
largest shareholder of the Company) shall directly or indirectly remain
as the largest shareholder of the Company. Details of the transaction
are set out in the announcement dated 7 January 2021.

154 Magnus concordia Group Limited RiA £ B HEIRAS

B EMERRRE E O EE
R HRGE

RIE EHRAF1B2MFZIRERE LT THRAR
ﬂfEWEZ/EJZEAESE%T_EE’\]iﬁﬁiéﬁnﬁﬁfﬁﬂjE@
KE> EPHAERFRFNERRRETRE
MEIER 2 (&‘-’fm@@%’ﬂa&ﬂfﬁ%ﬁiﬁﬁ%%fﬁ
BERNEAMBEFRN—ED) :

1. RIZ—AFEAA=+H > KxAE (EAER
N REREBEECETHEBRRE (FARE
PN B—ERIT ERBERMA) SETIRITRY
B U REHERELA150EBBTZBIEER
Rt 2R EEEIHE BESF
FUER - RBRBIEERRE R IR B
ERHEHEA—BITIATRIBITRETER
BA—B#RARARZRAREARR B
RAHBHNAPLA_E—NENAB=+H

NG

2. RIZZ—H—FBtH &QF (EABRN
H—RIFTT EAERN) —BTHEIR
TREST1.60RBITZ ERERRE M
BRIBHAETHAZHEREF REE
PR EFSE 2GR A AT ERAEKENE
BREEMNESERBEE DB AKapok
WishZ B A& ER » iKapok WishZE 1) ZIntegrity
Fundz ZiBE# A > Kli)ntegrity Fund (1R %
REE RRRAZERKRERE—RAKRE)
FIRBZ A AR AR BEZNE
BNARARZRAKRR - BREAXZFHBEHN
BffA—Z-_—F—BtHz AR



Report of the Directors

ESEHREE

Failure to comply with the above requirement will constitute an event of
default under the respective facility agreements. In such case, the relevant
lender stated above may declare the covenants breached and/or declare
all outstanding amounts together with interest accrued and all other
amounts payable by the Company to be immediately due and payable.
As at 31 March 2021, Qingda held 35.04% of the issued share capital of
the Company and is the largest shareholder of the Company. As such, the
above specific performance obligations have been complied with.

Annual General Meeting

The 2021 annual general meeting of the Company will be held on Thursday,
26 August 2021 (the “2021 AGM”) at 10:30 a.m. at Auditorium, 1/F, Duke
of Windsor Social Service Building, 15 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

Closure of Register of Members

For the purpose of determining the shareholders’ rights to attend and vote
at the 2021 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 23 August 2021 to Thursday, 26 August 2021 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 20 August 2021.
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Impact of the Novel Coronavirus

The outbreak of a respiratory illness caused by novel coronavirus, or
known as the COVID-19, around the globe has affected many businesses
to different extent. In response to this, a series of precautionary and
control measures have been and continued to be implemented across the
regions in which the Group has business operations. The Group will pay
close attention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak, manages
the business risks and evaluates its impacts on the financial position and
operating results of the Group.

Review of Accounts

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2021, including the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group.

Independent Auditor

At the close of the 2019 annual general meeting of the Company held
on Thursday, 22 August 2019, PricewaterhouseCoopers retired as
independent auditor of the Company upon expiration of its term of office.
Ernst & Young was then appointed as the independent auditor of the
Company.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2021 have been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as independent auditor of the

Company at the 2021 AGM.

On behalf of the Board of
Magnus Concordia Group Limited

Li Qing
Director

Hong Kong, 30 June 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZHENER S

et
EY:x

Independent auditor’s report
To the shareholders of Magnus Concordia Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayrman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Magnus
Concordia Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 166 to 284, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZHENER S

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial staterments section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfiled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZHENER S

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

RSB EE

EETEE (8

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANENARERRES SR

Valuation of investment properties

REMENGE

The Group’s investment properties comprise commercial and
office properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China for rental
earning purposes. Such investment properties were measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period and the aggregate
carrying amount of these investment properties as at 31 March
2021 was HK$442 million, which represented approximately
14.3% of the total assets of the Group.
EERNKREMEQEUNEBRPBEANMMBERET 2 E
ERMAENE - ZEREVMENREPRURFTESHER
ZEREYENR S —FE=FB=+—HNERAERER442
BRI EER BEEREEZH14.3%°

Significant estimation is required to determine the fair values
of investment properties, which reflect market conditions at
the end of the reporting period. The Group engaged external
valuers to perform the valuation of these investment properties
as at 31 March 2021. In the absence of current prices in an
active market for similar properties, a variety of sources such as
recent transaction prices of properties of similar locations and
conditions, and capitalisation rates and prevailing market rents
were used by the valuers in the valuations.
EETREMELATEREFLEERGS ERBEREHARZ
mhe BEEESBIINEEMEZERENENR T _—
FZA=T—HZHEETT L - ENRZELEREIE
TSN IRTERS  GEMNMEEREERASBER R Al
LI BERAR RO ERNITRARZEBE  EREERIRTH
HiE -

Related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
MR BEE N RS MBI RMEH3/M130
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Our procedures included, among others, obtaining and
reviewing the valuation reports prepared by the external valuers
engaged by the Group and assessing the external valuers’
qualification, experience and expertise and considering their
objectivity and independence. We involved our internal valuation
specialists to assist us in assessing the valuation methodologies
applied, the key assumptions and estimates adopted in the
valuations. We also performed benchmarking on the value of
the investment properties to the transaction prices of other
comparable properties on a sampling basis. We compared
property-related data used as inputs for the valuations with
underlying documentation, such as lease agreements. We also
assessed the disclosures of investment properties.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZHENER S

Key audit matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

RSt EE

EETEE (8

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAINENARHRRES SR

Net realisable value of completed properties for sale and
properties under development

BERIGFEMERREFYENTERFE

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s properties under
development and completed properties for sale amounted to
HK$2,007 million in aggregate, which represented approximately
64.8% of the total assets of the Group. These properties were
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

N B2 —F=-A=+—H> BEEEMRAZEFNERERT
TITHEYESF20.07EETT HER BEEEREEZY

The net realisable value was estimated based on the expected
selling prices, the cost of completion of properties under
development, when applicable, and the costs to be incurred
in selling these properties based on then prevailing market
conditions. The estimation of net realisable value involved
significant judgement. The net realisable value was assessed
by management with reference to valuations carried out by an
external valuer.

BT A R E A RS R R A (B )
RER SR E RS R E MR A TG o IR
SEBENGEHSREAYE IR AR EEE S
(BT T 5T o

Related disclosures are disclosed in notes 3, 17 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AR BN R E MBI ERMEES 17180

Our procedures included, among others, obtaining and
reviewing the valuation reports prepared by the external valuer
engaged by the Group and assessing the external valuer’s
qualification, experience and expertise and considering
their objectivity and independence. We involved our internal
valuation specialists to assist us in assessing the valuation
methodologies applied, the key assumptions and estimates
adopted in the valuations. Our internal valuation specialists
have evaluated the expected selling prices with reference to
contracted prices of pre-sold units, subsequent pre-sold price
and property market conditions. For the cost of completion of
properties under development and the costs to be incurred
in selling the properties, we evaluated the valuer's estimation
methodology, which has been updated to reflect the latest
historical information and the budget construction costs for the
completion of properties under development and the costs to be
incurred in selling the properties.

BANER EPaE BShER SEESEMINEE
ENAR SRV ER G > WA MR EMNER KR REES
BEUREEETBRMENE L FRMERNBLEZS B
P35 A P FE R BV (5 (B 75 75 R (i B PT AR B0 = B R R Fe 5t ©
BANAMLEESEE2RAEENUNGNER BERE
BREMETSEREBREEET TG T mAZERY
EHNRARBEMEREENRATMES > BTG ER
WHEFZ HEEMURMREMELER) » Uk TTMEE
PENTEERERAMEENERSELRIR A
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZHENER S

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZHENER S

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZHENER S

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZHENER S

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Chung Yuk Man.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

30 June 2021
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Consolidated Income Statement

= A, ==
ralm=
Year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_Z_—F=-HA=+—HIEE

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BT FET FHET
REVENUE 0N B 2,140,562 310,404
Cost of sales THE M A (2,023,055) (255,852)
Gross profit EF 117,507 54,552
Other income, expense and net losses H AT H R ERFER 5 (4,770) (30,734)
Selling and marketing expenses HEREES N (43,315) (25,884)
Administrative and other operating expenses THERREMEE T H (53,163) (55,946)
Change in fair value of investment properties LEYEZ AT EES) (3,145) (78,201)
Gain on bargain purchase of a property ZEREYMELZEER 2
development business, net o FEE 30 - 60,070
Operating profit/(loss) R (B518) 6 13,114 (76,143)
Finance costs MEE R 7 (2,618) (8,362)
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRI ATEA, (F518) 10,496 (84,505)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frigfineg, () 8 (7,513) 10,790
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR NEEEN S (B518) 2,983 (73,715)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE PN/N=TE: 2 SN HK cent HK cents
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY sRERN (#E8) 11 AW A
Basic and diluted BEAR KIS 0.05 (1.85)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEERmR

Year ended 31 March 2021
BE_S_—F=A=+—HALEE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHET
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR TEEEN (F58) 2,983 (73,715)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS): Hitt2mEz~ (§518) -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be R eE#N 7 EEEmIR
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: 2 EW s, (FHR) -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations &8I E 75 2 FE R Z=%E 53,729 (31,837)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR TEEHMEEIE  (B518)
THE YEAR 53,729 (31,837)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR mRTEE AEL
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF TEEREURE (B518) 4858
THE COMPANY 56,712 (105,552)
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Consolidated Statement Of Financial Position

RS MBANRR

31 March 2021
=S H = =g

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FAET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JETRENEE
Property, plant and equipment YME BB KRR E 12 32,000 40,494
Investment properties KEYE 13 442,045 434,440
Other non-current assets HMIERBEE 15 29,442 30,258
Total non-current assets ERIEEHEE 503,487 505,192
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories =78 16 23,735 43,190
Properties under development FEEesky/ES 17 1,742,708 2,853,687
Completed properties for sale ERIFEYE 18 264,099 59,656
Accounts receivable FE U BR =X 19 51,994 49,866
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets TR RRIE ~ E A FEU AR TR
HheE 19 288,782 161,339
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAFESABGRZ
TREE 20 42,522 96,037
Pledged cash and cash equivalents BIRFIRERIREEEY 21 - 120,000
Restricted bank balances ZIRAIIRITAEE 21 29,128 35,897
Cash and bank balances BEKMIBITHEE 21 149,220 265,502
Total current assets MENEEEE 2,592,188 3,685,174
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Accounts payable [E{TRRRR 22 184,830 180,182
Accrued charges and other payables FESTE AR EMETIRR 23 107,074 268,195
Contract liabilities eHAaRE 24 1,023,828 1,893,374
Bank borrowings RITIEER 25 219,075 373,127
Tax payable FE(ITRIE 323,544 109,039
Lease liabilities HEAaR 26 2,195 2,058
Total current liabilities mENE BT 1,860,546 2,825,975
NET CURRENT ASSETS WMENEERE 731,642 859,199
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES MEERTEEE 1,235,129 1,364,391
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Consolidated Statement Of Financial Position

RS MBANRR

31 March 2021
—F-—H=RB=+—H

2021 2020

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
b= FAET FET

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERBAEE

Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEEE 27 333,887 520,660

Lease liabilities HEESE 26 2,674 1,875

Total non-current liabilities IEREEa[ELEEE 336,561 522,535

Net assets BEFE 898,568 841,856

EQUITY #xm

Equity attributable to owners of the Company A TIER AELIEDR

Share capital B 28 577,920 577,920

Reserves B 29 320,648 263,936

TOTAL EQUITY WETS4REE 898,568 841,856

Li Qing
=5
Director

EF

Au Hoi Lee Janet

EHF
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

SERRERE

Year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_Z_—F=-HA=+—HIEE

Share Share
capital premium

& fipiEfE

Retained

Exchange profits/
Other Merger  fluctuation (accumulated Total
reserve reserve reserve losses) equity

ERES  REEH/

Hitfts Btk i (REEH fEsiE

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt TER TER TET FET TER TER TER
(note i) (note ii) (note il
(Bira) (Br&ii) (M)
At 1 April 2019 AZE-hENA-H 331,081 257,674 4,000 24,000 246 9,632 626,633
Loss for the year FEBR = = = S S (73,715) (73,715)
Other comprehensive loss FEAMZESE:
for the year:
Exchange differences on BERMEBZ
translation of foreign operations ~ EREE - - - - (31,837) - (31,837)
Total comprehensive loss for FEZXAHBER
the year - - - - (31,837) {73,715) (105,552)
Issue of shares upon acquisition ~ UEE—TEMI 2 &R L
of a property development BBTRM
business 28,30 66,216 60,919 - - - - 127,135
Issue of shares upon rights issue A& 21T 1R (7 28 180,623 18,062 - - - - 198,685
Share issue expenses PG5 28 - (5,045) - - - - (5,045)
At 31 March 2020 and RIZEZZTE=A
1 April 2020 =t+-B8k%
TTTTE
mnA—AH 577,920 331,610* 4,000 24,000 (31,501) (64,083 841,856
Profit for the year FER - - - - - 2,983 2,983
Other comprehensive income FEEMZENE
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation  #EEI EH 2
of foreign operations ERER - - - - 53,729 - 53,729
Total comprehensive income FEXANGERE
for the year - - - - 53,729 2,983 56,712
At 31 March 2021 \TBC-F
=B=1+-H 577,920 331,610 4,000 24,000 22,138" (61,100 898,568
Notes: BEE
0] Pursuant to the special resolution approved by the shareholders of the Company in [0] REBEARTDRRNERD IE—ANERREBEFAG it

the 2016 annual general meeting of the Company, share premium, other reserve and
contributed surplus of the Company are available for distribution to ordinary shareholders
of the Company (after deduction of the accumulated losses) provided that the Company
will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately
following the date on which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

(ii) Other reserve represents the excess of the face value of redeemable preference shares
over the consideration paid upon redemption in 2004.

(iii) Merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of shares of the
acquired subsidiaries and the nominal value of the Company’s ordinary shares issued for
the acquisition at the time of a group reorganisation in 1996.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$320,648,000 (2020:
HK$263,936,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= N = — B
FaRERER
Year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_Z_—F=-HA=+—HIEE

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHFIRRERE
Profit/(loss) before tax BRI AR (B518) 10,496 (84,505)
Adjustments for: FHEE
Finance costs MEER 7 2,618 8,362
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME- -BERRBITE 6 10,111 13,203
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of inventories FERE (BEZ[EE) 6 1,158 (526)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of completed BRI FEYEZRE
properties for sale CREZ [B]#) 6 (135) 3,109
Write-back of impairment of accounts receivable BECIFEWEARFURE 6 (84) =
Impairment of prepayment B RIERE 6 1,185 =
Write-down of other non-current asset WoREMIERENE E 6 660 7,590
Impairment of other receivable HhEWARFURE 6 - 7,565
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME -BENREEB
plant and equipment el & 5 (1,914) (124)
Fair value change of financial assets BATEFABRZ M
at fair value through profit or loss BEZ AT EES) 5 (7,491) 6,562
Change in fair value of investment properties KREMEZ A TFEESH) 3,145 78,201
Gain on bargain purchase of a property EEREMELRERE
development business, net W Ea HEE 30 - (60,070)
Bank interest income IRITHEUA 5 (1,279) (1,702)
18,470 (22,335)
Decrease in inventories FERD 18,297 3,588
Decrease/(increase) in properties under development BEEE 2R/~ (1€ 0) 1,359,804 (412,411)
Decrease/(increase) in completed properties for sale BT L FEWERE L,/
(g ) (192,849) 87,373
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable FEUEBRER R, (1 0) (2,044) 9,333
Increase in prepayments, other receivables FE{TFUIE ~ At E AR A
and other assets HMhE EEm (113,500) (80,351)
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets BAFEstABR &R/
at fair value through profit or loss BERD 8 61,006 (70,928)
Decrease in accounts payable FE{SBR R R (7,103) (50,414)
Decrease in accrued charges and other payables fEst & B R L FE(TBR 3R
PEA% (43,270) (57,029)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities SHE’EEMm Gl (1,039,885) 555,864
Cash generated from/(used in) operations wERE T ES S FTR)
Be 58,926 (87,310)
Mainland China income tax paid BHREAMPTER (29,130) (9,756)
Net cash flows from/(used in) REEHFRE, FrA) R
operating activities REREE 29,796 (47,066)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= N = — B
FARERER
Year ended 31 March 2021
BHE_Z_—F=-HA=+—HIEE

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
P 5 FAET FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  REZFBFISHRERE
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEVE BEKRREHEE
plant and equipment ZFTi8RIE 6,027 668
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank balances SRREIRITAETRL
(g 4,020 (24,894)
Interest received BUFIE 1,205 1,775
Purchases of items of property, EBEME -BERRBEU R
plant and equipment and other non-current assets ~ EMIERBEEIER (2,454) (3,322
Acquiisition of a property development business W —IEY) B RETS 30 - (139,707)
Net cash flows from/(used in) RS EBIFRE (FRA) RE
investing activities REFEE 8,798 (165,480)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  REEBIFTSEHRERE
New bank borrowings MEIRITE™R 319,764 517,128
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (474,721) (278,586)
Interest paid BFE (11,527) (13,038)
Principal portion of lease payments HENRZAEED (2,166) (2,018)
Proceeds from rights issue RGPS FIE 28(iv) - 198,685
Rights issue expenses X 28(iv) - (5,045)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEEEFRE, FrA) RE
financing activities mERE (168,650) 417,126
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND RERFEEEYEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS (rib) 7#88 (130,056) 204,580
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year E#RE KBS EEY 265,502 67,945
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net PEREH) 2 L EIFRE 13,774 (7,023)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FEXRRERFEEFEY
OF THE YEAR 149,220 265,502
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERREZEMEETN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances as stated in the REMBRRRAEZIRE
consolidated statement of financial position K RIT4EE 21 149,220 265,502
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sR e MTERRIMEE

31 March 2021
=S H = =g

2.1

Corporate and group information

Magnus Concordia Group Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is Units D&E,
20th Floor, China Overseas Building, 139 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as
the “Group”) are property development, manufacturing and trading of
printed products, property investment and treasury business.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when
otherwise indicated.

2.1

REREERER

RAEBRMERLE (TRAF) IR
SEEEAMNIKEERMERZMAR
A (TAP) R ETZBREERF
KNB) 2 sE S ik 23 Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands > TE& B2 T E& %
BB B EFHEFE139RPEIEINKE
201EDREEE (i

TRABB—RREERAR AREREWE
NE B TAER) 2 TBEREHRYE
R EBERLEERME - MERERER
SN

APBHRERCRBEBGHIOLG (EEE
SHEAE)) MGHNEBMHRSER (FE
MHEREED) (BSMEEEMBREE
A BRAEER ((EBGHER) K2
BERAARGRARER (R EIRG)) B E
RERM FREMERL AT ESFABRZ
TR EENRATEFEIN Y HRRTDIRE
A E RS - IR BIERE AU HR
KUATEY) MATEBESCNEERER
BT (FA7T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sR e MTERRMEE

31 March 2021
=S H = =g

21 {RELEZE (5B)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 March 2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR

SMBHmRMEE

31 March 2021

=

2.1

2.2

—F=ZA=+—8H

Basis of preparation (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (jiij any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions (early adopted)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Definition of Material
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sR e MTERRMEE

31 March 2021
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are described below:

(@)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance
to all parties to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new
guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities, and
updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and
liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence and
measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual
Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts
contained therein override the concepts or requirements in
any standard. The Conceptual Framework did not have any
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sR e MTERRIMEE

31 March 2021
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(0)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess
whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to transactions or other events that occurred
on or after 1 April 2020. The amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address
issues affecting financial reporting in the period before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with an
alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide
temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue
during the period of uncertainty before the introduction of
the alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors about
their hedging relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties. The amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group as the Group
does not have any interest rate hedging relationships.

2.2 GEtRRKRRE 228 ()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 March 2021
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2.2 Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(d)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting
for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease payments results
in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change; (i) any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on or before
30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no substantive change to
other terms and conditions of the lease. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020 with earlier application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively. The amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition states that information is
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. The amendments clarify
that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, or both. The amendments did not have any
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 March 2021
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Vlenture*

Insurance Contracts®

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities from a Single
Transaction®

Insurance Contracts® ©

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®®

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 412
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong 2.3 BE#E ik £ MM F B B 75

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

. No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

2 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020
to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

e As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers
to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2023

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3
an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or
a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or
HK(FRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April 2022. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first application,
the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong 2.3 BB E [ k£ MM E B 75

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative RFR. The
Phase 2 amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the
effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying
amount when accounting for changes in the basis for determining
the contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the
change is a direct consequence of the interest rate benchmark
reform and the new basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately
preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit changes
required by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to
hedge designations and hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could
arise on transition are dealt with through the normal requirements
of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The
amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities from having
to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is
designated as a risk component. The relief allows an entity, upon
designation of the hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable
requirement is met, provided the entity reasonably expects the
RFR risk component to become separately identifiable within the
next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to
disclose additional information to enable users of financial statements
to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an
entity’s financial instruments and risk management strategy. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021 and shall be applied retrospectively, but entities are not
required to restate the comparative information.
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31 March 2021
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong 2.3 BiE#E 4k £ MW E B B 75

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and foreign currencies based
on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate, the London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) and the loan prime rate announced by the
People’s Bank of China as at 31 March 2021. If the interest rates of
these borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a future period, the Group
will apply this practical expedient upon the modification of these
borrowings when the “economically equivalent” criterion is met and
expects that no significant modification gain or loss will arise as a
result of applying the amendments to these changes.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS
28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets
that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The
previous mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion
of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify that
if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the
entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to
defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if
it complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sR e MTERRIMEE

31 March 2021
T —F=HK=+—H

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong 2.3 BB E [ k£ MM E B 75

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to
items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling
the contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an
entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application without restating
the comparative information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong 2.3 BE#E ik £ MM F B B 75

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued) HE AR (B)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments BEEMBEREGEEL —E— )\ FE_E-FF

to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS B Z FEHEHS S B ERESEDFH

16, and HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to S BANBREEAF AT BRS

be applicable to the Group are as follows: ZRFE165RMEH 2 SRR A BB T2
BB IET R - AR BRAN A ER 2 % E
BETARFHBUNT :

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an o

entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new
or modified financial liability are substantially different from the
terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender
on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to
financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity
first applies the amendment. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected to
have a significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

° HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from o

the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative
Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives when
applying HKFRS 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sR e MTERRIMEE

31 March 2021
=S H = =g

2.4 EXGHEBEERR

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 EA® st EFEHEd (&)

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 =X ® st EFEd (&)

(Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(Continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and debt investments
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 EA® st EFEHEd (&)

(Continued)
Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 =X ® st EFEd (&)

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the assets. Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount
of the asset or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Construction in progress represents costs incurred on buildings
where construction work has not been completed and which, upon
completion, the Group intends to hold for use as property, plant
and equipment. These properties are carried at cost which include
development and construction expenditure incurred and other
direct costs attributable to the development less any accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for construction in
progress since it is not in use. Upon completion of the construction,
the construction costs are transferred to the appropriate property,
plant and equipment category and depreciated accordingly.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives at the following annual rates:

Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the
relevant lease of the leasehold land on
which the buildings are situated, or 20
to 30 years

Leasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of the term of the
relevant lease, or 20%

Plant and machinery 6.7% to 33.3%

Furniture and fixtures and  20.0% to 33.3%

office equipment

Motor vehicles 20.0% to 33.3%
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 EA® st EFEHEd (&)

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The residual values and useful lives of the assets are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. Where the estimated
recoverable amounts have declined below their carrying amounts,
the carrying amounts are written down to their estimated recoverable
amounts.

Gain or loss on disposal is determined as the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant assets,
and is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the year in which
they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

190 Magnus concordia Group Limited B A EERIAEIRAE

ME BB K&kiE ()

FEERNSERSEERKAE WBESD)
BEZNHEEREREN - SR HURD
THOEERNEREE AR EEREEM
BMERMAFT U EEE

HEZRENIEAREEZ HEMSHREF
HMUEHREEZZR UEGATWERARE

e
a0

REMFE

REVEIEFERIESWA R RERHE

(IR fFEERNMEE R RFBHAEITEA
B WP EAEEFBREPHE) Nt RET
o ZEMEE S MAE (BERXSRE)
ST WA E  REVZERIRRIREBEH
KR AFETER

REMENTEEPEENEaNEEFE
StAUR I °

HRENHEREMENTEMIEDNRENS
ENFER W mRER

HE

FERRGNRARFTILENEE/AAES
BE - HENBRIRAEMG TE—REBRN
ER S EEEAIEN AZENRUE

g8



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sR e MTERRIMEE

31 March 2021
2= —#=F=+-H

2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach

for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-

value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease

payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the

underlying assets.

(@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 50 years
Buildings 2 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 EA® st EFEHEd (&)
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g. a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 =X ® st EFEd (&)

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that
is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the recognition exemption for leases
of low-value assets to leases of office equipment that are
considered to be of low value. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in the income statement due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for
as finance leases.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 EA® st EFEHEd (&)

(Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is calculated on the weighted average basis. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less applicable variable selling expenses.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses and the anticipated costs to
completion.

Development cost of property comprises cost of land use rights,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised for qualifying assets,
professional fees and other attributable costs incurred during the
development period. On completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties for sale.

Properties under development are classified as current assets when
the construction of the relevant properties commences unless the
construction period of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond the normal operating cycle.

Costs to fulfil a contract comprise the development cost and cost of
land use rights directly related to an existing contract that will be used
to satisfy performance obligations in the future. The costs to fulfil a
contract are recorded in properties under development if they are
expected to be recovered. The amount is amortised on a systematic
basis, consistent with the pattern of revenue recognition of the
contract to which the asset relates.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 =X ® st EFEd (&)

(Continued)
Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of completed properties for sale is calculated
using the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value is
determined by reference to sale proceeds received after the end of
the reporting period, or, if not yet sold after the end of the reporting
period, by management estimates based on the prevailing market
conditions or reference to a valuation report from an independent
valuer. The relevant costs include acquisition costs, development
expenditure, borrowing costs capitalised and other direct costs
attributable to such properties.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception
of accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue and income recognition” below.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 EA® st EFEHEd (&)

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 =X ® st EFEd (&)

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the income statement when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are also recognised as other income in the income statement
when the right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial

position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 =X ® st EFEd (&)

(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 EA® st EFEHEd (&)

(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for accounts receivable
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic

environment.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 =X ® st EFEd (&)

(Continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities includes accounts payable, accrued
charges and other payables, bank borrowings and lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the income statement.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than properties under
development, completed properties for sale, inventories, deferred
tax assets, financial assets and investment properties), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 =X ® st EFEd (&)

(Continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the period
in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i)  is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group;
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

U

(i)

(iii)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is @ member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 =X ® st EFEd (&)

(Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, and it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where a
provision is expected to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination
penalties and employee termination payments. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Provisions (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
income statement, either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 =X ® st EFEd (&)
(Continued)
Frig# (48)

Income tax (Continued)

EERIAE BT — V) BRI R = 50 T LA
B FRUTIER

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition . ARG EGHHEN R ERREF

of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Mainland China Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)

LAT is levied at prevailing progressive rates on the appreciation
of land value, being the proceeds from the sale of properties less
deductible costs.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 =X ® st EFEd (&)

(Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an
expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over
the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.

Revenue and income recognition

Revenue is recognised when it satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring a promised goods or service to a customer. Depending
on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract,
control of the goods or service may transfer over time or at a point in
time.

Control of the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the goods or service.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)
Revenue and income recognition (Continued)

Revenue from the sale of goods and scraped materials is recognised
at a point in time when the goods and scraped materials are
transferred and the control has been passed, since only by the time
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for the goods and
scraped materials delivered.

Revenue from the sale of properties is recognised when the
properties have been completed and delivered to the buyers and
the Group has a present right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effect of a financing component if it is
significant. As a practical expedient, an entity does not need to adjust
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant
financing component if the entity expects, at contract inception, that
the period between when the entity transfers a promised good or
service to a customer and when the customer pays for that good or
service will be one year or less.

Rental income, net of incentives given to lessees, is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the period of the respective leases.

Gain or loss from treasury business is recognised on the transaction
date when the relevant sale and purchase contracts are entered into.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial
assets that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit—
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 =X ® st EFEd (&)

(Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest
and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Employee benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries established in Mainland China are
members of the Central Pension Scheme operated by the Mainland
China government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their covered payroll to the Central Pension
Scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation for the subsidiaries
with respect to the Central Pension Scheme is to meet the required
contributions under the Central Pension Scheme.
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(Continued)
Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the
Group recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities
in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.4 =X ® st EFEd (&)

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their income statements are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the income statement.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders of the Company is
recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the financial
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors as applicable.
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Significant accounting judgements and
estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income taxes and deferred taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes and deferred taxes mainly in
Hong Kong and Mainland China. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for tax for each entity of the Group.
There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The Group recognises liabilities for potential tax exposures based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final
tax outcome of these estimates is different from the amounts that
are initially recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred tax in the financial period in which such determination is
made.

The Group has rebutted the presumption that the carrying amount of
certain investment properties measured at fair value will be recovered
entirely through sale. These investment properties are held within
a business model whose objective is to consume their economic
benefit over time. The related disclosures are included in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below:

Impairment of the Group’s printing business

Management has conducted an impairment review of the CGU of the
Group’s printing business and determined the recoverable amount of
the printing business based on the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use.

The value-in-use calculation uses cash flow projections based on
the detailed financial budgets approved by management covering a
7-year period (2020: 8-year period) with an estimated annual growth
rate of 1% (2020: ranging from —-40% to 3%) and the weighted
average cost of capital of 12% (2020: 12%).

Management estimates the cash flow projections based on certain
assumptions, such as estimated revenue and estimated margin on
earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation, expected
revenue and the discount rate. This evaluation is also subject to
changes in factors such as industry performance and changes in
technology. Estimates and judgements are applied in determining
these assumptions, the disposal values of the property, plant and
equipment and the pre-tax discount rate.

The carrying amount of printing business’s property, plant and
equipment at 31 March 2021 was HK$26,597,000 (2020:
HK$35,722,000) without any impairment recognised (2020: nil).
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Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of receivables

The loss allowance for receivables is based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on information including ageing of the accounts
receivable, past repayment history subsequent settlement status,
credit profile of the customers and on-going business relationship
with the relevant customers at the end of each reporting period.
Management also considered forward-looking information that may
impact the customers’ abilities to repay the outstanding balances
in order to estimate the expected credit losses for the impairment
assessment.

Estimates of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market
for properties in the same location and condition and subject to
similar lease and other contracts. In the absence of such information,
the Group considers information from a variety of sources, including
(i) by reference to independent valuations; (i) current prices in an
active market for properties of a different nature, condition and
location (or subject to different leases or other contracts), adjusted to
reflect those differences; (i) recent prices of similar properties in less
active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of transactions that occurred at those
prices; and (iv) discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable
future cash flows, derived from the terms of any existing lease and
other contracts, and (where possible) from external evidence such
as current market rates for similar properties in the same location
and condition, and using discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash
flows. Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement, a sensitivity analysis and the carrying amount
of investment properties, are given in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Determination of net realisable value of properties under
development and completed properties for sale

The Group’s properties under development and completed
properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Based on the Group’s historical experience and the nature
of the subject properties, the Group makes estimates of the selling
prices, the costs of completion of properties under development,
and the costs to be incurred in selling the properties based on the
prevailing market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net
sales value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may result
in a provision for properties under development and completed
properties for sale. Such provision requires the use of judgements
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, the carrying value and provision for properties in the
period in which the estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.
The related disclosures are included in notes 17 and 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of inventories of the printing business

The Group assesses the carrying values of inventories of the printing
business by reviewing the inventory listing and ageing analysis on
a product-by-product basis at each reporting date, and makes
impairment for those obsolete, slow-moving inventories and items
that are no longer suitable for use in production. Provision for
impairment is made by reference to the latest market value and
current market conditions for those inventories identified. The related
disclosures are included in notes 6 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Mainland China land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

LAT in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) is levied at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation
of land value, being the proceeds from the sale of properties less
deductible expenditures including land costs, borrowing costs and
other property development expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to LAT. However, the
implementation of these taxes varies amongst various cities in
Mainland China and the Group has not finalised its LAT returns with
various tax authorities. Accordingly, significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of land appreciation and its related taxes.
The ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises these liabilities based on
management’s best estimates. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact income statement and the provision for
LAT in the period in which such determination is made. The related
disclosures are included in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Segment information
Segment information by business lines

The operating segments of the Group are determined based on
internal reporting to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”) (the executive directors of the Company) for the purposes
of assessing performance and allocating resources. The internal
reporting focuses on the strategic operation and development of
each business unit, of which business units with similar economic
characteristics are organised into an operating segment for the
Group’s CODM to evaluate its performance.
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Segment information (Continued)

Segment information by business lines
(Continued)

The Group’s operating and reportable segments are as follows:

Property development - Development, sale and trading of real
estate properties

Printing — Manufacture and sale of printed
products

Property investment — Investment and leasing of real estate
properties

Treasury — Investment and trading of debts, equity

and other instruments

Others and corporate — Other non-reportable business
activities and operating segments
and corporate not constituting a
reportable segment individually,
together with corporate income
and expense items and acquisition
related costs

The Group’s CODM assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of earnings or loss before interest
expense and tax (“EBIT” or “LBIT”) and earnings or loss before
interest expense, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA” or
“LBITDA).

Others and corporate segment assets mainly include certain
cash and bank balances, short-term deposits, property, plant and
equipment that are managed on a group basis and the assets related
to other and other unallocated assets.

Others and corporate segment liabilities mainly include certain bank
borrowings that are managed on a group basis and other unallocated
liabilities.
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4. Segment information (Continued)

Segment information by business lines
(Continued)

The segment information by business lines is as follows:

4. EVEF (&)

REBETZHHBER (B)

BREBZ2IZ2DBERWT :

Property Property Others and
development Printing  investment Treasury corporate Total
MELR ENR NERE E#  HtRTH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER THERT TERT FTERT FERT
For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE-Z-—-F5=A=1+-H
LHEE
Segment revenue (note 5) AEUA (H13E5)
Sales to external customers BSMEE R IHE 1,927,950 194,718 10,773 - 1,975  2,135416
Other revenue HettrA - - - 5,146 - 5,146
Total revenue LNy 1,927,950 194,718 10,773 5,146 1,975 2,140,562
EBITDA/(LBITDA) EBITDA/(LBITDA) 33,559 4,343 4,808 12,606 (32,091) 23,225
Depreciation e (101) (7,527) (159) - (2,324) (10,111)
Segment results — EBIT/(LBIT) DEEE—EBIT/LBIT) 33,458 (3,184) 4,649 12,606 (34,415) 13,114
Finance costs HEER (2,618)
Profit before tax GEIpag 10,496
Income tax expense FrigMRx (7,513)
Profit for the year AEEET 2,983
As at 31 March 2021 KZZ2-Z—-%#=ZA=+—-H
Total assets BELE 2,339,252 152,642 475,451 42,636 85,694 3,005,675
Total liabilties afReE 1,806,585 120,236 52,862 217 217,207 2,197,107
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Segment information (Continued)

Segment information by business lines

(Continued)

The segment information by business lines is as follows: (Continued)

4. EPEF (&)

REBETZHHER (B)

REBZ2IZ2DBERNT @ (@

Other segment information: Hh i Er
Property Property Others and
development Printing  investment Treasury corporate Total
MERE ENR MERE E% HtkiTH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET FHET THET FET FHER
2021 —B--f
Capital expenditures BARLH 85 2,525 - - 3,024 5,634
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME- -BERRERE (101) (7,527) (159) - (2,324) (10,111)
Impairment of inventories BEZRE - (1,158) - - - (1,158)
Bank interest income BARERA 260 19 12 199 789 1,279
Fair value loss on investment properties REMEZ ATERE - - (3,145) - - (3,145)
Fair value gain of financial assets at fair value BRATESABGZEHEEY
through profit or loss NFERE - - - 7,491 - 7,491
Net exchange loss EREETE (59) (4,349) (68) - (2,681) (7,157)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HENE BEEZEBEE 2 W&E
plant and equipment - 1,914 - - - 1,914
Impairment of prepayment BTIEZRE - - - - (1,185) (1,185)
Write down of other non-current asset HitdEREEEZ M3k - - (660) = = (660)
Reversal of impairment of completed ERIFEMEZRERE
properties for sale 135 - - - - 135
Reversal of impairment of accounts receivable FEBE 2 R B[l - 84 - - - 84
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4. Segment information (Continued) 4. DEHEE @B
Segment information by business lines HEBENZDEER (B)
(Continued)
The segment information by business lines is as follows: (Continued) BEREHZHIERUT © @)
Property Property Others and
development Printing  investment Treasury corporate Total
MERE DR NERE E#  HtRTH fat

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER FERT

For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE_Z-ZF=RA=1+-H
LLEE

Segment revenue (note 5) AEUA (H13E5)

Sales to external customers AIBEREHEE 87,138 206,761 10,385 = 1,502 305,786

Other revenue HugA - = = 4,618 = 4,618
Total revenue Nt 87,138 206,761 10,385 4,618 1,502 310,404
EBITDA/(LBITDA) EBITDA/(LBITDA) 36,497 11,589 (77,938) (2,684) (30,504) (62,940)
Depreciation HE 45) (10038) (157) - (2,063) (13.203)
Segment results — EBIT/LBIT) DELLE- EBIT/LB) 36,452 651 (78,005) (2,584) (32,567) (76,143)
Finance costs HEER (8,362)
Loss before tax GRaED] (84,505)
Income tax credit FrBiIER 10,790
Loss for the year AEERHE (73,715)
As at 31 March 2020 RZEZZH£=B=+—H
Total assets EERE 3,132,420 152,416 468,416 216,143 220,971 4,190,366
Total liabilities BB 2,671,745 117,337 62,256 224,430 272,742 3,348,510
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4. Segment information (Continued) 4. DEHEE @B
Segment information by business lines HEBENZDEEE (B)
(Continued)
The segment information by business lines is as follows: (Continued) BEREHZHIERUT © @)
Other segment information: Hh i Er
Property Property Others and
development Printing  investment Treasury corporate Total
MELR ENRY MERE E#%  EtRTH st
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TR FER FER TR FER FERT
2020 ZZIZE
Capital expenditures BARLH 811 4,057 5 - 141,892 146,765
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME- -BERRERE (45) (10,938) (157) - (2,083) (13,203)
Reversal of impairment of inventories BEREZ B - 526 - - = 526
Bank interest income RITRIBMA 201 57 15 614 815 1,702
Fair value loss on investment properties REMEZ ATERE - - (78,201) - = (78,201)
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value BATEH ARG ZEREEY
through profit or loss ATERE - - - (6,562) - (6,562)
Net exchange gain ER a2 29 733 62 - 7 895
Gain on disposal of items of property, HENE BEEZEBEE 2 WH
plant and equipment - 124 - - - 124
Gain on bargain purchase of a property ZEEENERRER I NGFE
development business, net 60,070 - - - - 60,070
Impairment of other non-current asset HittEReEEZRA - - (7,590) - = (7,590)
Impairment of other receivable HthEERS 2 & (7,565) - - - = (7,565)
Impairment of completed properties for sale ERIFEMEZRE (3,109) - - - - (3,109)
Note: Total liabilities of the “Others and corporate” segment includes tax payable of Mzt THMRTB 2B EaBREECFRBTFEEY

approximately HK$40,598,000 (2020: HK$37,409,000) which relates to the
disposal of a discontinued operation in prior years.

& —IE B 4% - 27548 R B9 FE 11 1) 15 4940,598,000
BT (T2 ZE 137,409,000 7T) ©
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4. Segment information (Continued) 4. SEPER (B)
Geographical segment information g 3 BB E
The business of the Group operates in different geographical areas. REBE RIS ETE WA RE R
Revenue is presented by the regions where customers are located. Zi@ 25 BAT HRIERB B ERIREE
Capital expenditures and non-current assets are presented by the FTEf@ 27 g 27 2 DB E RN T ¢

regions where the assets are located. The segment information by
geographical area is as follows:

Revenue Capital expenditures
WA BEAZH

2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHET FHET TFHET
Mainland China AR E A FE 1,968,038 123,693 2,083 3,823
Hong Kong &8 25,866 30,243 3,551 142,942
United States of America = 80,825 84,061 = =
United Kingdom [ 20,043 24,826 - =
France A 12,762 15,423 - -
Other regions Hihiha 33,028 32,158 - =
2,140,562 310,404 5,634 146,765

Non-current assets

ERBEE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAT FHET
Mainland China N 75 137,762 161,801
Hong Kong 58 365,725 343,391
503,487 505,192
Information about major customers FEXRZEN
During the year, none of the customers (2020: nil) of the Group RAFEE EAERE P IEAREBRLIKA
contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the Group. 10%UE (CEZZE  H) o
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5. Revenue and other income, expense and 5. WAMUKEEMBKA -ZTHKEE

net losses 53R
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAZ AT -
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET
Revenue from contracts with customers FEESAZ KA
Sale of properties HEYZE 1,927,950 87,138
Sale of printed products THE ENRY 2 & 194,718 206,761
Others Hith 1,975 1,502
2,124,643 295,401
Revenue from other sources B AR WA
Rental income AETUWA 10,773 10,385
Interest income from financial assets at fair value AT B ABFZZSHMEEZ
through profit or loss FEUWA 5,146 4,618
15,919 15,003
Total revenue U A 4B %8 2,140,562 310,404
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5. Revenue and other income, expense and 5. WAMUKEMKA -ZTHKEE

net losses (Continued) 183588 (48)
Revenue from contracts with customers BEEEHZBA
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (@ MHAPWAER
For the year ended 31 March 2021 HE_Z_—S=-HA=+—HLEE
Property Others and
development Printing corporate Total
MERE ENR HMRATE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FEx FEx FEx
Segments HER
Types of goods EmiEs
Sale of properties HEYE 1,927,950 - - 1,927,950
Sale of printed products SHEERE MR - 194,718 - 194,718
Others H - - 1,975 1,975
Total revenue from contracts REAEHNZIRALREE
with customers 1,927,950 194,718 1,975 2,124,643
Geographical markets Hhig i
Mainland China FRE A B 1,927,950 33,635 - 1,961,585
Hong Kong 55 - 16,400 - 16,400
United States of America eS| - 80,825 - 80,825
United Kingdom e - 20,043 - 20,043
France = - 12,762 - 12,762
Other countries HitnE xR - 31,053 1,975 33,028
Total revenue from contracts EEEHZIRALREE
with customers 1,927,950 194,718 1,975 2,124,643
Timing of revenue recognition I A FE 2B R
Goods transferred at a point RE-EEHEBEER
in time 1,927,950 194,718 1,975 2,124,643
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5. Revenue and other income, expense and 5. WAMUKEEMBKA -ZTHKEE
net losses (Continued) HRRE (1B
Revenue from contracts with customers EEAHZEA @

(Continued)

(@ MDBAER (&

(@) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020

BE_E_EF-A=+—HILEE

Property Others and
development Printing corporate Total
MEERE ENfl HMRITH Hast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FBT FET FET
Segments DEB
Types of goods EmER
Sale of properties HEYE 87,138 - - 87,138
Sale of printed products tHEENRIE @ - 206,761 - 206,761
Others Hth - - 1,502 1,502
Total revenue from contracts BEREHZIMAEE
with customers 87,138 206,761 1,502 295,401
Geographical markets g5
Mainland China FRE A B 87,138 30,374 - 117,512
Hong Kong BB - 21,421 - 21,421
United States of America EE - 84,061 - 84,061
United Kingdom e - 24,826 - 24,826
France P - 15,423 - 15,423
Other countries HMER - 30,656 1,502 32,158
Total revenue from contracts BEEHNZIIALREE
with customers 87,138 206,761 1,502 295,401
Timing of revenue recognition U A FE 2R
Goods transferred at a point RE-EEHERER
in time 87,138 206,761 1,502 295,401
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5. Revenue and other income, expense and
net losses (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when
the properties have been completed and delivered to the
buyers and the Group has a present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable. Payment in advance
is normally required.

Sale of printed products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
printed products and payment is generally due within 30 to
180 days from delivery, except for new customers, where
payment in advance is normally required. Some contracts
provide customers with volume rebates which give rise to
variable consideration subject to constraint.
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5. Revenue and other income, expense and 5. WAMUKEEMBKA -ZTHKEE

net losses (Continued) HREE (B
An analysis of other income, expense and net losses is as follows: H A T HREEFEN DT
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Bank interest income R1TF BUA 1,279 1,702
Sales of scrap materials HERER 1,418 2,455
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYE BERRFEEBEE ZWE
plant and equipment 1,914 124
Fair value change of financial assets BAFESABRZEHEEY
at fair value through profit or loss N EED) 7,491 (6,562)
Professional fees incurred for potential acquisitions &7t U B S5 TEFT & 4= U B £ &5 FF (363) (5,600)
Write-down of other non-current asset (note 15)  #UBEMIEREE E (FfsE15) (660) (7,590)
Impairment of other receivable* HhEW AR Z BE” - (7,565)
Impairment of prepayment FENRIEZ RE (1,185) =
Reversal of impairment/(impairment) of ExIFEWEREOE (BE)
completed properties for sale 135 (3,109)
Termination benefit costs ey ink =Rl 1n7: - (4,436)
Net exchange gain/(loss) ERUE, (5518) F48 (7,157) 895
Contingent acquisition consideration related BEFEEBESHBRANK
to business combination in prior year (note 31)  BURERE (15E31) (7,725) =
Sundries HEIE 83 (1,048)
(4,770) (80,734)
- Balance represented impairment of the tax indemnity from Chuang’s China * EFIERNETPERERRRAS (THELHE])

Investment Limited (“Chuang’s China”). According to the sale and purchase
agreement in relation to the acquisition of certain residential villas in the PRC in
prior years, Chuang’s China should indemnify the Group for corporate income
tax and/or land appreciation tax liabilities arising from the subsequent sales of the
properties with the estimated maximum amount of approximately HK$7,926,000.
The tax indemnity was fully impaired during the year ended 31 March 2020.

ZRERERE - REFENBEEFEAH TR
WM R RENETEENENEE RS L+
EAMBEREMEMELEZ LEMERR L
IR EIR R AR A KB LG 5t RS 437,926,000
TZERELRE-REE_E_2F=/A=+—
HIEFEMREBEEURARAE

Annual Report 2021 ZE = —FFiR 229



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sR e MTERRMEE

31 March 2021
T —F=HK=+—H

6. Operating profit/(loss) 6. #ZESHEF (E518)

The Group’s operating profit/(loss) is arrived at after charging/ EBACEEA (B8 &40k GTA) IUF
(crediting): FIEBER
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TET
Staff costs, including directors’ emoluments: BIMA BFEEME .
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE FEREMERN 60,619 76,272
Retirement benefit costs BRER] A 2,603 3,340
Termination benefit costs R IEER A - 4,436
Total staff costs BT A48 63,222 84,048
Less: Amount capitalised and included in cost of & : BEA&REEBEF A
inventories sold BEGTEMAZEEE (21,362) (30,672)
Staff costs included in selling and marketing FFAGHE R HEE N TTE &
expenses, administrative and other operating HM&R SRS UREMESZ
expenses and other expenses BTHA 41,860 53,376
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEMBN & 1,980 1,800
Cost of inventories sold BEFEEMA 162,420 166,411
Cost of properties sold EEYER K 1,859,441 87,396
Outgoings in respect of investment properties BEEES 2 REMEMELZ
arising from rental-earning investment properties B EL H 1,194 2,045
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME- -BEMRREBZITE 10,111 13,203
Less: Amount capitalised and included in cost of 8 : BE ALK E st AR %7
inventories sold for printing business BEGFEMA TR (5,945) (9,260)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment MBS EZITE
included in selling and marketing expenses and (5t ASHE K& S MUK
administrative and other operating expenses THREMKEFS) 4,166 3,943
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6. Operating profit/(loss) (Continued) 6. RN (B8 @

REBQE R,/ (B8 &0k G UT
RIERER (@

The Group’s operating profit/(loss) is arrived at after charging/
(crediting): (Continued)

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TET
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of inventories F&R{E, (B{E 2 [B]#) 1,158 (526)
Write-back of impairment of accounts receivable — #[0] & I BR 3R R & (84) -
Impairment of other receivable HhEW R Z & - 7,565
Write-down of other non-current asset WoREMIERBE E 660 7,590
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of BRIMFEMERE " (BEZBIHE)
completed properties for sale (135) 3,109
Impairment of prepayment FENRIEZ A 1,185 =
Lease payments not included in the Tt AHEEBESTEZHANMNR
measurement of lease liabilities 877 2,223
Government subsidies* BT #E Bh (1,987) =
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to the subsides. * BEA RSN R ER RGN BEETE-
7. Finance costs 7. MEEH
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHAT TAET
Interest on bank borrowings IRITERZFE 8,813 15,843
Interest on lease liabilities HEaGZHE 134 205
Interest arising from revenue contracts (note) HWRASHNEEZFE () 42,296 39,257
Total interest M E4BEE 51,243 55,305
Less: Interest capitalised in properties under B RERYEZERMEFR
development (48,625) (46,943)
Total finance costs AEE B 2,618 8,362

Note: Mz HRASHEEZEBREEGSEARERIZE

Weam (ME24) Ret 2 FBM% -

Interest arising from revenue contracts represented interest expenses accreted on
the contract liabilities (note 24) which contain a significant financing component.

A capitalisation rate of 2.1% (2020: 6.15%) has been applied to the BHE_S_—F=ZHA=1+—RHLIEFEAER
BEENRYEREAEERI1% (CETF !
6.15%) st&E Xzt o

expenditure on the qualifying assets for the year ended 31 March
2021.
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Income tax

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group has
sufficient tax losses to offset the estimated assessable profits for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: nil).

The PRC corporate income tax for the Group’s subsidiaries in the
PRC is charged at 25% (2020: 25%) of the assessable profits, and
taxable income derived from the PRC by subsidiaries located outside
the territory is charged at the PRC withholding corporate income tax
rate of 10% (2020: 10%).

The LAT for the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC is levied at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% (2020: 30% to 60%)
on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including cost of land and all
property development expenditures.

Frisi

HRAEREZRBBEREEIRBERE_F
T —FZRB=+—HLEEFEEZ A ERRE
Mo o EmpE AN SR RER CTF
FiE)-

REBAPREWB RS 2 RECEMSIRTHIZ
FEERIN A 226% (TR ZRF 1 26%) 5T8
Rk R Bl 55 SN B A B EE 2 2 FER IR WA TS
BOEBINEERSRREI0% (TFE-F
F 1 10%) R o

AEBFEWBA B Z T HIEER TR L
BEEIEE G EYENERIER TR
T GE TR ARIBEYERESH) &
T F30%ZE60% (ZF T4 : 30%ZE60%) B
REM IR

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current — Hong Kong BRI —&A8
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years BEFEREBERIR (BRERE) (4,300) 3,881
Current — Mainland China B HA — HR [ oK
Corporate income tax PEMER
Charge for the year FELZH 144,326 4,445
LAT TR ER
Charge for the year FEXH 88,705 5,084
Deferred tax (note 27) EIEFRIE (F¥EE27) (221,218) (24,200)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year FERIBEXY (L% 8% 7,513 (10,790)
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8. Income tax (Continued) 8. FR1SR (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to profit/(loss) HRREARNBIREXRE DM EABIFES
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the ERE ZEERERERRRAEF S (B8)
Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax 2B (8% BIRERREAEZR
expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: R ZHIRWT
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Profit/(loss) before tax BRIRATEF], (B518) 10,496 (84,505)
Tax at the rate of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) M T16.5% (CE_TFE  16.5%)
FTEZRIE 1,732 (13,943)
Effect of different tax rates in different jurisdictions <@ E;A & R AR 2 8 £ 6,427 (1,186)
Expenses not deductible for tax ENCIE Y 53 5,479 7,605
Income not subject to tax BERRZUWA (4,763) (11,831)
Tax losses and other temporary differences KRR BHERAEMEEER
not recognised 2,938 4,684
Adjustments in respect of current tax of EEFERAARNIE AR
previous years (4,300) 3,881
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s effective rate IR AEEERMEKTE
wEZE, (5%) 7,513 (10,790)

Directors’ remuneration and five highest 9.

paid employees
Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies

ESMERLLREHMNES

)

RiE EH3RA BB A BEHIZE383(1)@) ~ (o)
ORKMERA AT RBEEEMEER) REH2

Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information EBIFBENARFARNEESNEOT ¢
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET
Fees e 968 981
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9. Directors’ remuneration and five highest 9. EEMERELESHNES

paid employees (Continued) (48)
Directors’ remuneration (Continued) EEME @)
(@) Independent non-executive directors (@ BWIUIFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during RERBNFTEIIENTES ZEEU
the year were as follows: I
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT TAET
Mr. Lam Chi Hung Louis MELETE 276 247
Mr. Hung Kin Man RERELE 276 247
Mr. Ho Man g4 276 247
828 741
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent RAERN > BEEMNBILIEFNTES S
non-executive directors during the year (2020: nil). Hitie CE2EZSF | o
(b) Executive directors (b) HITES
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contributions Total
HEEMR
ok BMEH BT EIER 1z
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET FHET FET
2021 S
Executive directors: BITES .
Mr. Li Qing FERE 70 - - 70
Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet X/ Elfe 70 - - 70
140 - - 140
2020 —EZEHE
Executive directors: BITES .
Mr. Li Qing EERE 120 - - 120
Ms. Au Hoi Lee Janet [E[Eip s 120 - - 120
240 - - 240
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Directors’ remuneration and five highest
paid employees (Continued)

Directors’ remuneration (Continued)
(b) Executive directors (Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2020: ni).

Five highest paid employees

None of the five highest paid employees during the year were
directors (2020: nil) as set out in above. Details of the remuneration
for the year of the five highest paid employees who are neither a
director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

%ﬂ%ﬁiﬂﬁ&i%%%%ﬁﬁﬂﬂ&é

EEME 8
b) BITES @

RAEFER TEREFHEARAEREE
Aifez 28 (CE2FE 1 H) -

LaeEHMES

REER A EESHNEST BE—®4
CEIZTF B /EF W LEXFH) -BEJF
TAREFNIFRBTHRAEZALREH
MEESNERNZEFBNT -

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Salaries e 6,455 6,770
Termination benefit costs & IEEA) A A - 1,165
Pension scheme contributions BRIRETEHERR 102 78
6,557 8,013

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

MR T EREPIFESRIFESITHA
EZEeHMESABUT

Number of employees

BEAE
2021 2020
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 71,000,000 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 75 & 1,500,0007 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 75 22,000,000/ 7T - 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017%7%£2,500,000% 75 1 1
5 5
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10.

11.

Dividends

The board of directors does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: nil). No interim
dividend was declared during the year (2020: nil).

Earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of the basic earnings (2020: loss) per share is based
on profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$2,983,000 (2020: loss of HK$73,715,000) and the number of
ordinary shares of 5,779,196,660 (2020: weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 3,989,135,615) in issue during the year.

The diluted earnings (2020: loss) per share is equal to the basic
earnings (2020: loss) per share since there were no dilutive potential
shares in issue during both years.

236 Magnus Concordia Group Limited At AEBMRGHIRAE

10.

11.

:25)

EFE BB RNBE_Z-_—F=H
Z+—HLEFEZRARE (CEZRF:
D) FRMESRTHARE CEZF !
) o

skEH  (FH)

SREARN (CEIEF B HREARA
A AL A EE 2,983,000 7T (CF
— T4 1 54873,715,000/870) REN B ETE
1AR5,779,196,6608% (CE - T4F | TERKR
MNFEF19$3,989,135,61508) 515 o

B ZMETERILEEEITETREEF
Rzk5 weR#EEEN CE222F 1
B DEEFNERELEN CE2ZTEF 16
B



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sR e MTERRIMEE

31 March 2021

=

£=g=+—8

12. Property, plant and equipment

12. M -BERRE

Owned assets Right-of-use assets
BREE REREE
Furniture and
fixtures and
Buildings  Leasehold Plant and office Motor Leasehold Motor
inthe PRC improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles Sub-total land Buildings vehicles Sub-total Total
FARRE
WRHAZ
TERT HEMERE  HRRES Eid A& M HEDE % A& gt 5t
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK§ 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
TEn TEn TiEn TiEn Tin TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
Cost: HAE:
At 1 Apr 2019 RIZ-NEmA-H 30837 1391 119922 15,79 3438 1,143 3,051 3236 - 6,287 177430
Acquisiton of a property development WE-ENERREE ()
business (note 30) - - 19 175 194 - - - - 194
Addtions i 426 2630 i = 3,967 - 1,462 1,460 2,922 6,889
Disposalsfuritten off - 0977 - (174) (6,151) - - - - 6,151)
Change in exchange rates - Y] 6] (10) - (20 (20) (30)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 Apri 2020
31,063 1301 116,575 16,683 3431 169,143 3,051 4678 1,460 9189 178,332
Addtions 610 - 1282 683 8 2610 - 304 - 304 5634
Disposalsfriten off 218) (39,603 379 679) (40,987) - - - (40937)
Change in exchange rates - - 3 17 20 - 128 128 143
At 31 March 2021 KZBZ-£ZA=1+-A 31,397 1301 78,204 16,99 2,854 130,836 3,051 782 1,460 12,3% 143,172
Accumulated depreciation ZRITE:
At 1 Aprl 2019 RZZ-NERA-A 17489 21 %47 13728 2357 130,252 - - - - 130252
Charge forthe year FEERY 1573 8 7732 98 511 11,062 118 1677 36 2,151 13208
Disposalsfriten off HE/H% - - (5433 - (174) (5607 - - - - (5607)
Change In exchange rate Exgg = = K] ] = m (7J (10
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020
19,062 539 9,716 14,686 2,691 135,604 118 1,670 356 2144 137,838
Charge for the year 1,59 218 43% 1153 29 1,716 118 1817 40 2,3% 10,111
Disposalsfiriten of 13 - (35,553) 379 679) (36,824) - - - - (36.624)
Change in exchange rate - - 2 6 8 - 3 3 4
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ-£ZA=1-A 20445 817 67,559 15462 2311 106,504 236 3,586 756 4578 111,172
Net carrying amount: RESE:
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ-£ZA=1-A 10,952 574 10,640 1528 543 2242 2816 4239 04 7,758 32,000
At 31 March 2020 RIFZFE=A=1-H 12001 852 17859 1997 740 3449 2983 3,008 1,104 7046 40404

Buildings in the PRC under owned assets and leasehold land under

right-of-use assets with net carrying amounts of HK$10,952,000
(2020: HK$12,001,000) and HK$2,815,000 (2020: HK$2,933,000),
respectively, have been pledged as security for the bank facilities of

the Group (note 25).

BEBEEE N ZTRETFTREAEEERT
Z AR LMEREFE D 5 7#310,952,000% 7T

£ 1 12,001,00077T) 52,815,000

77t (CZ 24 1 2,933,000%7T) Bt AcE

o
BRI TR

BB ERIRIR (FE25)
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13. IREBEYE

13. Investment properties

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$ 000

FAET FHET

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year REYZREE 434,440 522,644
Changes in fair value N EEE) (3,145) (78,201)
Exchange realignment PE R oA EE 10,750 (10,003)
Carrying amount at the end of the year RERZREE 442,045 434,440

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2021, the Group’s investment properties with a carrying
value of HK$306,000,000 (2020: HK$434,440,000) were pledged to
secure bank facilities granted to the Group (note 25).

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment
properties was Level 3.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
(2020: nil).

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at 31 March 2021
by an independent professional valuer, Graval Consulting Limited
(2020: Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited), who holds recognised
relevant professional qualifications and has recent experience in the
locations and segments of the investment properties valued. For all
investment properties, their current use equates to the highest and
best use.
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13. REYE (B)

13. Investment properties (Continued)

Valuation processes of the Group (Continued)

The Group’s management reviews the valuations performed by the
independent valuer for financial reporting purposes and reports to
the directors of the Group. Discussions of the valuation processes
and results are held between the management and valuer at least
once every six months, in line with the Group’s interim and annual
reporting processes. The management:

- verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation reports;

— assesses property valuation movements when compared to
the prior period valuation reports; and

— holds discussions with the independent valuer.
Valuation techniques

Fair value of completed commercial or office properties in Hong
Kong and Mainland China is generally derived using the income
capitalisation method and direct comparison method, wherever
appropriate. The income capitalisation method is based on
capitalisation of the net income and the reversionary income potential
by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates, which are derived from
analysis of sale transactions and valuers’ interpretation of prevailing
investor requirements or expectations. The prevailing market
rents adopted in the valuation have reference to valuers’ view of
recent lettings, within the subject properties and other comparable
properties. The direct comparison method is based on market
comparable transactions available in the market and adjustments of
various factors would be made between the subject properties and
comparable properties.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

TEFEZEERRE (@

FEBZEEBAPTHMHRS TIFMER
B AEMFHZGE TRARERZEER
HoEEERENS/NER —REGEH
HEBEMMER BAERT PHRFERS
BF—H -BEET:

— BREEIGERSZAEIZEE

— HBTHBZGERSFHIEER TG
MELEZES, &

—  BEVEEMETRRC
(CRIEWp7

EBRTEARENERBEEAMAEYEZ
NTEBESRABABRNOERBELBE

GNER) BE - WABREED KA EEN
EABELERRRAZFERBOIHMEZE
FEWABRE MEBHERECEERTI MU
EXFZOMREEMEREEZER ZEX
FHZRERRE LEMRAZERTHE
BT UIRHYE R EMBIE LB EZ R
HIAER2E - ERILEUET AR TS AR
B2 MBI BB ZET LR MRAE
KA BB ENESARFLRAE-

REERN  GEF AL EEAES -
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13. Investment properties (Continued)

Significant unobservable inputs used to

13. REYXE (B)

AUBEEAFEZERAATRE

determine fair value B A IR
Relationship
Significant of unobservable
Valuation unobservable Range inputs to fair
techniques inputs or weighted average fair value
RARRHA
ERFAHE HBEATEN
fhERZE BAKIE HEHMEFH £
2021 2020
Commercial properties Income Capitalisation 2.7% 2.7% Note 1
in Hong Kong capitalisation rate liE=al
REENERYE method BAEX
WABRIEZE
Unit market HK$110 HK$110 Note 2
rent per month  to HK$270  to HK$270 fysE2
per square foot  110ETE 110BTE
SREMSHEE 27087 27087t
(BFHFER
Direct Average unit HK52,000 HK$52,000 Note 3
comparison market price to to MiEES
method per square foot HK$118,500 HK$120,000
BEEEEE THEATHER 52,0008TE 52,0008 TE
(BFFHER) 118,50087T 120,000 7T
Commercial or Income Capitalisation 3.9% 3.8% Note 1
office properties in capitalisation rate to 4.5% t0 4.3% ikl
Mainland China method BEAREX 3.9%F45% 3.8%ZF4.3%
RHRBRAENEER WABRIEE
MAEYE
Unit market HK$60 HK$65 Note 2
rent per month  to HK$190  to HK$200 FEE2
per square meter 60ETTE 65BTTE
SHEBMmRHES 19078 7T 200787
\BEAHXK)
Direct Average unit  HK$14,500 HK$16,000 Note 3
comparison market price to to My5E3
method  per square meter  HK$58,000 HK$64,000
BHRUEBE FHEAMBER 14,50087TE 16,0008 TE
(85K 5800087 64,0008
Notes: FdsE -
1. The higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value 1. BERCEWS AT ESE
2. The higher the market rent, the higher the fair value 2. misHEEEE ATESS
3. The higher the unit market price, the higher the fair value 3. BAHISESHS AFEESS
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14. Leases

14. 8

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of buildings and
motor vehicles used in its operations. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease
periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under
the terms of these land leases. Leases of buildings generally have
lease terms between 2 and 5 years, while motor vehicles generally
have lease terms between 3 and 5 years. Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside
the Group. There are several lease contracts that include extension
and termination options.

(@  Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and
the movements during the year are disclosed in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(b)  Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of the Group’s lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are disclosed in note 26 to the

consolidated financial statements.

(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases

are as follows:

TEBERAEBEA

FERERRERHRAAEANZERTFR
AEEENEESL - BRANFH —RIEMAR
Mm 2 T IR BETE & i > FHHR 73504 > AR
ZE T B ERIRR BT SR E S HERNR
BT HEENARER R2E5F > TREN
HEEE R3ESF - —RM = FEETAE
FEBELON TEBEREEEEEE - RH
EoaRTERAEIEERE-

EREEE

FEREREEENREERFANE

WERGEMBRRMEE20

HEEE

FrEFEBEASENREERFNEIIR

Bt BmRMEE26-

FABEE RN T ¢

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Interest on lease liabilities HEaENE 134 205
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets {FREEE EFERS 2,395 2,151

Expense relating to short-term leases and
other leases with remaining lease terms

B X5 HATE & K BR TAEHP
N_Z_—F=B=+—H%

ended on or before 31 March 2021 ZAERNEMAEERNMAX 842 2,208
Expense relating to leases of HEEEEERERMANMX

low-value assets 35 15
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 1B PIESI R IE AL RE 3,406 4,579
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14. Leases (Continued) 14. FHE (&)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13) consisting
of commercial properties and office properties in Hong Kong and
Mainland China under operating lease arrangements. The terms of
the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during
the year was HK$10,773,000 (2020: HK$10,385,000), details of
which are included in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 31 March 2021, the Group had total undiscounted minimum
lease payments receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

FEEEREEAN (B

d MERSRHEBEENGETHBRE
MisE34 0

AEBRFALER

AEBRBLCEHERHHAERSEB RS
Bl APERI B (R MEH13) > BiEmEYE
R A= o B — R E KA P 2R
FBRWIRIEERNIRITH R ELRAME AL
FRRERIASIAL10,773,0008 T (22
T4 1 10,385,000/87T) 0 BRIEIBEHIN GRS
SRR MIsEs o

N_E - —F=B=+—H AEEREBHEA
HAFTIIMNA R E SRS IABER 1
R WK IR R A E A RABERI T ¢

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAT TAET

Within one year —FR 9,612 9,224
After one year but within two years —EEWE 3,157 7,711
After two years but within three years MEE=F 903 2,009
After three years but within four years —FEFEOF 151 -
13,823 18,944
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15. Other non-current assets 15. HIERBIE =
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FAET FHET
Tax indemnity upon sales of properties (note) HEMER 2 MIERE (WD) 29,408 30,068
Prepayment for acquisition of property, WY BB R ek s 2 Fa I FIa
plant and equipment - 155
Others Hih 34 35
29,442 30,258
Note: Balance represents the tax indemnity from Chuang’s Consortium International Wizt . S&EEEANBEBEEERENBASMEKE -
Limited (“CCIL”) in relation to the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years. HWEBERERAS (HLEE) 2RNIEHWER
According to the sale and purchase agreement, CCIL shall indemnify the Group HBEERSE BT REENBEHEREENUE
for profits tax liabilities arising from the subsequent sales of the properties B A EEMBEZMEMELEZFERERE
acquired by the Group through the acquisition of subsidiaries with the maximum B2 £ E LU R 537,658,000 7T 2 S FE1E o o
amount of HK$37,658,000. During the year, a write down of HK$660,000 (2020: AR » 2 BT U E1F0 T8 57 15 FE 52 MURI660,00078 7T
HK$7,590,000) is recognised for the tax indemnity recoverable because of the (ZZEZF 4 17,590,000 70) * TR B %
decrease in the fair values of the respective properties. B AFERL
. 4E
16. Inventories 16. 78§
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Raw materials i 9,733 9,746
Work in progress TR 10,615 13,956
Finished goods BB MR 3,387 19,488
23,735 43,190
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17. Properties under development 17. RERYE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAET FHET
Properties under development expected to be TR EEEERAAT IR
completed within normal operating cycle and U EIpREEE R %
recovered:
Within one year —FR 1,144,100 1,627,018
After one year —FE 598,608 1,326,669
1,742,708 2,853,687
The properties are expected to be completed within the normal ZETRRR N EREBBEBAT L 2EA
operating cycle and are classified under current assets. The MBBEE-RBEEZEF=-_F=-+—HILt
balance represents residential properties under development FE GHEIENRERBEBER S A
situated in Sichuan Province, the PRC, acquired through a business B |& 2z FEREEDE (TEE30)
combination during the year ended 31 March 2020 (note 30).
18. Completed properties for sale 18. BRI HEYXE
The balance represents completed residential properties held for sale REEZZZEF-RB=+—HIFE &~
situated in Sichuan Province, the PRC, acquired through a business ERFERNBEBERSFWEMAN PRI
combination during the year ended 31 March 2020 (note 30) and 2 ERIFEFEYE (I5E30) » KAIRAE
certain residential villas held for sale situated in Hunan Province, the MEEzEeETHREEEE-

PRC.
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19. Accounts receivable/prepayments, other 19. FEURERTX T HRIE « H{thfE

receivables and other assets

WBRTI B Lt & =

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Accounts receivable FEUR AR RN 52,314 50,270
Less: Impairment B ORE (320) (404)
51,994 49,866

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 days to 180
days to its trade customers of the printing business. Rental income
is received in advance. Proceeds from the sale of properties are
received in advance or upon delivery of the completed properties
to customers. For customer with long-term business relationship, a
longer credit period may be granted. Accounts receivable are non-
interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable based on the invoice
date and net of loss allowance at the end of the reporting period is as

RERGTHERI X E 5 Z 308 E180H
ZEEH - HEWATHTEFURER © 85 E M ZEFR
SREDAEBBRANZIAETINEER
FEIRE - I B REFBEFRNER
BRTERNEEN -BUIRRTE R

REIREHFR - BUGRTINFRE IR B RRIZER
BHZ7ZBREDITINT :

follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET
Within 30 days 30K 16,866 14,764
31 to 60 days 31ZE60K 6,153 3,021
61 to 90 days 610K 12,926 9,675
Over 90 days BiE0K 16,049 22,406
51,994 49,866

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
ECLs which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all accounts
receivable. Impairment of accounts receivable is calculated using
the expected loss rates, which are based on credit assessments
on ageing of the accounts receivable, past repayment history,
subsequent settlement status, deposits received, credit profile of
the customers and on-going business relationship with the relevant
customers and adjusted for forward-looking information affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the accounts receivable.

FERRBEBMBREENFSRBESE
STETRIMEERE RATARUERREAZH
TRRARS IR R - FEUURR ZRET  HE N B &
WERF AR RS EHE  BEERES BT
EERRE B - BREERN AR EEH
FERIREEFRGF ERARABIERHE
WL ER R EERUIRRBIBE D BRI
BRMEHRE
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19. Accounts receivable/prepayments, other
receivables and other assets (Continued)

The movements in loss allowance is as follows: EiEEE e
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At the beginning of the year REY) 404 404
Write-back of impairment loss BERIE 2 [0]# (84) -
At the end of the year R 320 404

The Group’s accounts receivable in the amount of HK$575,000
(2020: HK$731,000) are held as collateral for bank borrowings of the
Group (note 25).

The following is an analysis of the prepayments, other receivables
and other assets:

RNEBFAHS575,0008 T (ZE 24 .
731,000 7T) Z EWEERNE1EA A& B A
SRTTEREVIRIE S (5E25) ©

T RRANRE HthEBRR R EtMEEZ
O

2021 2020

Note HK$’000 HK$ 000

b= FHET FHET

Deposits e (i) 6,810 1,848

Prepayments FEfFRIE 0] 225,228 108,627

Cost of obtaining contracts EE & AR (i) 12,969 16,376

Other receivables HAhFE U RN 36,611 30,244
Prepaid value added taxes (“VAT”) and levies ~ TE{HEERR (MEER) &

BE 7,164 4,244

288,782 161,339

[0] Balance mainly represented the prepayments and deposits paid to suppliers for
construction works of property development projects, procurement of printing raw
materials and the office rental deposits.

(i) Cost of obtaining contracts represented the prepaid sales commission paid in
connection with the sales of properties. The Group has capitalised the amounts
paid and will charge them to the income statement when the revenue from the
related property sales is recognised and will be included in selling and marketing
expenses at that time. During the year ended 31 March 2021, sales commission
of HK$14,895,000 (2020: HK$1,333,000) was charged to the income statement.

Impairment of other receivables is measured at either 12-month
expected credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
the initial recognition.
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20. Financial assets at fair value through profit 20. AT EFAEBZZESREE

or loss
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET
Corporate bonds listed in Hong Kong REBEMARES 23,154 64,859
Corporate bonds listed outside Hong Kong REBIRI LT ABES 19,368 31,178
42,522 96,037
The above debt investments were classified as financial assets at HRENRERENLFEAZINERE KT
fair value through profit or loss as the contractual cash flow was not B EMEBREDEAR AT ES ABE
solely payments of principal and interest. ZEREE-

21. Pledged cash and cash equivalents, 21. EEHFRERBEELEY - =

. 4= 7=
restricted bank balances and cash and bank RHEIER 1T FEURIRERIRTT
balances K1
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Pledged cash and cash equivalents: BERRERIAEEEY -

Certificate of deposit (note (i) 88 (MF5E()) - 120,000
Restricted bank balances (note (i) ZIRFBIRITAER () 29,128 35,897
Cash and bank balances: RERIBITER -

Cash at banks and in hand RITERRFERE 76,138 67,936

Short-term deposits fRHATERR 73,082 197,566

149,220 265,502

Notes: MI5E

0] Certificate of deposit was purchased from a creditworthy bank in Singapore, (i) FEEENNE—BEEREFNIRT BEEF
earning interest at a fixed rate of 1.95% per annum with an original maturity period AE1.95% REHBEASI R - R_ETF=4
of 31 days. At 31 March 2020, the certificate of deposit was pledged to secure =+—B FEEIRREAR FTAEENIRITME
bank facilities granted to the Group (note 25). IR (I5525) o

(ii) In accordance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations, proceeds from the (ii) RIEAERIPEARRA) BB TREMENR
pre-sale of certain properties under development are required to be deposited BRIEAFEAEERITRARZHNEMAEBEE R
into designated bank accounts and restricted to be used in the relevant project RBIE R o B RAR SIS R ES BRI B B MNP A
construction. Such restriction will be uplifted upon the attainment of the relevant HEEEBMER

ownership certificates issued by the authorities.
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21.

22,

Pledged cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank balances and cash and bank
balances (Continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The effective interest rates on short-term deposits
range from 0.02% to 1.35% (2020: 0.01% to 2.35%) per annum and
these deposits have maturities ranging from 1 week to 3 months
(2020: 1 day to 3 months). The bank balances and deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Majority of cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) are held in Mainland China and subject to local exchange
control regulations. These local exchange control regulations restrict
capital remittance from the territory, other than through normal
dividend distribution. The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Accounts payable

An ageing analysis of accounts payable at the end of the reporting
period based on the date of suppliers’ invoices is as follows:

21.

22,

ERFRERRETEFEY =
REGRITEFURRERIRIT
=iF (@

ERIBTHIRERESHRITERENT
BRI EBIAE - BHRERZERERNX
N F0.02%ZE1.35% (B -BE : 0.01%E
2.35%) > ZEEREHANF1IBEIEA (=
L2 1HEMEA) RITEERERT
WRNMEE R B IBFE AR T

REHUARE TARE) SHENRERIR
TRERTEREFAEZHNEMERE
BRG] - 25 EMELEFRPIRTIEAEDL
Boh > BB —MRIRBDIRERRI  ARBESR
FEEHRIMBEME R 24T > RIBPEARE
Z SNEEIEARE MURAEE ~ S ERATEEIER
T FERBEEEBEREETIINEES 2R
TRARBRIGSEMER -

FE{TBR TR

RS B RFRIRERRERBIZES
ZIREG DTN ¢

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAET TAT

Within 30 days 30K 95,289 117,309
31 to 60 days 31E60K 10,802 4,980
61 to 90 days 61E90K 16,304 9,836
Over 90 days E=HE PN 62,435 48,057
184,830 180,182
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23. Accrued charges and other payables

24,

The following is an analysis of the accrued charges and other

23. [Est B AR EMEMIRR

T Est BB REMB IR Z D1

payables:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Accrued staff costs, subcontracting costs EstETImMA - DEERAM
and other accruals HhEst& A 11,332 15,372
Customer, tenant and other deposits ZER AR REMZE 9,649 17,735
Construction costs payable related to M EYEERZENESRER
investment properties 11,267 19,136
VAT and levies payable EER R ELSER 10,888 43,818
Payable for acquisition of certificate of WeRs 7 B 2 eI IR (MYEE21)
deposit (note 21) - 120,000
Consideration payable for acquisition of a WHE— B X RER L EGRE
property development business (note 30) (MFE30) 39,432 39,432
Accrued contingent consideration (note 31) FESTEAMRE (F5E31) 7,725 =
Others Hith 16,781 12,702
107,074 268,195
Contract liabilities 24. EH&EE
The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract AEBECDHTDUTHERAERZSHNEE ©
liabilities:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Sale of printed products tHEENRIE & 6,342 6,965
Sale of properties HEY = 1,017,486 1,886,409
Total contract liabilities SHNEEREE 1,023,828 1,893,374
As at 1 April 2019, the Group has recognised contract liabilities N TE-NFNA—B > ZEEBERRERIH

related to sales of printed products of HK$6,382,000. The Group
receives payments from customers based on the billing schedule as
established in contracts.

EENRIE mzZ & 48 186,382,000/ 7 ° A&
HRBANPREINGEEERZ R WEA

=
o
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I

24. Contract liabilities (Continued)

The decrease in contract liabilities in 2021 was mainly due to the
revenue recognised in 2021 in relation to contract liabilities at 31
March 2020 from the sale of properties. The increase in contract
liabilities in 2020 was mainly due to the increase in advances
received from customers in relation to the sales of properties after the
business combination as detailed in note 30.

24.

GH&1E (@)

A — om—

=" F =

—FZEHNEaERDTEZHRR
TR —EMIEIEE=A=1+—H*K E
HEVMENEGHNEa/EBIBWA > MR 2=
SEZAENEEENERRERSHESR
RASHEME Y BKE R EFUEM GHBE R M
30) °

The following table shows the amount of the revenue recognised in TRIITARE ARESNRA BEE S
the current reporting period that relates to carried-forward contract BENEREED -
liabilities.
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Revenue recognised that was included in the ThEHE DR E R E T AFR]
contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the &4#IEE4EFHERERIA
year for sales of printed products and properties 1,595,009 6,382

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied) as at 31 March are as follows:

R=ZB=+—HoEEFNHENEET KE
7 2R EREENMT -

2020 2021
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET

Amounts expected to be recognised as revenue: FEHBFESR 2 WA Z RIB
Within one year —FRN 1,080,165 1,536,459
After one year —F% - 405,800
Total a5t 1,080,165 1,942,259

For contracts that have an original practical expected duration of
one year or less, the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 is not
disclosed as permitted by the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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25. Bank borrowings

25, $R1TfE

=
N

2021 2020
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity HK$000 (%) Maturty HK$'000
BIRFIE(%) oL FET  BEBERE% Bl TR
Current e
Bank loans - secured BIET-HHER 2021 or 2020 or
on demand on demand
1881058 ZEZ—Fg 39610634 “EITE
1.88%5.8 BREX 219,075 3.96%6.34 FHRER 373,127
Maturity of the bank borrowings are BIEDEEINA
analysed into: HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FiER
Within one year or on demand —ERGHRER 219,075 373,127
Notes: MisE
@ Certain bank facilities of the Group are secured by: (@ AEEETRITHREBAUTZIEERIE
[0} the pledge of the Group's right-of-use assets amounting to HK$2,815,000 (i) AEMZFHAEEE281500087T (ZF

(2020: HK$2,933,000);

(if) the pledge of the Group’s buildings amounting to HK$10,952,000 (2020:

HK$12,001,000);

(iii) the pledge of the Group’s investment properties amounting to
HK$306,000,000 (2020: HK$434,440,000) and assignment of rental

income;

(iv) the pledge of the Group’s accounts receivable amounting to HK$575,000

(2020: HK$731,000);

W) the pledge of the Group’s certificate of deposit of HK$120,000,000 as at

31 March 2020; and

(vi) equity interests of certain subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 March 2020.

)

T4 2,933,000/ 7T) Z KR

AEEZEF10,952,0008 7T (ZTE=F
£ 112,001,000/ 7T) Z K ;

A& E 2 % E Y 2£306,000,0008 T (ZF
ZZ4F 1 434,440,000 70) IR KAE
WA Z 8% ;

NEE 2 EWERRS75,0008 7T (2
£ 1 731,000/ 7T) ZIEH ;

AEER_ZZF=Z/A=1+—HZFE
120,000,000 7T Z K48 ; &

FEBETHBAANR -2 -_2F=A
=t+—Hz#me
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25. Bank borrowings (Continued) 25. SRITE™ (B)

As further explained in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, due to the adoption of HK Interpretation 5 Presentation
of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan That Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause, the Group’s
bank loans with the aggregate amount of HK$219,075,000 (2020:
HK$373,127,000) as at 31 March 2021, containing a repayment on
demand clause, have been classified as current liabilities. For the
purpose of the above analysis, these bank loans are included within
current interest-bearing bank loans and analysed into bank loans
repayable within one year or on demand. Ignoring the effect of any
repayment on demand clause and based on the maturity terms of
the bank borrowings, the amounts repayable in respect of the bank
borrowings are as follows:

Wir &M IRR M EI7FTE— S e EHIR
B BRIERR I FREZZE5—EHN
HEEZBERENNEZ BHEZN S 1
BT FZA=+—H FXEEHFEREX
BIRE X 2 485874219,075,000/8 7T (CE-F
£F 1 373,127,000/87T) tRITERE D LEA T E
BEom LA S LLFRTERESA
BNERsT BERITERU UDMAR —SRTIRE
RIBEZIRITER  REAMEERERIEX
2 R ERAREIRI TR EIHALARR - BRARTT
B ZENSEEOT -

In the third to
Within In the fifth years, Beyond
one year  second year inclusive five years Total
B=EE
BHE
(m1E
—&R kS BERE) BBREF At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTERT FTET TET TEx
As at 31 March 2021 RZE-—£=A=+—-H
Bank loans RITEN 87,075 16,000 116,000 - 219,075
As at 31 March 2020 RZEZ2£=A=+—-H
Bank loans RITER 369,127 14,000 = - 373,127
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26. Lease liabilities 26. tHE&E

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the HESBENRmERFEREEST
year are as follows:

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Carrying amount at beginning of the year REVZEREE 3,933 3,236
New leases WMEE 3,024 2,922
Accretion of interest recognised during the year — FERIFESRHIF B 1€ 710 134 205
Payments IR (2,300) (2,223)
Exchange realignment PE oA EE 78 (207)
Carrying amount at the end of the year RELZIREE 4,869 3,933
Analysed into: DA
Current portion TRENER D 2,195 2,058
Non-current portion JETRBIEL 2,674 1,875
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 37 to the HEaEIRIMEERGRS U HEREME
consolidated financial statements. 37°
27. Deferred tax 27. IRIEMRIE
The movements of net deferred tax liabilities of the Group are as AEBIFIERIESFEFRBEENT !
follows:
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FAET FHET
At beginning of the year REH) 520,660 59,981
Acquisition of a property development WS —IEY) £ B E 7 (H5E30)
business (note 30) - 505,839
Deferred tax credited to the income FARE BN ERZIEIEIRIE
statement during the year (note 8) (HI5E8) (221,218) (24,200)
Exchange realignment E R aR R 34,445 (20,960)
At end of the year RELR 333,887 520,660
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27. Deferred tax (Continued) 27. IEIEFRIB (48)

FANREBELERESE EE) 228 (it

The movements in deferred tax liabilities/(assets) of the Group (prior (&
REHE— IR FE R A& 2 45ERA0 WIF -

to offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during
the year are as follows:

Deferred
Deferred tax liabilities tax assets
BERIEEE BEREEE
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Fair value investment
adjustments properties
arising from Accelerated and completed
business tax properties
combination  depreciation for sale Total Tax losses
kBRI
EBAHEE MERE FEMEEE
HATFERE e ZATERE kel ikt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET FTET FTET FET
At 1 April 2019 RZIZ2-NENA—H - 764 59,384 60,148 (167)
Charged/(credited) to income RN/ R BiE
statement during the year (12,153) 173 (12,220) (24,200 -
Acquisition of a property WE—TEEEBER
development business 505,839 - S 505,839 S
Exchange realignment ERAE (19,748) - (1,212) (20,960) -
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 _fﬁfﬁ =+—H
ZZIZFMA— EI 473,938 937 45,952 520,827 (167)
Charged/(credited) to income F W ks (8%) B
statement during the year (219,674) (937) (774) (221,385) 167
Exchange realignment BB 33,185 - 1,260 34,445 -
At 31 March 2021 RZE_—£=A=+—-H 287,449 - 46,438 333,887 -

B INR M TEITEE 2 A0 B = BN SN B 40 %E
AH1.973E8BT (T T E ! 1.772%%7570
BB BAMSBIE R EFESHBERRRE

Unused tax losses, net off with temporary differences in respect
of accelerated tax depreciation in the aggregate amount of
approximately HK$197.3 million (2020: HK$177.2 million) have not

been recognised as deferred tax assets in the consolidated financial
statements as it is not considered probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the tax losses and the temporary differences
can be utilised. The tax losses of approximately HK$10.6 million
(2020: HK$7.4 million) in the PRC will expire within five years from the
end of reporting period and the remaining balances in Hong Kong
have no expiry dates.
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27.

28.

—F=ZA=+—8H

Deferred tax (Continued) 27. IEIEFRIB (48)
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding TRAE AR B (B 2 FRASHE » FC AR Yt A R AV b
tax, is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the BhERINEKEETIRIER S BHAN10%
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. AN -BREEEBR S N\F—F—BifeE
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to MERERR_EEtE+"_A=+—HZ%E
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate ZBR] o BB SN I BB TR B A
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and BT EMRBHE M EAREEIIRE A
the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The applicable rate of the EENERREAS % HANETHENBL
Group is 5%. Deferred tax liabilities of approximately HK$0.4 million BIREHEBRABEHEEBANRBRE  BZERF
(2020: HK$0.4 million) arising from withholding tax on the unremitted Z AR ES 2 IRERIBESE408 BT (2
earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries have not been recognised TR 408 E) UAR ST —F=A
totalled approximately HK$7.4 million at 31 March 2021 (2020: =+ —HRGEUBRRERSELNT74I08 8
HK$7.1 million) in the consolidated financial statements as these T (CEIEE 710887 ©
earnings are expected to be reinvested.
Share capital 28. &7
2021 2020
HK’000 HK’000
FHET FHET
Authorised: EE -
8,000,000,000 (2020: 8,000,000,000) 8,000,000,0008% (ZZ2=Z 4 .
ordinary shares 8,000,000,000f%) & 18 % 800,000 800,000
2,000,000,000 (2020: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,00008 (& —FF :
preference shares (note (i) 2,000,000,0008%) B5ch& (M%) 20,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRHARE
5,779,196,660 (2020: 5,779,196,660) 5,779,196,6608% (ZZ &
ordinary shares 5,779,196,6608%) &4 A% 577,920 577,920
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28. Share capital (Continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as
follows:

AT Z RALEFALT ¢

28. ks (48)

Number of Share
shares in issue capital
BRITRMHE [N
HK$’000
TFHET
At 1 April 2019 R_E—AFMNE—H 3,310,812,417 331,081
New shares issued as consideration for ERKE—BMEERER
the acquisition of a property development REMEETZIMS (BTEE)
business (note (iii) 662,162,483 66,216
Issue of shares upon rights issue (note (iv)) AR EFEE 1T ARD (B EE(v) 1,806,221,760 180,623
At 31 March 2020, 1 April 2020 RZEZZEF=HF=+—08"
and 31 March 2021 TETRFA-HRK
- —F=B=+—H 5,779,196,660 577,920

Notes:

(i)

()

The preference shares rank in priority to the ordinary shares of the Company as to
dividend and return of capital.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to the
annual general meeting held on 29 August 2012, which is valid and effective for a
term of ten years from the date of its adoption. Under the Scheme, the directors
may grant options to the eligible persons as defined in the Scheme, inter alia, any
directors, employees or business consultants of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company under the terms and conditions stipulated
therein. The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at 29 August 2012. No options have been granted under the
Scheme since its adoption.

On 1 August 2019, the Company allotted and issued 662,162,483 ordinary shares
as part of the consideration for the acquisition of Jinjin Investments Co., Limited as
detailed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

On 13 February 2020, the Company issued 1,806,221,760 ordinary shares
upon completion of the rights issue on the basis of one rights share for two
existing ordinary shares held by shareholders of the Company at a subscription
price of HK$0.11 per rights share. The gross proceeds from the rights issue
were approximately HK$198,685,000. The net proceeds after deducting related
expenses of approximately HK$5,045,000 were approximately HK$193,640,000.
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RIZE-—ZFENAZ+NBABGTZRRBERE
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BARB Z D o RIFEAE B AIIR B 2 FEIRIEFT S
RzaBRNBEFTSBBERARNR -F—Z4F
NBZ+NBE#HITREZ10% - Bt 8RR
& BARBILR HE R AR -

RZE-AFNA—B xRAFRE#HEKRET
662,162,483 HBRF AW EIRKRERRAH
ZBANE GBERESHHREMEEI0)

RZZEZEEZ/F+=0> ARAFARERTREE
35171,806,221, 7608 LB » U — R ME (7K 1%
MAATDRRFAEZRRRELER REES
FRERRKRMGOATEBIT HRAESMIEBEREAN
198,685,000/ 7T © 1 11 bR 48 B & F3 #95,045,0007%
TLH8 2 FrSUE % 3849 %193,640,000 7T ©
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29.

30.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Business combination
Acquisition of a property development business

On 1 August 2019, the Group acquired the entire equity interest
of Jinjin Investments Co., Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Jinjin
Group”), which is principally engaged in the development and sale of
residential properties in Sichuan Province, the PRC. The acquisition
was intended by the Group to expand its property development
business segment.

According to a sale and purchase agreement entered into
between the Group and the seller, the acquisition consideration
of HK$400,000,000 was to be satisfied by: (i) the allotment and
issuance of 662,162,483 consideration shares of the Company
at the issue price of HK$0.21 amounting to approximately
HK$139,054,000; and (ii) the payment of approximately
HK$260,946,000. The Group also agreed to make the conditional
Pro Rata Payment (as defined in note 31) for up to HK$200,000,000
to the seller in proportion to the fulflment of the Profit Target (as
defined in note 31) or of the Delivery Target (as defined in note 31),
whichever is lower, during the Relevant Periods (as detailed in note
31).

Acquisition consideration:

29.

30.

(54

FEBRAEEERBEEE S HELTERE
B2 SRR

EBas
WE—IEMERRET

RAZE-NFNA—H AEEBRBETRRE
BRABDKREMBAR ((RREE) 228
et HEZRPEN) B REETEDEERE
RIHE - AEBETRZIBT EEREEYE
BREH DAL

REAREREAE HITNEE RS IERE
400,000,000 TTAF A R A R ZAT (1A RQF
W EE(TB0.21 B ol 8 R 8817662,162,4838%
KRB > & EEAVFE139,054,0008 7T ; Ki)X
1149260,946,00078 7t o AEBE TR BN A
AR GEIBERMIES31) BEF B (ExEH
F131) WA E R (&R BMES1) ZIEM LA
UUREE A %E) ME A5 T/ %200,000,000
B2 BBRAREAEH (EEREMEE3T)

WHRALE

HK$'000

FHET

Cash consideration (note (i) REAE FIEi)) 260,946
Fair value of consideration shares (note (ii)) RERD ZAFE GEEEi) 127,135
Fair value of contingent consideration (note 31) FARRBZAFE (HFE31) -
388,081

Annual Report 2021 ZE = —FFiR

257



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sR e MTERRMEE

31 March 2021
T —F=HK=+—H

30. Business combination (Continued)

Acquisition of a property development business
(Continued)

Notes:

[0] As at the acquisition date, 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021, approximately
HK$39,432,000 had been withheld by the Group as retention of the seller’s tax
payable.

(i) Fair value of the consideration shares was determined with reference to the closing

price of the Company’s shares of HK$0.192 per share at the acquisition date on 1
August 2019.

The fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities

30. EHFEH (&)
W —IBYI R B RER (B)

FIsE -

0} REERR  — B2 -FF=-A=+—BAK="F_—
F=ZR=+—H ~EETEIN#39,432,0008 T 1F
RESRHIRERSE-

(i RERNDZAFEDESELRAFDRMOICKER

ATZ-NFENB—BZKRHESR0192BTE
Fo

RS H AT RE R E W B R H R B E KPR

assumed of the Jinjin Group at the date of acquisiton were as AEEENATFENT :
follows:

HK$'000

FHET

Property, plant and equipment ME-BERERE 194
Properties under development FEEEdasky/ES 2,505,286
Completed properties for sale ERITEYE 101,628
Accounts receivable FEUSBRRR 545
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets FE(TAIE s HithEW IR R Bt E E 69,725
Restricted bank balances ZIREIIRITEEF 10,583
Cash and bank balances RWERIRITHET 9,505
Accounts payable FE(TBRRN (191,128)
Accrued charges and other payables FEST & B R B ET RN (121,858)
Contract liabilities BHEE (1,360,872)
Tax payables FETRIE (61,920)
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEAE (505,839)
Total identifiable net assets AR EEFEAERE 455,849
Bargain purchase gain on acquisition W EERE R (67,768)

388,081
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30. EHFEH (&)
Wi —TEY R B RER (B)

30. Business combination (Continued)

Acquisition of a property development business

(Continued)
HK$'000
FHET
Bargain purchase gain on acquisition W R ERE W 67,768
Less: Transaction costs B RB A (7,698)
Net bargain purchase gain on acquisition W R EEE NG 35 60,070
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEEENIRE M $EE .
HK$'000
FHET
Cash consideration paid BNRERE 221,514
Add: Transaction costs 0 AR B A 7,698
Less: Prepayment for the acquisition during the year ended BEEZSE-NEFE=A=1+—H
31 March 2019 IFFEWEZ FEERIB (80,000)
Less: Cash and bank balances acquired BT RBIR S RIRTTHTF (9,505)
Net cash outflow WEMHFER 139,707

BETTZTTF-_A=-+—HILFENRES
=B B W& 460,070,000 T A EE T 2

A bargain purchase gain of approximately HK$60,070,000 was
recognised during the year ended 31 March 2020. The Group

measured the fair value of the properties under development
and held for sale with reference to the valuation based on the
residual method carried out by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited,
an independent professional valuer, at the acquisition date. The
management of the Group considered that the bargain purchase gain
was mainly benefited from the difference between the market price
of consideration shares allotted at the date of acquisition and the
contract price as well as the valuation premium arising from certain
business concessionary and support measures in Mainland China
prevailing during the year ended 31 March 2020.

TR BEMGEMPETEE RN
BERRZET 2 ESERETYERK
RFEREMEZATE FEREEERR
AEBBEWR@DIEZ @R WEE RS E
REROzHERGNEZERUREET
TTZF=-RA=+—HIEFERNTEKER
TETEBBEERSERSRAGEEEE
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30.

31.

Business combination (Continued)

Acquisition of a property development business
(Continued)

The acquired subsidiaries contributed revenue of approximately
HK$87,000,000 and recorded loss after tax of approximately
HK$12,000,000 in the consolidated income statement of the Group
for the period from the acquisition date to 31 March 2020. Had the
acquisition of the subsidiaries occurred on 1 April 2019, the revenue
and net loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 would
have been approximately HK$779,000,000 and HK$74,000,000,

respectively.
Contingent consideration

In relation to the acquisition of the Jinjin Group as disclosed in note
30, the Group agreed to pay a contingent acquisition consideration
of up to HK$200,000,000 in tranches (the “Conditional Payment”)
if certain profit target (the “Profit Target”) and delivery target (the
“Delivery Target”) are met on or before 31 March 2021.

The Profit Target relates to the contribution of aggregate consolidated
net profits by the Jinjin Group of not less than RMB200,000,000
to the consolidated financial statements of the Company from the
completion date (i.e., 1 August 2019) to 31 March 2021, while the
Delivery Target relates to delivering the aggregate gross floor area
of not less than 550,000 sg.m. of the properties to the customers
during the same period. In consideration for fulfilment of the Profit
Target and the Delivery Target, the Group shall pay the Conditional
Payment in tranches (the “Pro Rata Payment”) for the periods from
(i) the completion date to 30 September 2019; (i) 1 October 2019 to
31 March 2020; (i) 1 April 2020 to 30 September 2020; and (iv) 1
October 2020 to 31 March 2021 (altogether the “Relevant Periods”).
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30.

31.

EBa (@
Wi —TEY R RER (B)

RERE S - SF=A=+—HIH
B ERAMBASATNERGERRRE
AU A #987,000,00078 7o K 815 bR R B B5 1840
12,000,000 7T © R & M B A BUNBE BI85 5
- NFEE—H#E BE_TTF
ZA=+—HUIFEXAERZ WA KREEF
ZE 9 Bl 75 49779,000,0005 7T K 74,000,00058

HANE

UM ORI B A RS R E 2 B HE
FiaMEECERBE) R TEE (R
B)RIE—FE=ZA=+—HozrEE
% A5 & B B & 5 HAsZ 1 &% 200,000,000
T2 AR EEE (TR IREERR) ©

wmA BRIy RketREEBEMRBH B2
—hENB—HBE_E_—&F=B=+—
HAAXQABGEMBEREEMTLORARKE
200,000,0007c 2 & sHER & 41 > TR (T B 1Z
HRRE—HERE A X MREEERER D
$2550,000%F 75 K 2 ) 2  fish e &) B A2 K A
BiEEER RIAEEBR U TR DR
BRI (HREEAHSFU) (()ERBEEC
E—NFNB=+H;()=Z—hF+B—H
EIZCEFE=A=+—H;H T ZTEFEN
A—BEZZZEFNA=+H; k=2
EFE+B—HE_E-_—H=B=+—H &
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31.

32.

—F=ZA=+—8H

Contingent consideration (Continued) 31. HARE B
The Pro Rata Payment shall be determined by () the product of the FREE B FRZB (VB R R ia A B AR s R
Conditional Payment and the accumulated completion percentage TERZ R AD T UREERE)
of either the Profit Target or Delivery Target (whichever is lower); FehE ; R(iFIRERRIERAEBLR B
and (i) deducting the applicable tax and the Pro Rata Payment ZIRELBUTIREE TE o m A B2 R, R B
previously paid by the Group. In the event that the Profit Target and/ SRR —F =B =+—HBIFREEM 8
or the Delivery Target have not been reached by 31 March 2021, the KEBRBEEFIZMERZG ZBHRELR
Group would have no obligation to pay the remaining balance of the BRER©
Conditional Payment that has not been paid.
For the purpose of determining the Profit Target, the Jinjin Group has MEETRMNEEMS > SREEBTKHH
contributed accumulated net profits of approximately RMB8 million BEE—F= ﬁ +— BB EAERE
to the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the period 2BV RRERM B SAFNAREE00E
from the completion date up to 31 March 2021. The aggregate e BREMABEE R —F=A=+—
gross floor area of the properties delivered to the customers for the HIABBERARNZMEZERERRLY
period from the completion date up to 31 March 2021 amounted A272,000F F KAt REBPREHEZZ
to approximately 272,000 sq.m.. Consequently, contingent Z—HF=ZA=t—HIEFEREFIRREDN
consideration of approximately HK$7,725,000 (2020: Nil) was 7,725,000 (T2 TRFE D) o
accrued by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2021.
Commitments 32. K
Capital commitments BAKIE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAERT FHET
Contracted but not provided for I EREE
Acquisition of an entity WiE—REe 2,800 =
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment B2~ R = e ek 1 - 181
2,800 181
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33.

34.

—F=ZA=+—8H

Contingent liabilities

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, as at 31 March 2021, the Group provided financial
guarantees in respect of mortgage loans made by certain banks
to certain purchasers of the Group’s properties in Mainland China,
either directly provided to the banks or to the housing provident
fund management centre who arranged the bank mortgages of
approximately HK$1,818,175,000 (2020: HK$1,387,456,000).
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying
the outstanding mortgage principals together with the accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulting purchasers to the banks
and the Group is entitled but not limited to take over the legal titles
and possession of the related properties. The Group’s guarantee
period starts from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage
loans and ends upon issuance of real estate ownership certificates.
The directors of the Company consider that the fair value of the
guarantees is not significant and in the case of defaulted payments,
the net realisable value of the related properties will be sufficient to
cover the outstanding mortgage principals, the accrued interest and
penalty. Therefore, no provision has been made in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021
(2020: nil) for these guarantees.

Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows

(@) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$3,024,000 (2020:
HK$2,922,000) and HK$3,024,000 (2020: HK$2,922,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for property,
plant and equipment.
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33.
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HARER

REaMBERREAMEHIREEN 22
T H=B=+—8 > xEERETIRTALR
EEAETHERAEYES HIERNIZIBER
R FEIER491,818,175,0008 T (CTZ &
£F 1 1,387,456,000/87T) > AR AEZEMEIRTT
FARZHHRTIEF 2 EEABEEEPLIE
fﬁom?ﬁ%ﬁmﬂ%?ﬂ:ﬁ%&%%ﬁﬁﬂ%*iﬂﬁﬁ

/\E’\H%Ti%ffg&}%$$’Lﬁﬁéﬁﬁru,m&%ﬂ%’x’
MmAEEAR (BRRN) BEAMYERE
EXEERFIAE  AEENERPBRRLAR
RIBENEORGBERHEERB R &

NEEERHERNATFELAER HARE
AR AERAY) RV R IR R ER B UERE
Fﬁﬁﬁgiﬁ%ﬁﬁ\FEEHF'J%EZ%%’X‘J&J&I:’7-&
EEEE_T_—FZA=+—HLFEZ
??éﬁ??%&i‘%]tﬁ%%aiv%‘ﬁf’ﬁﬁ%%1% cZ
TTFE e

A
g I:I

R & MmERMEE

(@) EEFRERH

RER FEBERDE -BRERREZ

‘fz—zﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁéikiﬁ%ﬂjé&%ﬂ
EEE5 513,024,000 (TS - Z4E
2,922,0007% 7t) K3,024,00058 7T (T =
T|AE 1 2,922 0008 7T) ©
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34. Notes to the consolidated statement of 34. {28 R&RERME (@)
cash flows (Continued)

(b) The movements in liabilities from financing b) MEZHELEZ2EGZED
activities are as follows: mT
Interest
payable
(included in
accrued
charges
and other Bank Lease
payables) borrowings liabilities
ERFIE
(5t AFEST
BERREM
FE(TERTR) RITER HEaE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FHT FHET
At 1 April 2019 RIZE—hFMNA—H 66 134,631 3,236
Changes from financing cash flows BB IR & M & B &) (12,833) 238,542 (2,223)
New leases g E - - 2,922
Finance costs MEER 15,843 = 205
Exchange realignment FEREE - (46) (207)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 RZE-_ZE=ZF=+—Hk
“E-—FA—H 3,076 373,127 3,933
Changes from financing cash flows BRIEREHEEH (11,393) (154,957) (2,300)
New leases MEHEE - - 3,024
Finance costs MEEMR 8,813 - 134
Exchange realignment B R aRE - 905 78
At 31 March 2021 RN_E_—F=ZA=+—H 496 219,075 4,869
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34. Notes to the consolidated statement of 34. ({28 IR&RERME (@)
cash flows (Continued)

(c) The total cash outflow for leases included (c) FARERERNEERE
in the statement of cash flows is as follows: M AEERUN T -
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Within operating activities KEEH 877 2,223
Within financing activities REEE) 2,300 2,223
3,177 4,446
35. Related party transactions 35. BAHk AR5
The remuneration of directors and other members of key SEEREMTBEESEENE 2T -

management is as follows:

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FAT TET

Short-term benefits ZHRfEF 4,502 4,955
Post-employment benefits BER B @ 36 36
4,538 4,991
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36. Financial instruments by category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

36. BERETHNEMIA

RIRERBLER R T ERREENT ¢

2021 B &
Financial assets EREE
Financial
assets
at fair value
through
profit or loss Financial
— mandatorily assets at
measured amortised
as such cost Total
BATE
STABTRZ
TRMEE— REHERAN
B s E FTERY
b= Yl EMEE wast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FHET
Accounts receivable FEUBRR - 51,994 51,994
Financial assets included in FFATE( RIE ~ EAE AR
prepayments, other receivables HhEESMEE
and other assets - 43,421 43,421
Financial assets at fair value BAFESABRZEHEE
through profit or loss 42,522 - 42,522
Restricted bank balances ZIRGIRITAR - 29,128 29,128
Cash and bank balances RERIBITERE - 149,220 149,220
42,622 273,763 316,285
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36. Financial instruments by category 36. iZEREI SNSRI TE (&)

(Continued)
2021 —E-—F
Financial liabilities ERI&E
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
R AL A
Em
By =K
HK$'000
FET
Accounts payable FE(TBRFN 184,830
Financial liabilities included in StABStERAREMENRR
accrued charges and other payables SREE 91,590
Bank borrowings IRITRER 219,075
Lease liabilities HEAaE 4,869
500,364
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36. Financial instruments by category 36. iZEJEI SNSRI TE (&)
(Continued)

2020 TETEE
Financial assets ETREE
Financial
assets
at fair value
through
profit or loss Financial
— mandatorily assets at
measured amortised
as such cost Total
BATE
STABRZ
TREE— REENE
BT E FEN
b ylis EMEE wast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FHET
Accounts receivable FEULAR TR - 49,866 49,866
Financial assets included in FFAFEMSIE s Bt EBIR TR R
prepayments, other receivables HtEESMEE
and other assets = 32,092 32,092
Financial assets at fair value BAFESFABRZSHEE
through profit or loss 96,037 - 96,037
Pledged cash and cash equivalents  BiEFRES KIS EEY - 120,000 120,000
Restricted bank balances ZIRAIIRITEF = 35,897 35,897
Cash and bank balances RE RIBITHERE - 265,502 265,502
96,037 503,357 599,394

Annual Report 2021 —E=—&4%% 267



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

sR e MTERRMEE

31 March 2021
—g-—#=B=1+—18

36. Financial instruments by category 36.
(Continued)

2020

Financial liabilities

RENZSHNERIA (&)

TRAE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
FHERY
o=k
HK$’000
FHET

Accounts payable FE{TRR R

180,182

Financial liabilities included in accrued charges and other payables 5t A FEst & A R EMAE R
EREE 222,287

Bank borrowings IRITRER
Lease liabilities HEaR

373,127
3,933

779,529

37. Financial risk management objectives and 37.
policies

Financial risk factors

The activities of the Group expose it to a variety of financial
risks including credit risk, liquidity risk, cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk and price risk. The overall
risk management programme of the Group focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the financial performance of the Group.

Financial risk management is carried out by the finance department
under policies approved by the board of directors (the “Board”). The
Board establishes principles for overall risk management, as well as
written policies covering specific areas.
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37. Financial risk management objectives and 37. B EGEEBEREE (B)

policies (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset (other than financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss) after deducting any impairment provision
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Credit risk of the Group is primarily attributable to deposits with
banks, credit exposures to customers and other debtors. The Group
has credit policies in place and exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of credit exposures to customers, management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
for the printing business, the Group has purchased credit insurance
from Export Credit Insurance Corporation on certain overseas sales
to compensate for losses from debts that are not collectible. Rentals
in respect of investment properties are payable in advance by tenants
in accordance with the lease agreements.

MEBRERR (&)
EE R

RARZEERBRGEMBRRERMGE
THEE BATESABRZ EHEERR
SN MBRERRERE R ZREE

FERZEERBRIZHRTER - BEARE
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He ltsh AEEE RN EF 2 & T 85N
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7. WHBEAREEBRRER (&)

37. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that rental deposits are
required from tenants prior to commencement of leases. Proceeds
from sales of properties are received in advanced or upon delivery of
the completed properties to customers. As at 31 March 2021, 35%
(2020: 26%) of the Group’s total accounts receivable were derived
from the top five customers. However, the Group concluded that the
credit risk in relation to its customers is not significant because they
have no history of default in recent years. The Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors considered
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced and there is no
significant concentration of risk on the accounts receivable which
consist of a large number of customers, spreading across diverse
geographical areas.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification. For listed debt investments, the Group also monitors
them by using external credit ratings. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure to credit
risk for the financial guarantee contracts.
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37. Financial risk management objectives and 37.

policies (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

At 31 March 2021

HHEEAREEBRREER (&)

MBRRER (8

REEBRKRERMEE (8)

K-®-—%£=A=+—H

Gross
carrying Amounts applied for various ECL impairment
amounts assessment approaches ECLs
IREAE RS ERNEERERETIE A ENEE RHEESE
General General General
approach approach approach Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
—RA# —RA# —RA*
e BIME 2 N[
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Accounts receivable FEMRERRY 52,314 - - - 52,314 320
Financial assets included in prepayments, 5t ATEfTFUE ~ E U
other receivables and other assets REMBEZ SHEE
— Normal* —E8 43,421 43,421 = = = -
Restricted bank balances ZEFIRTER 29,128 29,128 - - - -
Cash and bank balances* ReRBIER 149,220 149,220 - - - -
274,083 221,769 - - 52,314 320
Other item: HtIBE
Financial guarantee contracts HBREREH 1,818,175 1,818,175 - - - -
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37. Financial risk management objectives and 37. B E G EEBEREBE (B)
policies (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued) MBRBEZE (&
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) =R R ERFEE (@)
At 31 March 2020 "2 EHF=F=+—H
Gross
carrying Amounts applied for various ECL impairment
amounts assessment approaches ‘ECLs
FRERE RS ERAEERRNETE A ANEE RHEERSE
General General General
approach approach approach Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
—RhH% —&AE —AE
E—TEE ETRE R BlLA*E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TER TER TER TER
Accounts receivable FEWRERRY 50,270 - - - 50,270 404
Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATEfFUE  EfEUEE
other receivables and other assets kEMEEZ EHMEE
- Normal* —E8 32,092 32,092 - - - -
Pledged cash and cash equivalents BEERERRSEEY 120,000 120,000 = = - -
Restricted bank balances SIRGIRITEE 35,807 35,807 = = = =
Cash and bank balances* ReRRiTEE 265,502 265,502 - - - -
503,761 453,491 - - 50,270 404
Other item: HHIBE
Financial guarantee contracts HHEREN 1,387,456 1,387,456 = = = =
* The credit quality of the financial assets included in cash and cash equivalents, * Bt AR REEEEY  BOHIE - EMEK
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” RARHEMEENCREERAPBE T EENE
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the financial TZETMEEB VBRI LR EERMBER
assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, m EEEEERRRATER JH EMEEZ
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”. EEERSWRATFER -
The Group provides for credit losses against accounts receivable to AEE B IR E KR EWIRAE R 2 8ATE
customers by geographical location and the lifetime expected credit HEEREIBZE06% (CTZT2EF 1 08%) BiE
loss rate of 0.6% (2020: 0.8%) on the accounts receivable balance. Pz EWRTHE E BB EE -
The Group was not aware of any credit risk on other receivables and HRAEBR R GHFRAEBRIFEELR
deposits as their counterparties are corporations with proven credit Z 2 BASE B N AN BT R E AR R
history. Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure RS2 EERR - BRAEEHEBIER
to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are disclosed in note MPTEEZEERBZE—TELEBIKRE
19 to the consolidated financial statements. R EMBRERMIEE190
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37. Financial risk management objectives and 37. B EGEEBEREE (B)

policies (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its current
obligations when they fall due. The Group measures and monitors
its liquidity through the maintenance of prudent ratios regarding
the liquidity structure of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and
commitments of the Group. The Group has put in place a policy
of obtaining long-term banking facilities to match its long-term
investments in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group also
maintains a conservative level of liquid assets to ensure the availability
of sufficient cash flows to meet any unexpected and material cash
requirements in the ordinary course of business. In addition, as at
31 March 2021, the Group had standby banking facilities to provide
contingency liquidity support which amounted to approximately
HK$262.8 million (2020: HK$166.8 million). Details of the bank
borrowings are disclosed in note 25.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities that will be
settled on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows including interest payment.

MEBRERR (&)
RBES AR

mEEERBIIEAEEKRERITRARN
ZAREEZRB AEBTEREE A
B B AE REE S A EEREIEC
B M ekEEERSEER R -AEEE
SIEBGE  ERRARITEEUNRESHETEE
BHBEAREZ RIAKE o tb9h > ZEBF RS
BEMARIMRT KT BIRE B B X
HEERBZREREUEMNERIERHRZE
AREFER-BE KRB —F=A=+—
B ERIRTEEREE 72 628fEEIT (T2
T4 1 1.6682B ) MARERIREEZ M
BB eI ARRITERZ SEHIBEIRENMEE
250

TRIEZREAMUAESNIIEZRGRER
HRERN DT A EERF R FREREZSHE
B TR ZRIAERBNRBIRZRERE
WEBENEA™R
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37. Financial risk management objectives and 37. B E G EEBEREBE (B)
policies (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

MBRRER (8

Liquidity risk (Continued) mENEE R (&)
Within In the Within the
one year or second third to
on demand year fifth years Total
—FERE BZE
BEX BIER BRERN ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TET AT
2021 —E-f
Accounts payable FEfTERTR 184,830 - - 184,830
Accrued charges and other payables M5 & A R EL M RE (T BR AR 95,782 - - 95,782
Bank borrowings* RITER 229,218 - - 229,218
Lease liabilities HEaR 2,286 1,609 1,110 5,005
Financial guarantee contracts HBEREN 1,818,175 - - 1,818,175
2,330,291 1,609 1,110 2,333,010
Within In the Within the
one year or second third to
on demand year fith years Total
—FR 5=F
FBRER BTER FRERN ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERT TERT TER
2020 ZEIEE
Accounts payable FEfTERER 180,182 = = 180,182
Accrued charges and other payables MR & A R EL M RE (T BR AR 222,287 - - 222,287
Bank borrowings™ RITER 379,785 = = 379,785
Lease liabilities HEaR 2,159 1,262 658 4,079
Financial guarantee contracts HBEREHN 1,387,456 - - 1,387,456
2,171,869 1,262 658 2,173,789
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37. UWRARESEEEREE @)

37. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Included in interest-bearing bank borrowings of HK$219,075,000 (2020:
HK$373,127,000) containing a repayment on demand clause giving the lender the
unconditional right to call the loan at any time and therefore, for the purpose of the
above maturity profile, these amounts are classified as “on demand”.

Notwithstanding the above repayment on demand clause, the directors do not
believe that the bank loans will be called in their entirety within 12 months, and
considered that the bank loans will be repaid in accordance with the maturity
dates as set out in the respective agreements. This evaluation was made
considering: the financial position of the Group at the date of approval of the
financial statements and the fact that the Group has made all previously scheduled
repayments on time. In accordance with the terms of the bank borrowings, the
contractual undiscounted cash flows including interest payment for maturity terms
as at 31 March 2021 are HK$89,956,000 (2020: HK$365,723,000) payable less
than 12 months, HK$18,316,000 (2020: HK$14,062,000) payable in the second
year, and HK$120,946,000 (2020: nil) payable within third to fifth years).

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the position of the Group may be
adversely affected by the changes in market interest rate. The policy
of the Group involves close monitoring of interest rate movements
and replacing and entering into new banking facilities when
favourable pricing opportunities arise.

The interest rate risk of the Group mainly arises from interest-bearing
bank deposits, bank borrowings and the bond investments in
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Bank deposits and
bank borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. The bond investments at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group currently does not
have any interest rate hedging policy in relation to interest rate risks.
The directors monitor the Group’s exposure on an ongoing basis and
will consider hedging interest rate risks should the need arise.

MBRBRER (&)

BT RERE (&)

- st ASHBIRTTE R 2 M IE219,075,00058 T (ZE
TLF 1 373,127,000/ 7T) HAREREEBEEN M
FERAEGHRAFERZRIEN FLL R L
BB ZESBNEAEERMEE -

BE LR ERENET EBDABRMRITENR
FER+2EARE2KAR ARAZSRTE
G AR AR P B R HA B BB o b IEFTE A E
B AREERIESA M BFRER B RN BERR
B A M@ ILATE R BN HA B A IEMmEH o
RBRITERZBERO R B —F=A=+—
HEeFEMNEMRZaNRMRESRENIBGH
IR %89,956,00058 7T (ZZ = =4 : 365,723,000
BiT) BR12@8 8 REIE 18,316,000 7T (Z&
TEEE 14,062,000 7T) BRE_EREE K
120,946,00087t (2 22F 1 B) BRFE=EF
AEREE

REREBRATENERR

MEREBIERERR NPT EERHIHH X
SIMZIFNLEZ R - AEEZHEKY
REZBENXED BEANZ EERKE
A AEIIRITIEE

AEEZANXRBEIZREFAEZETHE
P RITEMRIR R AT EF ABRRZ S/
EEETHESRE -IBNKFA R 2T
ERMRTERSAEEAZHEEMNEN X
B - ZEEFN K B 2 EFRESRERK
RRFENEER - A 5EE B A A= E
BHEEAM R NER  EFERERER
EBZ AR TERERRGEBE TN ERE
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7. WHBEAREEBRRER (&)

37. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2021, if interest rates had been 1% (2020: 1%)
higher with all other variables held constant, the profit before tax
of the Group would have decreased by HK$2,191,000 (2020: loss
before tax increased by HK$3,731,000).

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises on monetary assets and liabilities
being denominated in a currency that is not the functional currency,
differences resulting from the translation of financial statements
into the presentation currency of the Group are not taken into
consideration.

The sales of printing products are invoiced mainly in United States
dollars (“USD”), Euro (“EUR”) and RMB. The Group has foreign
currency sales, accounts receivable, other receivables and cash
and bank balances, which expose the Group to foreign exchange
risk. Exchange rate fluctuations have always been the concern of
the Group. The Group currently does not enter into any derivative
contracts to minimise the foreign currency risk exposure. However,
management will consider hedging significant currency risk should
the need arise.
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37. Financial risk management objectives and 37. B EGEEBEREE (B)

policies (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10%
increase and decrease in the Hong Kong dollar against EUR, and
1% increase and decrease in the Hong Kong dollar against USD.
10% or 1% are the sensitivity rates used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and represent
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period for a 10%
or 1% change in relevant foreign currency rates. A 10% or 1%
strengthening or weakening of the Hong Kong dollar against the
relevant foreign currencies will give rise to a decrease or increase in
profit before tax and the impact is shown in the following table.

MEBRERR (&)
ER AR @)

TRV AEBB BT REUTI0% I EREHN
B 7058 E IO A1 % T BRIE 2 BRRLE © 109%3%
1% A = 2 EIEA B R BEE R IE 52 &R £
RAZERELR AXREEBHINEEX &
] BEEBNAYST L o ILTESURE 04T R B R LL
SNEDBAZ RENERER  WHHERERE
AR Z I EEH10%301% 2 A RIE X &8
BB BERINEZ ERTHENEZE10%K
1% < BRI AT MR SIE N > A R R &
B T ake

Increase/(decrease)
in profit before tax

PRITAEFIL, GRL)

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

usD ET (827) (691)
EUR BX7T (461) (107)
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37. Financial risk management objectives and 37. B E G EEBEREBE (B)

policies (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continued)
Price risk

The Group is exposed to securities price risk because investments
held by the Group are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Unrealised gains and losses arising from the
change in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in the consolidated income statement. To
manage its price risk arising from investments in financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, the Group diversifies its portfolio.
Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set
by the Group.

As at 31 March 2021, if market price of the Group’s publicly-traded
investments increased/decreased by 5% with all other variables held
constant, the profit before tax of the Group would have increased/
decreased by approximately HK$2,126,000 (2020: HK$4,802,000).

Capital risk management

The objectives of the Group for managing capital are to safeguard the
ability of the Group to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
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37.

38.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt to equity ratio.
This ratio is calculated as a percentage of bank borrowings over
net asset value attributable to equity holders of the Company. Bank
borrowings are calculated as total bank borrowings (including current
and non-current bank borrowings as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position). Net asset value attributable to owners
of the Company represents shareholders’ funds as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. As at 31 March 2021,
the debt to equity ratio was 24.4% (2020: 44.3%).

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments

The disclosure of fair value measurements of financial instruments
carried at fair value by level in the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1)

° Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly (Level 2)

° Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
(Level 3)

See note 13 for disclosure of the investment properties that are
measured at fair value.

37.

38.

HHEEAREEBRREER (&)

BEXRREREE (@)
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38. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of 38. R TAZAFERAFERE

financial instruments (Continued)

The Group had no Level 2 and Level 3 financial instruments as at 31
March 2021 and 2020. The only Level 1 financial instrument as at
31 March 2021 and 2020 represented financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (note 20), the fair value of which is based on
quoted market prices. There was no transfer of financial instruments
between Level 1 and Level 2 or transfer of financial instruments into
or out of Level 3 for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets are
based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current
price within the bid-ask spread which is the most representative of
the fair value in the given circumstances. The fair values of other
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with the generally accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.

The fair values of the non-current portion of bank borrowings were
estimated using the expected future payments discounted at market
interest rates. The carrying amounts of the non-current portion of
borrowings approximated their fair values since they were floating
interest rate borrowings.

The carrying amounts less any estimated credit adjustments for
financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year,
including accounts receivable, financial assets included in deposits
and other receivables, pledged cash and cash equivalents, restricted
bank balances, cash and bank balances, financial liabilities included
in accounts payable, accrued charges and other payables and the
current portion of bank borrowings approximate their fair values.
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39. EATIMBINRE

39. Statement of financial position of the

Company
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERHEE
Interests in subsidiaries RTB AT Z 917,090 928,726
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Prepayments and other receivables TE T FRIE Fe EL At FE U AR R 401 520
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITHEF 73,247 198,816
Total current assets MENEEMEE 73,648 199,336
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENAE
Accrued charges and other payables FESH & FA B EL A FE T BR X 4,670 9,285
Bank borrowings IRITRERR 160,000 320,000
Total current liabilities mEasEE 164,670 329,285
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaEEE (91,022) (129,949)
NET ASSETS BERE 826,068 798,777
EQUITY s
Share capital %N 577,919 577,919
Reserves (note) HE () 248,149 220,858
TOTAL EQUITY R 4EEE 826,068 798,777
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39. Statement of financial position of the 39. ZATMERRRER (@)

Company (Continued)
Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

MyEE

TRBZREFEHENOT ¢

Share Other Contributed Accumulated
premium reserve surplus losses Total
RS HothfH 6 MARER Rithsia 4agE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHT FHT FHET FHT
At 1 April 2019 R-E—AFENE—A 257,674 4,000 77,963 (91,447) 248,190
Loss for the year KEEEE - - - (101,268) (101,268)
Issue of shares upon acquisition of EWE—BEMEZREER

a property development business EITRS (MI5E28~30)

(notes 28, 30) 60,919 - - - 60,919
Issue of shares upon rights issue R EEITIRD (Bi5E28)

(note 28) 18,062 - - - 18,062
Share issue expenses BmETZEH (5,045) - - - (5,045)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R_Z2_ZF=F=+—H

RZE-TEME—H 331,610 4,000 77,963 (192,715) 220,858
Profit for the year NEERF - - - 27,291 27,291
At 31 March 2021 WIE-_—%H=HA=+—H 331,610 4,000 77,963 (165,424) 248,149

Pursuant to the special resolution approved by the shareholders of
the Company in the 2016 annual general meeting of the Company,
share premium, other reserve and contributed surplus of the
Company are available for distribution to ordinary shareholders of
the Company (after deduction of the accumulated losses) provided
that the Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business immediately following the date on which
any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

Other reserve of the Company relates to contribution by the then
substantial shareholders of the Company who were also the then
holders of the preference shares. It represents the excess of the face
value of redeemable preference shares over the consideration paid
upon redemption in 2004.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries which were
acquired by the Company at the date of a group reorganisation in
1996 (the “Group Reorganisation”) and the nominal amount of the
shares issued by the Company for the Group Reorganisation.
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40. X EMBAF

40. Principal subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

TRABEZMBABFBENT -

Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation/ registered Percentage of equity
Name operation share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
i, BRTEER b YNS|
28 =i AR A SR TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# ke
BEREX KR EERAR Mainland China RMB32,000,000 = 100%  Property development
(notes fi¥H1, 2)
KR A #32,000,0007¢ MERE
Guangdong Boluo Yuanzhou Midas ~ Mainland China US$12,500,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Printing Limited (note 1) printed products
BERERERENDZIBERAG PEIARE 12,500,000% 75 R ERBRERHE
(F3zt1)
Midas Printing International Limited Hong Kong HK$7,000 S 100%  Trading of printed products
BENRERERAR &HE 7,000 7T ENRIE mis &
BN ARESAREBRAR Mainland China RMB39,000,000 - 100%  Property investment
(note BigzE1)
KR A #39,000,0007¢ MERE
Magnus Concordia Development Hong Kong HK$60,000,000 - 100%  Property investment
(Chengdu) Limited
MAERE (F) ERAF &% 60,000,000 7T MERE
Perfect Outlook Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 = 100%  Property investment
Hong Kong
HBELHE/ ES MERE
&4
Delta Key Limited British Virgin Islands/ USS$1 S 100%  Property investment
Hong Kong
EBELHE/ 1E7T MERE
B
Ever Favour Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 = 100%  Property investment
XFIERRAF &E 1B MERE
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40.

41.

42,

Principal subsidiaries (Continued)

40.

FEMBAE (@)

Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation/ registered Percentage of equity
Name operation share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
MR BRTLER/ FAF
218 EE A ST T TEER
Direct Indirect
B# ke
BN EHEERAR Mainland China RMB50,000,000 = 100%  Property development
(note F&E1)
HEIARE AR #50,000,00075 MEER
Lever Printing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 S 100%  Treasury investment
FEZEDRIRERAT &5E 500,000 7T EXRE
Magnus Concordia Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Management services and
Management Limited treasury investment
BAEEEESFRAT B 187 EERERERLE
Notes: MI5E
1. The entities are registered in the form of wholly-owned foreign investment 1 ZEBRLIIMNESEEREZ HEM
enterprises.
2. The entity was acquired through a business combination during the year ended 31 2 ZBREIRBE_Z_Z2=F=+—HLEES

March 2020 as detailed in note 30 to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements have been re-presented to conform with the current
year’'s presentation. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
this would better reflect the financial performances of the Group.

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 30 June 2021.
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Particulars of Principal Properties

FEYEEH

Investment Properties

The following list contains investment properties held by the Group as at 31

March 2021.

Location

RS

Term

THAYHAIR

REWF

FEER_E_—F=B=+—BEFAZREME

£ NI

Usage

A&

Group’s interest

TEMBER

Shop B, Ground Floor,
Wuhu Residence,

No. 111 Wuhu Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

&

JLBEALHE
FORHET1115%

#wNE

T BEE

Shop D, Ground Floor,
Wuhu Residence,

No. 111 Wuhu Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

5B

JLBEAL R
FOME11158

wHNE

HRDE A

Shops 3, 4 and 5, Ground Floor,

Parkes Residence,

No. 101 Parkes Street,
Kowloon,

Hong Kong

5&

SLEE

B0 +E1015%

17 e #F

MR EE3 N 4R 555 A

Medium lease

FRERAEAY

Medium lease
FREATEAY

Medium lease

FRERTEAY

Commercial

EES

Commercial

EES

Commercial
[EES
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Particulars of Principal Properties

FEYEEH

Investment Properties (Continued) BREME B)

Location Term Usage Group’s interest
2L FHAYHAMR R& TEREREE
6th Floor, Chengdu Digital Plaza, Medium lease Commercial 100%
No. 1 Renmin South Road Fourth Portion, FREAFEAY [GES

Wuhou District, Chengdu,

Sichuan Province, the People’s

Republic of China (the “PRC”)

FREEAREME (TRED)

rajl &

RS T E EE

AR IO 15%

P ERBLHS 35012

Units 01, 02, 03, 06 and 07, 38th Floor, Medium lease Office 100%
R&F Yingkai Square, FREAFEAY =FE

No. 16 Huaxia Road,

Tianhe District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
B ERE

[& N R &

=S 165

ENEREES

3801Z ~ 3802%F ~

3803Z ~ 3806Z £23807 %
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Particulars of Principal Properties

FEYEEH

Properties under development BRI
The following list contains principal properties under development held by HAEBR - —F=B=+—HEAZTB%E
the Group as at 31 March 2021. FRYIZEEI T o
Gross floor

Group’s area sg.m. Estimated

Location Term Usage interest (approximately) completion date
wEM REEmEE

gk FHAIHAMR A% AR T7K (B4 fHEt 8 THER
Land lot C1-10 Yongyaju, Zhonggang Long lease Residential 100% 220,000 Phase I:
Shenhai Forest Project, the high-tech RERFAL = End of 2021
Industrial development zone E—H
of the Yanluyu District of T —%F
Wolong Lake in Zigong City, FR
Sichuan Province, the PRC Phase Il: 2022
PE)I& A
BEETeMRMEXRER BT
EAREHIEE A R @
R e 22 BHRMIEE
C1-10M1IRZEHZ
Completed properties for sale ERIEEME

The following list contains principal completed properties for sale held by

AEFRR B —F=-A=+—HEAZIEERE

the Group as at 31 March 2021. TRHEYEHN T
Gross floor
area sq.m.
Location Term Usage Group’s interest (approximately)
HEEEE
4 TRA9HARR mR& AEBEERED TR @A)
Residential units C1-11 Yujingwan, Long lease Residential 100% 10,000
Shenhai Forest Project, RHIFEY T=E

the high-tech Industrial development
zone of the Yanluyu District of
Wolong Lake in Zigong City,
Sichuan Province, the PRC

FREPY) &

BE®

BRI EEREE

EABEISE RS R &

RBHRMIER
Cl-11IRERB Z (EEE N
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Financial Summary

AT BE

Results e
For the year ended 31 March
BE-B=+—HILEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET FET
REVENUE WA 2,140,562 310,404 214,380 222,119 195,137
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR KEEEHN/ (BB 2,983 (73,715) 2,541 14,696 50,407
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: fE1h -
EQUITY OWNERS OF THE COMPANY ZARAFEHIEE A 2,983 (73,715) 2,541 14,696 50,437
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS JEEFIE S - - - = (30)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FEERMN/ (B518) 2,983 (73,715) 2,541 14,696 50,407
Assets and Liabilities BEEKREE
At 31 March
W=B=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET FET
TOTAL ASSETS BEHSE 3,095,675 4,190,366 966,573 951,033 819,679
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEETE (2,197,107) (3,348,510)  (339,940)  (313,164)  (177,421)
NET ASSETS BEEFE 898,568 841,856 626,633 637,869 642,258
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: fE1h -
EQUITY OWNERS OF THE COMPANY EAB##HFA A 898,568 841,856 626,633 637,869 642,258
TOTAL EQUITY 8% 898,568 841,856 626,633 637,869 642,258
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